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Our
Legacy

The journey of Matco started with the entrepreneurial aptitude of Syed Sarfaraz Ali Ghori, who
established his own company by the name of Muhammad Ali Trading Company (MATCO) in 1964 and
initially began supplying and commissioning rice plant and equipment for the Government of Pakistan.
Today, Matco has over 150 global customers and exports its consumer products to over 50 countries
worldwide.

The Company also holds Organic Certifications from the US NOP and EU Organic Certification from
Control Union, and is an IFC investee company since 2012.

In 2015, Matco Rice Processing (Pvt.) Limited changed its name to Matco Foods (Pvt.) Limited, and
subsequently to Matco Foods Limited before listing in PSX, reflecting its mission of becoming a leading
food corporation. Matco is a committed member of the society and strives to make constructive
efforts for the welfare of the community.
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Business
Profile

Matco Foods Limited is a leading Food Processing & Export Company in South-Asia which provides
packed consumer foods products that offer convenience, and supplies quality ingredients to the
pharmaceuticals and confectionery industries. The Company’s products include basmati rice, rice
glucose, rice protein, pink salt, masalas and spices, dessert mixes and more.

With over 50 years of experience in the rice industry, a global portfolio of more than 150 corporate
customers, the Company is the largest basmati rice exporter from Pakistan, and its flagship brand
“Falak Basmati Rice” is available in more than 70 countries worldwide. Matco also exports private
label brands to over 70 countries across the globe. The Company operates 5 rice processing and
milling plants which include vertically-integrated paddy drying, storage, husking and processing
facilities in Sadhoke, Punjab and Karachi, Sindh.

Matco Foods has recently diversified its operation within domain specialized products i.e. Rice
Glucose and Rice Protein, with plant production capacity of 30,000 MT per annum and 3,000 MT per
annum of Rice Glucose and Rice Protein respectively.

The Company aims to serve the changing needs and preferences of global consumers and therefore
holds Organic Certification from the US NOP and EU Organic Certification from Control Union. Matco
Foods Limited is also the only IFC investee company in its sector since 2012.




To become a leadingglobal supplier of quality ingredients and consumer food
products that offer convenience.

Mission

To provide premium quality products globally to customers; to be innovative,
customer oriented and create strong partnerships withsu

invest in our staff —the biggest asset of the company
value for all stakeholders — shareholders, staff, custome
community.

S, suppliers and wider
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DIRECTORS
PROFILE

JAWED ALIGHORI
Chairman

Jawed Ali Ghori completed his Diploma in Associate Engineering in 1968 and a BSc. In Economics and
Political Science from University of Karachi in 1971.After graduation, he joined the family business and
completed several government and semi-government projects that were awarded to Matco
Engineering.

A few of the notable projects were the Greater Hyderabad Water Project (1981), the Faisalabad
Development Authority Water Project (1984), the Chitral Water Project (1989), OGDC and Attock Qil
Projects and numerous telecommunication and SCADA Projects for both Sui Southern Gas Company
(SSGC) and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL).Jawed Ali Ghori's rice related projects include
the supply of four rice plants to Rice Export Corporation of Pakistan at Pipri, Sindh in 1978. In 1985,
he supplied and commissioned an automatic parboil rice plant of 10 MT/hour capacity on turn - key
basis for P.N.P Rice Mills at Dhaunkal, Punjab. In further developments to the Dhaunkal project, Jawed
Ali Ghori supplied and installed six color sorters for the parboil plant in 1988. When the private sector
Basmati export in Pakistan was allowed, Jawed Ali Ghori conceptualized the idea of establishing a
modern rice processing plant that would add sophistication to the existing rice processing standards.
This marked the birth of Matco Rice Processing in 1990. As the Managing Director of Matco Foods, he
has over 40 years of experience in rice processing, establishment of rice industries and worldwide rice
exports. He has travelled extensively across the globe buying rice related machinery from many
countries including China, Germany, Great Britain, India, Japan, Korea, Thailand and USA.

KHALID SARFARAZ GHORI
Chief Executive Officer

Khalid Ghori graduated from University of Karachi in 1981 and pursued an article ship from ICAP (Insti-
tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan) Karachi between 1981 and 1984. However, rapid growth in
the business required his immediate presence at Dhaunkal turnkey projects in 1984, which involved the
complete testing and operation of a parboil rice plant. Between 1986 and 1989, he was in charge of
Jawed Rice Mills in Larkana. In 1990, when Matco Rice Processing was being set up in Karachi, Khalid
Ghori contributed to the project from the drawing board stage to the final fabrication, installation and
operations.

In 1995, Khalid Ghori initiated setting up Matco Until 2 for providing additional capacity, using in-house
design and system engineering capabilities, consisting of Japanese, Thai and Chinese machinery. Work-
ing closely with growers and suppliers from the rice growing belt in Punjab, he established a unigue Rice
Cultivating Monitoring Program and opened a research and control office for Matco in Lahore to
improve crop quality. With experience of over 30 years in the purchase and processing of rice, Khalid
Ghori is rightly dubbed the “guru of rice buyers in Pakistan.” He utilizes his vast experience in assessing
the qualities of agri-products and pays special attention to the entire procurement and production
process.

Khalid Ghori has established a wide network of farmers who are linked to Matco’s rice paddy supply
chain, allowing them to get better prices for their produce by avoiding the middlemen. His insights into
crop survey and harvest are aimed to help farmers and Matco to achieve procurement targets.
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FAIZAN ALI GHORI
Executive Director

Faizan Ali Ghori joined Matco Foods in 2006 with the overall responsibility of Accounts and Finance Departments
and the company's liaison with Financial Institutions. He spearheaded the company’s backwards integration
paddy project at Sadhoke, district Gujranwala and attracted the first foreign direct investment by the IFC (World
Bank Group) in the agriculture sector of Pakistan through its investment in Matco. Prior to Matco Foods he worked
with Bank of America in London, where he was an Analyst within the Corporate Finance and Mergers & Acquisi-
tions Investment Banking Division, covering the European Energy & Power Sector.

Faizan Ghoriis also a CFA* charter holder. He graduated with honors (Cum Laude) from New York University's Leon-
ard N. Stern School of Business, completing his Bachelor of Science degree with a double major in Finance and
Accounting. Faizan Ghori has also completed his Master of Science degree in Finance and Accounting with honors
(Merit) from The London School of Economics and Political Sciences. He is a certified director accredited by Risk
Metrics Group USA having completed the Director Education programmed conducted by the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance.

SAFWAN KHALID GHORI
Executive Director

Safwan Ghori joined Matco Foods Limited in 2017 and currently heads the Rice Glucose Division. During his time
at Matco, he was part of the team leading Matco's IPO process. Most recently, he has spearheaded a new project
which has tripled the capacity for the company's Rice Glucose Division.

Safwan has previously worked at Citigroup in New York where he was an analyst in the Hedge Fund Risk division
servicing Prime Brokerage clients.He graduated with honors (Cum Laude) from New York University's Leonard N.
Stern School of Business, completing his Bachelor of Science degree with a double major in Finance and
Accounting. Safwan is a CFA Charter holder.

MR. MUHAMMAD MOHSIN
Independent Director

Mohammad Mobhsin holds a bachelor’s degree in Commerce from University of Karachi studying at Govt. College
of Commerce & Economic Karachi graduating in year 1998. After his graduation he started his career working for
Standard Chartered Bank and eventually moved to California USA. After doing a few business courses at California
State University Northridge he returned back to Pakistan. Since his return from USA, he has been in field of
construction and real estate managing his Company(Mayar Properties). Apart from developing and dealing in
properties he has experience of trading commodities to and from Pakistan.




SYED KAMRAN RASHID
Independent Director

He is a graduate of the University of Karachi. He joined EFU General Insurance Company Limited in 1989 as
Business Development Officer. He has served in different capacities and locations in EFU and at present he is
Executive Director of the Central Division Karachi of the said Company.

ABDUL SAMAD KHAN
Independent Director

Abdul Samad Khan is serving as the CEO of AGVEN Pvt. Limited since July 2015 which is involved in the import and
marketing of fertilizer products in Pakistan.The Company imports and markets fertilizer products under its own
brand in Pakistan.

Mr. Samad completed his MBA from IBA, Karachi in 1988 and joined Engro. He worked in various roles in Engro
Corporation and left in Dec 2014 when he was the CEO of Engro Eximp Pvt Ltd. He served on various Boards in
Engro which include Engro Foods Limited, Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited, Engro Eximp Pvt. Limited and
Engro Eximp Agriproducts Pvt. Limited. He was involved in various business development roles in Engro which
included the expansion of import-based fertilizers, as well as, rice procurement and export. He has extensive
experience of the rice industry in Pakistan and the export market.

Mr. Samad completed the Director's Training Program conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance in 2014.

FARYAL MURTAZA
Non-Executive Director

Faryal Murtaza holds a BBA and an MBA degree from the prestigious Institute of Business Administration (IBA),
Karachi. After graduation, she worked at Matco Foods Limited till 2017. During her stay at Matco Foods, Faryal
launched our flagship brand "FALAK" in Pakistan and was responsible for pioneering the branded rice segment in
the market. Faryal was actively involved in marketing ‘FALAK' with a focus on TV and multi-media communication.
Before joining Matco, Faryal has also worked on assignments at British Petroleum, Colgate-Palmolive and

American Express.

UMME HABIBAH
Independent Director

Umme Habibah is a diversified Human Resource specialist with over 15 years of experience in core and strategic
activities of Human Resource Management. She is currently working as Head of Human Resources in Lotte Kolson
Pakistan and was previously associated with Novo Nordisk Pharma (Private) Limited as Director of People and
Organization. She holds a master's degree in human resource from Karachi University and has previously been
associated with Walmart and Unilever Pakistan Limited in the Human Resource department.
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Chairman's
Review

I am pleased to present annual review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Matco Foods Limited for the year
ended June 30, 2022.

The Board comprises of nine (9) members, that were elected at the Annual General Meeting held on October
21,2021, for the next term of three years, under the provisions of Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017. The
boardcomprises members with vast experience and diversified knowledge that led to an effective
decision-makingprocess. The Board together with its committees was fully involved in the planning process and
in developing thevision for the Company.As such the Board worked closely with Management in setting the

goals with Vision, Mission and Values of your Company.

As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, an annual evalua-
tion of the Board of Directors of the Company is carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the
Board's overall performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the

context of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2022, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness hasbeen assessed
as Satisfactory. Improvements are an ongoing process leading to action plans. Theabove overall assessment is
based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision,mission and values; engagement in strategic
planning; formulation of policies; monitoring theorganization’s business activities; monitor financial resource
management; effective fiscaloversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the

Board'sresponsibility.

The Board of Directors of your Company received agendas and supporting written material including follow up
materials in sufficient time prior to the board and its committee meetings. The board meets frequently enough
to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The non-executive and independent directors are equally involved

in important decisions.

We are extremely thankful to our dedicated employees, valued customers, our bankers, esteemed shareholders

and local administration for their valuable contribution extended to the Company during the period under

report.
A
——
Jawed Ali Ghori
Chairman

Karachi: September 07, 2022




_' :%EL?@'%"’
{i L:'-ﬁﬂlfl

L —
|

=

il q-""_';_“i}« it




Directors’
Report

PGPS S 5. PR

By the Grace of ALLAH (SWT) and on behalf of the Board of Directors (BOD), | am pleased to present the
Annual Report of Matco Foods Limited for the year ended June 30" 2022, along with the audited Financial

Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon.

OPERATING RESULTS:

Sales - net

Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT
Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance cost

Other income

Share of profit/(loss) from associate company
Exchange gain - net

Provision for worker's welare fund

Provision for worker's profit participation fund
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED

Unceonsolidated

2022

2021

Consolidated

2022

2021

T s s e e ] T TR S e s e e i il

12,375,920,766 10,556,620,789 12,399,470,102 10,574,095,621
{11,056,103,781} (9,909,427,766)  (11,056,103,781) (9,909,4 27,766)
1,319,816,985 647,193,023 1,343,366,321 664,667,855
(229,279,801) (185,997,143) (229,279,801) (187,321,615)
(356,460,731} (309,688,284) (358,270,742) (312,402,873)
(585,740,532) (295,685,427) {587,550,543) (499,724,488)
734,076,453 151,507,596 755,815,778 164,943,367
(387,872,994) (272,830,931) (388,135,728) (273,181,730)
19,789,701 77,029,758 19,801,519 77,035,369

: = 4,883,940 (5,276,389)

202,334,249 65,215,796 202,334,249 65,215,796
(10,622,942) (391,070) (10,622,942) (391,070)
(26,557,356) (977.674) (26,557,356) (977,674)
531,147,111 19,553,475 557,519,460 27,367,669
(108,731,143) (80,420,184) (108,731,143) (80,420,184)
422,415,968 (60,866,709) 448,788,317 (53,052,515)
3.45 {0.50) 3.67 (0.43)

The Company reported net sales of Rs. 12,376 million as against sales of Rs. 10,557 million representing a sales
increase of 17.23%. The gross profit for the year was Rs. 1,319 million as compared to Rs. 647 million showing
anincrease of 103.93%. Besides this the Company has witnessed a net profit of Rs. 422 million in the current
year as compared to net loss of Rs. 60.87 million in the last year, constituting increase of 794%. During the
year, the Company has exported the 42,114 MT basmati rice whereas 41,066 MT basmati rice was exported in
the corresponding period last year. The Company’s basmati average export prices were USD 981 against USD

961 last year.

Increases in the sales volumes, inventory gains, and increases in average prices and margins of the rice glucose
products led to higher gross profitability of the Company. The bottom line was offset to some extent by
increases in financial expenses and applicability of additional super tax at the rate of 4% on taxable profits




effective tax year 2021-22 in addition to corporate taxation at the rate of 29%. A significant contribution to
the bottom line was from the devaluation of the PKR against the USD.

APPROPRIATION

Considering financial performance and liquidity shortage of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022,
the directors have not recommended any dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Currently, the Company is facing the biggest risk of uncertainty inupcoming rice crop due to devastating flood
in the country. Apart from risky rice crop, the Company is exposed to certain inherent risks and uncertainties,

such as:
K Adverse fluctuations in foreign exchange rates;
K Highinflation rates over the years;
K Changesin Government regulations and political instability; and
K Uncertainties relating COVID-19 on the sales side.

The Company is proactive to minimize the risk to an acceptable level and the likely impacts of aforesaid risks
with internal and external stakeholders.

BRIEF ON RICE GLUCOSE DIVISION

This year, the Rice Glucose Division performed well with significant increases in sales and profitability. On the
domestic side, Raw material prices for Rice Glucose Division increased substantially due to parallel and
unexpected demand from the poultry sector in Pakistan. Overall export sales of Rice Glucose increased as
compared to last year fetching good margins for the company.

BRIEF ON CORN STARCH DIVISION

Alhamdulillah, on 26 August 2022, subsequent to the year-end, the Company achieved commercial production
within 16 months from the date of Groundbreaking without any major incidents or injuries with CAPEX of Rs.
2.1 billion. On September 06, 2022, the Company dispatched its first sale to its customers.

Now, we are looking to produce modified starches covering the needs of specific industries such as Textile
Grade, Paper Grade, Food Grade, and Pharmaceutical Grade. We are hopeful that we will achieve profitability
in the first year of production.

In the medium term, we will pursue an increase in grind capacity to 300 TPD with minimal capital expenditure
additions along with enhancements to our storage capacity.

BRIEF ON BARENTZ PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

The associated company Barentz Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited has witnessed a net profit of Rs. 19.17 million in the
first six-months of its financial year 2022. In the last period, Barentz Pakistan has entered into a distribution
agreement with a Swiss multinational manufacturer of flavors, fragrances and active cosmetic ingredients to
distribute its products in Pakistan which turned out to be favorable for the Company and made a huge
contribution in achieving the overall profitability of the Barentz Pakistan.

We are hopeful that the Company will achieve the overall profitability and recover all its previous losses in the
near future.
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD
The board consists of 7 male and 2 female directors with following composition:

Independent directors
Non-executive directors
Executive directors

Total number of directors

0w~ B

The above directors have beenelected in the Annual General Meeting which was held on October 21, 2021 for
a period of three(3) years starting from October 31, 2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON -EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), 2017, it is ensured that no director takes part in deciding
his own remuneration. We do not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for attending
meetings of the Board. In order to retain the best talent, our remuneration policies are structured in line with
prevailing industry trends and best business practices.

REMUNERATION PACKAGE OF CHIEF EXECUTICE AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration package of Chief Executive and other directors is disclosed in note 42 to the financial
statements.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ATTENDANCE

During the year under review, four (04) Board meetings were held and attendance by each director is given
below:

Members Name Attendance
Mr.Jawed Ali Ghori — Chairman 3
Mr.Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Mr.Faizan Ali Ghori

Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori
Mr. Syed Kamran Rashid
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza

Ms. Umme Habibah

Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah*
Mr. Mohammad Mohsin*

MMM BN DB BW

* Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah retired from the directorship at the end of his term on October 31, 2022 and in his
place Mr. Mohammad Mohsin was electedin the election of directors.

Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings.
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year under review, four (04) Board Audit Committee meetings were held and attendance by each
member is given below;




Members Name Attendance

Mr. Syed Kamran Rashid — Chairman 4
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan 2
Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah* 2
Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori* 1

* Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah retired from the directorship at the end of his term on October 31, 2022 and
therefore, in his place Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori was selectedby the directors to be member of Audit
Committee.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, one (01) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee meeting was held and
attendance by each member is given below;

Members Name Attendance
Ms. Umme Habibah —Chairman 1
Mr.Jawed Ali Ghori 1
Mr.Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori 1
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza 1
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori 1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAMS

Eight (8) of the Directors of the Company are certified as per requirement of Directors’ Training program. The
Directors of the Company are adequately trained to perform their duties and are aware of their powers and
responsibilities under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations of PSX rule book.

DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has put in place an effective mechanism to review its performance on a self-
assessmentbasis. The Board duly provides valuable guidance and ensures effective corporate governance.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants are set to retire this year. As
recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended the re-appointment of M/s
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman as auditors of the Company for year ended June 2022-23 subject to approval
of the shareholders on a fee mutually agreed.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding has been annexed to this report.

The Directors, executives and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions of the Company’s
shares during the year, except those reported in pattern of shareholding.

Executives mean Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary
and other executives (as defined by the Board).
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company’s employees and contractors are expected toconform to its HSE management systems and
processeswhich have been designed keeping in view internationalstandards and best practices.The Company
endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages healthy work
environment and practices. A workplace safety program has been implemented thatactively seeks to reduce
the potential risk of injuries withinthe workplace by conducting safety gap analyses.

TheCompany’s business strategies are also fully aligned withthis vision. In an on-going effort to preserve the
naturalhabitat, the Company has shifted to solar powered energy, thereby minimizing thecarbon footprint of
the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is committed to social and environmental cause of the society and believes in building strong
bonds with all segments of society. In this regard, the Company has consistently shown commitment to make
education more easily available and to provide financial support for children of employees. Another goal is to
make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all patients regardless of their ability to pay.

The Company has made donations amounting toPKR 10.84 million in Ghori Trust, the Trust established to
support and uplift thequality of education in Pakistan and making such qualityeducation accessible to all
without any discrimination, provide healthcare facilities to the underprivileged employees and other local
people as well and to supply rice to multiple organizations like orphanage on monthly basis.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The directors are aware of their responsibility with respect to internal financial controls. Through discussions
with management and auditors (both internal and external), they confirm that adequate controls have been
implemented by the Company.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange in its Listing
Regulations, relevant for the year ended June 30, 2021, have been adopted by the Company and have been
duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed with the report.

In compliance with the provisions of the Code, the Board members are pleased to place the following
statement on record:

¢ The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present its state of affairs fairly,
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

®* The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

« Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

& [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements.

# The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
¢ There are no doubts on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

= There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in

¢ Summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years annexed in this annual report.

the listing regulations.



« Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to and forming part of financial statements.

® Thereis no likelihood of any delayed payments or default in respect of all loans availed by the Company.
INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Since, mid-June 22, Pakistan has received 3 times higher rainfall than its 30 Years average, with some
provinces receiving as much as 5 times. The National Disaster Management Authority has categorized 81
affected districts so-far as’calamity hit’.

About 8.3 million acres of crops have been destroyed according to revised estimates by the Government. 3.4
million acres of total crop area have been damaged in Sindh alone. Official revised estimates suggest losses of
over USD 17-18 billion.

Rice contributes 2.4% to the agriculture sector and 0.5% to the GDP of Pakistan. In FY22, rice was cultivated
over an area of 8.7 million acres, resulting in the production of 9.3 million tons. 35% of production takes place
in Sindh; 55% in Punjab and the rest in KPK and Balochistan. 4.9 million tons of rice was exported earning USD
2.5 billion in valuable foreign exchange for the country. Pakistan is the world’s fourth largest rice exporter. A
drop in domestic production amid the floods may also hit Pakistan’s rice exports market share on the global
scale to suppliers like India.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During the year, the Company has recognized Rs. 1,772 million (2021: Rs.175 million) in Capital work in
progress for the Corn Starch Project. Subsequent to the year end on 26 August 2022, Matco Foods Limited
(MFL) has announced the successful commissioning and commercial operations of its new 72,000 MT per year
Corn Starch Plant, located in Allama Igbal Industrial City, Special Economic Zone Faisalabad, FIEDMC.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Post-pandemic recovery of the global economy has been severely impacted by the ongoing Russia—Ukraine
conflict. Consequently, prices in the international commodity markets soared to an all-time high. The effects
of this unprecedented inflation and energy crisis are being faced around the world, leading to a mixed global
economic outlook with risks of a recession. Monetary tightening measures are being deployed across all major
global economies to curtail demand-led inflation, which may eventually lead to a decline in economic activity.

The volatility in global markets has also impacted Pakistan’s economy, which continued to demonstrate cycles
of ‘boom and bust’. An impressive GDP growth rate of almost 6% for FY'2021-22 was overshadowed by
ballooning twin fiscal and current account deficits. This combined with an uncertain political environment and
high international fuel and commodity prices, exerted immense pressure on foreign exchange reserves
resulting in a significant depreciation of the Pakistani Rupee against the US dollar, which in turn contributed to
high inflation. Long-standing structural weaknesses of the economy and low productivity growth pose risks to
a sustained recovery. To control consumption, the State Bank of Pakistan increased the policy rate by 800 bps
since September 2021 including the ERF rate, along with various measures to curb imports.

On the fiscal side, the main challenge would be to squeeze out space for relief and rehabilitation costs along
with managing IMF expectations. Whereas the external outlook seems stable despite higher CAD expectations
and some pressure on the Rupee.

In this context, the Company will continue its focus on curtailing costs, while driving forward with enhanced
efficiencies, increased throughput, and aggressive sales efforts during this challenging time.

AnnualReport 2022
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RETIREMENT FUND

The company is maintaining unfunded gratuity, during the year, the Company have made a provision of
Rupees 43.93 million on the basis of actuarial valuation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of all related party transactions have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.

TRADING IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Following trade in the shares of the Company were carried out by the Directors, Executives and Related

Parties:

Director/Related Party

Number of Shares

Nature of Transaction

Ms. Umme Habibah

2,000 Buy
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori 320,000 Buy
Dr. Tarig Ghori 24,054,896 Transmitted to Nominee due to death
Mrs. Sadaf Tariqg 24,054,896 Transmitted from Nominator due to death

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the hard work and dedication shown
by the management and the employees of the Company throughout the year. On behalf of the Boardof
Directors and employees of the Company, we express our gratitude and appreciation to all our valued
customers, distributors, stockists, dealers and bankers for the trust and confidence reposed in the Company
and look forward to their continued support and participation in achieving the growth of the Company in the

coming years.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\U@y
Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Director

Faizan Ali Ghori
Director




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

Rupe Rupees Rup: Rup: Rupe
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Autherised capital 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980 1,165,720,940 874,290,940
Capital reserve 680,467,220 680,467,220 680,467,220 680,467,220 739,367,162 318,382,823
Unappropriated profit 2,723,394,977 2,287,144,791 2,241,380,358 2,157,355,170 1,676,797,324 1,378,821,835

4,627,869,177 4,191,618,991 4,145,854,558 4,061,829,370 3,581,885,426 2,571,495,598
Surplus on revaluation of property, 2,433,901,302 2,459,499,494 2,622,193,143 445,144,929 546,781,614 571,665,218

plant and equipment
Unrealized (loss) revaluation on investment

at fair value through OCI (3,390,337) - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 7,058,380,142 5,651,118 485 5,768, 047,701 4,506,574,295 4,128,667,040 3,143,160, 816

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances-secured 1,582,432,193 492,910,736 396,447,541 265,191,113 246,556,904 322,791,864
Liabilities against assets subject to finance
lease 175,602,488 126,630,601 120,577,441 44,763,773 29,284,420 17,162,341
Deferred liability- staff gratuity 251,713,331 221,515,463 205,636,300 146,803,371 143,634,827 158,304,034
Deferred grant - 952,280 2,317,051
Deferred income - - - 265,842 532,508 995,175
Total non-current liabilities 2,009,748,012 842,009,080 725,378,333 457,028,099 420,108,659 495,253 414
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 671,152,778 519,888,056 1,015,172,075 248,077,697 225,928,452 332,612,662
Advance from customers- secured 22,612,550 35,747,606 51,579,051 58,666,454 24, 883,671 193,592,016
Accrued mark-up 120,739,263 57,877,929 56,305,363 54,596,362 48,767,428 46,056,163
Due to related party 10,555,958 7,865,756 6,970,508 - - -
Shortterm borrowings-secured 6,979,644,808 5,533,005,240 5,115,897,038 4,139,227,403 4,081,779,753 3,886,835,593
Current portion of deferred grant 1,561,352 6,176,233 3,807,127 - - -
Current portion of long term finances-
secured 172,857,144 175,076,206 57,673,116 86,709,085 84,029,706 95,733,247
Current portion of lease liabilities to
finance lease 27,634,388 23,644,793 21,457,206 13,094,530 12,226,289 7,999,276
Unpaid Dividend 783,668 787,654 13,555,468 485,804 761,095 -
Taxation-net 5,131,962 - - - 21,260,847 28,936,787
Total current liabilities 8,012,673,871 5,360,069,473 5,312, 857,352 4,610,961,775 4,499,637,241 4,552,765, 744
Total liabilities 10,022,421,883 7.202,078,553 7,068,235, 685 5,067,589,874 4,519,745 500 5,052,019, 158
Conti ies and itments
Total equity and liabilities 17,080,802,025 13,853,197,038 13,836, 283,386 5,574,564,173 9,048,412,940 8,235,179,974
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,569,614,069 4,907,531,000 4,538,035,706 2,620,484,642 2,168,585, 255 2,141,308, 121
Right-of-use assets 235,566,923 171,532,871 159,540,356 83,094,097 - -
Intangible assets - - - - - -
Long term deposits 16,759,174 15,322,284 12,578,078 9,938,831 13,048,793 10,990,523
Long term investment 62,738,015 55,582,707 55,582,707 31,082,707 31,082,707 23,582,747
Total non-current assets 6,884,678,181 5,151, 368,862 5,166, 136,847 2,744, 600,277 2,212,718, 755 2,175,881, 791
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 86,091,117 70,444,301 45,022,530 23,107,682 18,727,268 13,829,554
stock in trade 7,662,053,984 7,171,280,359 5,642,523,350 5,204, 578,592 5,138,980, 796 5,240,450, 564
Trade debts- considered good 1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344 1,334,500,510 941,093,236 674,463,623 541,532,773
Short-term Loans and advances 155,031,810 103,660,064 118,619,714 355,385,133 83,732,051 58,171,589
Trade deposits and shortterm 10,683,047 10,130,679 8,164,088 5,268471 10,843,438 8,973,160
prepaym ents
Short-term investm ent 4,254,742 1,579,910 263,440 255,362 500,000 500,000
Other receivables 105,056,731 166,964,553 171,694,202 188,843,920 85,369,946 84,745,163
Advance tax- net 51,046,611 31,683482 51,068,680 33,050,458 - -
Accured markup on term deposit - - - - - -
certificates
Cash and bank balances 303,566,417 104, 960,484 298,290,025 78,380,542 823,079,063 111,054, 980
Total current assets 10,196,123,844 B,701,828,176 B,670,146,539 5,830, 363,896 5,835,696, 185 5,059,298, 183
Total assets 17,080,802,025 13,853,197,038 13,836,283,386 5,574,564,173 5,048,412, 540 8,235,179,574
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

Sales - net

Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance cost

Other income

Exchange gain - net

Provision for worker's welfare fund

Provision for worker's profit participation fund

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

BASIC EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

12,375,920,766  10,556,620,789  11,289,961,893  7,863,052,901  6,722,731,288  6,134,424,678
(11,056,103,781) (9,909,427,766) (10,273,971,964) (6,948,543,163) (5,862,040,117) (5,169,060,783
1,319,816,985 647,193,023 1,015,989,929 914,509,738 860,691,171 965,363,895
(229,279,801)  (185,997,143)]  (207,020,855)|  (167,111,014)|  (153,476,336)| (291,888,742)
(356,460,731)]  (309,688,284)]  (271,369,378)]  (240,332,519)]  (198,099318)] (175,231,633)
(585,740,532)  (495,685,427)  (478390,233)  (407,443,533)  (351,575,654)  (467,120375
734,076,453 151,507,596 537,599,696 507,066,205 509,115,517 498,243 520
(387,872,994)  (272,830,931)  (350,287,990)  (275503,177)  (239,704,316) (211,904,903
19,789,701 77,029,758 56,513,137 106,655,675 17,849,819 36,616,630
202,334,249 65,215,796 14,015,389 152,934,910 72,858,009 34,999,406
(10,622,942) (391,070) (7,113,214) (7,270,451) (7,066,909) (3,073,894)
(26,557,356) (977,674) (12,218,347) (23,388,267) (15,263,606) (12,836,230'
531,147,111 19,553,475 238,508,671 460,494,895 337,788,513 342,044,529
(108,731,143) (80,420,184) (86,580,493) (46,658,608) (29,495,558) (73,075,620'
422,415,968 (60,866,709) 151,928,178 413,836,287 308,292,955 268,968,909
3.45 {0.50) 1.24 3.38 2.96 3.08
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA FOR SIX YEARS FROM 2016-17 TO 2021-22

Profttability and Operating Ratios Nn-22 2020-11 2019-20 2018-19 201718 2016-17
Gross profit Percent 10.66% 6.13% 9.00% 11.63% 12.80% 15.74%
Net profit to sales Percent 341% 0.58% 135% 5.26% 4.5%% 4.38%
EBITDA margins to sales Percent 8.01% 3.89% 6.99% 8.62% 9.99% 10.36%
Operating leverage Percent 8.01% 3.89% £.99% 8.62% 9.99% 10.36%
Return on equity Percent 5.98% 0.92% 2.24% 9.18% TAT% 8.56%
Return on capital employed Percent 8.09% 2.02% 7.17% 10.21% 11.19% 13.68%
Current Times 127 137 137 148 138 132
Quick / Acld test ratio Times 0.26 0.18 0.26 0.22 0.19 0.14
Cash to current liabilities Times 0.04 0.02 0.05 oM 0.04 0.02
Cash flows from operatins to sales

[Operating cash flow / Net sales) -3% -5% -4% -2% 2% 7%
Inventory turnaver Times 148 142 172 134 113 1.06
No. of days in inventory Days 246.62 25704 21221 27233 12301 344.34
Debtors tumnaver Times 8.56 B.89 9.92 9.7 11.06 13.25
No. of days In receivables Days 42,15 41.06 36.79 37.51 33.00 21.55
Credltors turnover Times 18,57 1291 16.27 29,32 20.99 18.59
No. of days In paybales Days 19.66 28.27 22.43 12.45 17.35 18.63
Total assats turnover Times 0.72 0.76 0.82 0.82 0.74 0.74
Fixed Assets tumover Times 1.88 215 i} .00 3.10 2.86
Operating Cyde 28877 298,10 229,00 309.90 356.01 Eral: ]
Investmet / Market Ratios N1-22 2020-11 2019-20 2018-19 201718 2016-17
Earning per share Rs. {0.50) {0.50) 124 3.38 296 3.08
Cash Dividend per share Rs. 045 0.45 0.70 0.40 0.30 0.4118
Dhidend % 4.509% 4,50% 7.00% 4,00% 3.00% 4,12%
Market value per share as at lune 30 Rs. 4105 41.05 19.06 27.02 3758 -
Price earning {Marketvalue priceper  Times (82.10} (82.10) 15.37 7.9 12.70 -
Price to book ratio Times o7 0.76 034 0.73 106 -
Dhidend Yield % 1.10% 110% 3.67% 1.48% 0.80% -
Dividend payout % {0.50} {0.90) 056 0.12 0.10 013
Dhddend cover Times (L11) {L11) 177 8.45 9.87 7.48
Banus shares issued Rs. - - - 58,286,050 - -
Bonus per share % - - - 5% - -
surplus on revaluation of property, plant

and equipment Rs. 37.78 34.25 33.87 33.18 30.73 29,41
on revalugtion of property, plant and

equipment Rs. 57.67 54.34 55.29 35.82 3542 35.95
Capital Structure Ratios 201-2 2020-1 2019-20 2018-19 201718 2016-17
Ananclal leverage Times 142 1.08 104 112 119 162
Delst to Equity % 24:76 14: 86 11:85 11:89 11:89 16:84
Interest cover Times 189 0.56 1.53 184 2.12 235
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Praperty, Plant &
Equipment

Right-of-use assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Total Assets

Shareholders' Equity

Non-Current Labiliies

Currant Liablltes

Total Sharshalders'
Equity & LiabMitles

6,569,614,069  38.5% 490783L000 354% 453035206 SN 2620484602  274% 2,168,585255 24.0% 2,141,306,121 26.0%
285,566,923 14% 171,582,871 12% 159,040,855 12% B3,094,087 D.9% - - - -
79,457,189 0.5% 71,504,991 0.5% 68,150,785 0.5% 4103155 0.4% 44,131,500 0.5% 3573670 04N
10,196,123,844  59.7% SLEI76 52BN  B6ML1AGS539 627X 6B830,363.M86 713% 6835656185 755% 6059208183 73.6X
17,080,802,095 100%  19,853,197,0%8 100% 13,806,283,385 100%  9,574,964,173 100% 9,048,412.940 100% 8235175574  100%
7058380141 413% 6651118485 480N G76,047,701 489X  ASOBSTAINS  47.1%  4,128,667,040 45.6% 3,143,160,816 38.2%
2,000,748,012  11.8% 842,009,080 6.1% 725,371,333 52% 457,028,009 48% 420108658  4.6% @ 499253414 61%
45.9% 45.9% 7 45.8% 775 40.2% 4499637241 49.7% 4552765744  55.0%
17,080,802,025 100%  13,853,197,038 100% 13,336,293,385 100%  9,574,964,173 100% 90484120940 100X B235179.574 100%

Net Sales

Cost of Products Sokd

Gross profit

QOperating Profit

Praftt bafore taxation

Praftt for the year

12375,820,766  100.00%

11,066,103, 701  -89.34%

1319015085 10.66%

TB4 076453

531,147,111

422,415,968

5.93%

4.29%

341%

10,556,620,789 100.00%

5,909,407,766 -93.87%

647,193,023  6.13%
ISLSM7,506  144%

155ATS  0.19%
160,066,709) -0.58%

11,206,961,893 100.00%  7,863,052,%01

10.273,971,864

1,015,09,929

537,539,696

151,928,178

-9LO00%

476%

11%

6,598,543,163

914,509,738

507,066,205

10000% 6,722,731,288 100.0M 6,134,424,678 100.0%

-88.37% 5862040117 -87.2% 5169,060,783 -84.9%

11.63%

B.45%

5.86%

5.26%

850,691,171 12B%
508,115517 7.6%
337,788513  5.0%
308,292,555 5%

965,363,895 15.7%
498243500 B.1%
342,044,520  5.6%

269,968,509 4%




HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

, Pl
::L’;:: . ant & 5,569,614,068 % 4,907,931,000 AKX ASR0S5ME A% ZEXAMGER 21X 21EBSA5JS5 1%  2,141,308121 20K
[ ar— 235,566,923 % 17.532871 7%  1Sa9e0356 2 02%  EL0SA0N7  100% - - - -
Othar Nan-Currant 79,457,188 1% 71,904,091 5% 68,160,785  &8%  ALM@LSM 7% 44131500 26% 34573670 -13%
Currunt Acats 10,196,123, 88 % EIDLEEATS D% BSME52S 7% GENMEA96 DX GEISEIGIES 1% 6055,290,183 19%
Total Assats 17,080,802,025 a%  BEs3197.08 0% 13EEImINE 5N SSMSSIE  BX  BMBALZSD  10% E2351799M 19%
Stmrehaldars’
Equity 7,058,380, 142 6 6E5L11Ka8s % BTEAONLI0L S0% ASOSOTAISS 0K 4120667000 31% 3143160816 5%
MNan-Current
Laolties 2,000,748,042 139% 242,000,080 16% 7IEA7AAa 5O%  ABTO2A009 0N 420108650 -16%  495,253414  1S4%
CurrentLiabllides  B012,873,871 6% 6260080473 DX BMLMEZAED  35% AMI00ELTIS 2% AM00637241 2%  ASOQLTESTAE 4%
Totad
Shareholders’ 17,000,802,025 2% 18358107,088 0K IASARIERSAE ABK SSMMSOAITE AN SMBALISAD 108 8295179974 19X
Equity & LinhBitins

Net Sales 12,375,920, 766 17.23% 10556,6,789 5508 11289961891 4358% 7E,0EL9M 16.96X 65722711288 10% 6134474678 10%
Cost of Products
Soid 11,056,103, 781 11576 909427, 756 -355% 10I7TISTLe6A  A785% GOMLSOLIE 1R53X 5862040117  13%  5,165.060,783 5%
Gromx profit 1,319,815, 985 103.93% 47,193,023 -3630% LMSSESSX 1110% SIASM7M 65K BERAEILIFL -11%  965,3E3M95  51%
Dparating Prafit 734,076,453 384.51% 1S1507,506  -7LE2N 537,509,696 G02%  S07,066205 -DADN  509,115517 2% 458,243,520  155%
Pratftt bafars

on 531,147,111 2616.30% 19553475 -SLEDN 2138500,671 -AE21%  AGOASANSS 3533%  3377EAS1S -1% MIDMA5X BN
Prafit far the yasr 422,415,968 -794.00% {S0,E56,709] -140.05% 1SL938178 -5320% M EISZE7 342X 308292555  15%  2ERSGRI09  GFESM
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding

As at June 30, 2022

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
DRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE(S} AND MINOR CHILDREN
JAWED ALl GHORI 1 23,964,021 19.58
KHALID SARFARAZ GHORI 1 24,031,271 19.62
FAIZAN ALl GHORI 1 843,250 0.69
SAFWAN KHALID GHORI 1 5,250 0.00
NAHEED JAWED 1 448 875 0.37
NUZHAT KHALID GHORI 1 448,875 0.37
FARYAL MURTAZA 1 500 0.00
MURTAZA MAHFOOZ TALIB 1 336,321 0.28
UMME HABIBAH 2 2,500 0.00
SYED KAMRAN RASHID 1 7,029 0.01
ABDUL SAMAD KHAN 1 500 0.00
MCHAMMAD MCHSIN 1 500 0.00
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES 1 18,360,109 15.00
2 389,326 0.32
BANKS DEVELOPMENTS FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING 0 }
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS -
INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 373,000 0.30
IODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 3 197,000 0.16
a. Local 1768 49,694,893 40.60
b. Forelgn 10 24,025 0.02
Foreign Companies 0 - -
Others 18 3,272,953 2.67
Totals 1816 122,400,698 100.00
SHARE HOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE Shares Held
INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION 18,360,109 15.00
JAWED ALl GHORI 23,964,021 19.58
KHALID SARFARAZ GHORI 24,031,271 19.63
SADAF TARIQ 24,054,896 19.65




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Pattern of Sharehokding
As at June 30, 2022

ALl GHORI 23,964,021 19.58

03277-80043 JAWED

1
2 0327780045  KHALD SARFARAZ GHORI 24,031,271 19.63
3 0327780034  FAIZAN ALl GHORI 843,250 .69
4 01826-107011  SAPWAN KHALID GHORI 5250 0.00
5 0327780052  NAHEED JAWED 448,875 0.37
6 03277-80048 NUZHAT KHALID GHORI 448875 037
7 0327799607  FARYAL MURTAZA 500 6.00
B 0327788198  MURTAZA MAHFODZ TALIB 336,821 029
3 16253-13790 UMME HABIBAH 500 o.00
10 10629-221452  UMME HABIBAH 2,000 0.00
11 03277-8352 SYED KAMRAN RASHID 7029 o.01
12 10629-114697  ABDIJL SAMAD KHAN 500 .00
13 0327785834  MOHAMMAD MOHSIN 500 0.00
13 50,088,352 4052
1 00547-8404 INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORFORATION 18,360,109 15.00
1 18,860,109 15.00
NIT and ICP
1 12120-28 CDE - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 234,663 0.19
2 14502-21 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 154,663 0.13
2 B89, 826 032

ons, Non-Banking Anancial Institutions

Insurance Companles
1 180B5-28 EFL LIFE ASSURANCE LUMITED 373,000 Q.30
1 373,000 0.30
1 1447225 CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 107,500 0.09
2 16030-25 CDC - TRUSTEE AWT STOCK FUND 76,000 0.06
3 17541-22 CDC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDNCATED EQUITY FUND 13,500 0.01
3 157,000 .16
1 D1826-131037  FAISAL SHAHZAD 500 0.00
2 03277-106329  SAIJAD AHMAD 1,000 0.00
3 03277-106523 MUHAMMAD ASHFAQ 3,500 0.00
4 03277-110598  Zafar Alam 5,000 0.00
5 03277-112288  MAHAM KASHIF 5,000 0.00
B 03277-112330  TAHIR MAHMOOD FARDOCUI 1,000 0.00
7 03277-113058 Muhammad Anzak Aleem 500 0.00
a 03277-1134%0  Khalld Azlz 6,500 0.01
9 Q3277-117438  RAZA AL KHAN 500 Q.00
10 16253-8071 MUHAMMAD BASIT ANIS 525 0.00
10 24,005 0.02
Forelgn Companles
1 Nl

1 1073 BONUS FRACTION [B-1) 53 G.00
2 03277-50590  TECHNOLDGY LINKS {PVT.) LIMITED 2,100 0.00
3 0327794268  AL-RAHIM TRADING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LMITED 75,000 0.06
4 0352557537 SHAMALIK BROTHERS (PVT) LTD 2,100 0.00
-] 04085-24 MRA SECURITIES LMITED 70,000 0.06
B D4085-1119456 H. H. K.SECURITIES {PRIVATE) LMITED 356,000 0.03
7 04226-26 ZILLION CAMTAL SECURITIES {PYT) LTD. 3675 .00
B 06684-29 MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANAN | SECURITIES LIMITED 1,825,000 149
] D5684-97B43 TRUSTEES-E A CONSLLTING [PVT) LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 50,000 C.04
10 11544-6959 UNITED TOWEL EXPORTERS (PVT.) UMITED 9,000 0.01
11 12690-1192 WELLCOME PAKISTAN LIMITED PRCAVIDENT FUND 3525 000
12 1411827 ASDA SECURITIES {FVT.) LTD. 10,000 0.01
13 15198-28 INSIGHT SECURITIES {PVT.) LTD 76,000 0.06
14 16B57-26 MRA SECURITIES LMITED - MF 126,000 G.10
15 16859-22 MOHAMMAD MUNIR MCHAMMAD AHMED KHANAN| SECURITIES LTD. - MF 966,500 079
16 16923-27 M. U. A. SECURITIES [PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 1,000 0.00
17 1#)53-22 ORIENTAL SECURITIES {PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 10,000 0.0l
13 17508-26 TRUST SECURITIES & BROKERAGE LIMITED - MF 7,000 0.01
18 3,272,953 .67
L o 6
e e ————————— )
Total 1816 127,400,698 100,00
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding

As at June 30, 2022
Sr.No  # Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
1 338 1 to 100 10346
2 192 101 to 500 75586
3 538 501 to 1000 338629
4 482 1001 to 5000 1030018
5 94 5001 to 10000 715884
[ 51 10001 to 15000 619075
7 23 15001 to 20000 410450
8 23 20001 to 25000 538975
9 6 25001 to 30000 173500
10 2 30001 to 35000 89375
11 8 35001 to 40000 305207
12 3 40001 to 45000 129603
13 4 45001 to 50000 197525
14 1 50001 to 55000 54500
15 1 55001 to 60000 57000
16 2 65001 to 70000 140000
17 2 70001 to 75000 150000
18 4 75001 to 80000 308500
19 1 85001 to 90000 85000
20 1 90001 to 95000 95000
21 6 95001 to 100000 598500
22 1 100001 to 105000 105000
23 2 105001 to 110000 217000
24 1 110001 to 115000 112556
25 1 115001 to 120000 120000
26 2 125001 to 130000 256000
27 1 130001 to 135000 131275
28 1 140001 to 145000 145000
29 1 150001 to 155000 154663
30 1 175001 to 180000 176000
31 2 195001 to 200000 400000
32 1 215001 to 220000 215500
33 1 230001 to 235000 234663
34 1 265001 to 270000 267500
35 1 275001 to 280000 276000
36 1 335001 to 340000 336821
37 1 370001 to 375000 373000
38 2 445001 to 450000 897750
39 1 535001 to 540000 536000
40 1 840001 to 845000 843250
41 1 915001 to 920000 915500
42 1 965001 to 970000 966500
43 1 985001 to 950000 950000
44 1 1820001 to 1825000 1825000
45 1 2210001 to 2215000 2215000
46 1 2745001 to 2750000 2748500
47 1 9995001 to 10000000 10000000
48 1 18360001 to 18365000 18360109
49 1 23960001 to 23965000 23964021
50 1 24030001 to 24035000 24031271
51 1 24480001 to 24485000 24480146
1816 122400698




Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Year Ended: June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1 Thetotal number of directors arenine as per the following:
a. Male: 7
b. Female: 2
2. The composition ofthe Board is as follows:
Category Names
a) Independent Syed Kamran Rasheed
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan
Ms. Umme Habibah
Mr. Mohammad Mohsin
b)Other Non-executive Directors Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza
c) Executive Director Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori
Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori*
The election of director was due on October 31,2021 therefore the election was held on the date
of Annual General Meeting and the above directors were elected for a period of three (3) years.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies
where applicable).

4, The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
takento disseminateit throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies ofthe Company. Acomplete record of particulars of significant policies along with the da tes
on whichthey were approved oramended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Actand the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting ofthe Board.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
Directorsinaccordance withthe Actandthese Regulations.

9. The Board remained fully compliant with the provision with regard to their directors' training
program. Eight directors out of nine directors already completed the Director Training Program,
remaining one director will complete the requirement within the stipulated time as per the
requirement of the Code.

10. The Board has approved appointment ofChief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements ofthe Regulations.

11. ChiefFinancial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements befor ethe
approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed the following Committees that arerequired underthe Code. The Committees
comprise of members as given below:

Syed Kamran Rasheed — Chairman
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan

Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori

Mr. Mohammad Mohsin

HR and Remuneration Committee Ms. Umme Habibah — Chairman
Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori

Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori

Audit Committee

During the meeting held on September 07, 2022, the resolution was passed to replace the Mr. Safwan
Khalid Ghori with Mr. Mohammad Mohsin as member of Audit Committee from upcoming meetings.

a) Risk Management Committee: (No separate committee formed, as its issues are deliberated in
Board meetings)

b) Nomination Committee (No separate committee formed, as its issues are deliberated in Board
meetings)
13. Theterms ofreference ofthe aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to

the committees for compliance.

14. Thefrequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a. Audit Committee —04 Meetings were held during FY 2020-21
b. HRand Remuneration Committee—01 Meeting were held during FY 2020-21
15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit is considered

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and

procedures of the Company.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistanand registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and alltheir partnersarein
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan that they and the partners ofthe firm
involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary or Director ofthe Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

The Company continued to present the details of all related party transactions as disclosed in the
financial statements before the Board Audit Committee and upon their recommendation to the
Board for review and approval. The Company also has in place a process to identify the related
parties and related transactions entered into with them. However, full compliance of the
requirements as laid down in Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 is dependent on clarification
from SECP with respect to definition of related parties.

We confirm that all other requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 ofthe Regulations
have been complied with.

We confirm that the Company has complied with respect to all other material requirements of the
Regulations.

Jawed Ali Ghori
Chairman

Karachi

Dated: September 07, 2022
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Independent Auditors'
Review Report

To the members of Matco Foods Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Matco Foods
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 ofthe Regulations.

Theresponsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors ofthe Com pany. Our

responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's

compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the

Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting andinternal control systems sufficient toplan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
Regulations as applicabletothe Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Gtond= Tl ﬁ«{»— Qadoese,
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: September 27, 2022
UDIN: CR202210154eTb1vqrwX




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Matco Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Matco Foods
Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position
as atJune 30, 2022, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity,
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement
of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit and
other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period.
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

S. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Valuation of Stock in Trade As part of our audit, we have
performed the following audit
As at June 30, 2022, the Company held | procedures:

stock in trade amounting to Rs. 7,662
million (2021: Rs. 7,171 million) as
disclosed in note 24 of accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements.
The stock in trade account for 75.1%
(2021: 82.4%) of the total current
assets. The value of stock is based on
the purchase price using weighted
average method. Therefore, the
Company is exposed to the risk of
valuation of stock in trade as a result of
volatility in prices.

The Company is required to measure its
stock in trade at the lower of cost and
net realizable value (NRV). There is an
element of judgement involved relating
to the valuation, which is required for
the estimation of the NRV and
allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete stock in trades. Such
estimation is made after taking into
consideration  factors  such  as
movement in prices, current and
expected future market demands and
pricing competitions.

This was the key audit mater because of
its materiality and significance in terms
of judgments involved in estimating the
NRV of underlying inventories.

e Attended the stock counts at
locations to observe the stock
count process and
evaluate the condition of stock in
trade.

e Tested the valuation method used
by the management in valuation of
stock in trade.

e Compared on sample basis specific
purchases with underlying
supporting
documents.

e Evaluated the appropriateness of
the basis and processes used by
management in determining the
net realizable value of
stock in trade.

® Performed testing on sample of
items to assess the NRV of the
inventories held and evaluating the
adequacy of provision for slow
moving and obsolete stock.

e Reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures on stock in trade in the
unconsolidated financial
statements.




Information other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Boards of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
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economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of




the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement
of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement
of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Khalid Aziz.

G Vipichss Hu- | N

Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: September 27, 2022
UDIN: AR202210154BRdyvPm01
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Capital reserve

Unappropriated profit

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of tax

Unrealized (loss) revaluation on investment
at fair value through OCI

Total shareholders' equity
Non-current liabilities

Long-term finances-secured
Lease liabilities

Deferred liabilities

Deferred grant

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Advance from customers - secured
Accrued mark-up

Due to related party

Short-term borrowings-secured
Taxation-net

Current portion of deferred grant

Current portion of long term finances-secured

Current portion of lease liabilities
Unpaid dividend

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

Note

6.1

6.2

10
11
12

13
14
15
16
12

10
17

18

2022 2021
Rupees
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
1,224,006,980 1,224,006,98
680,467,220 680,467,22
2,723,394,977 2,287,144,79
2,433,901,302 2,459,499,494
(3,390,337) -
7,058,380,142 6,651,118,485
1,582,432,19 492,910,736
175,602,488 126,630,601
251,713,33 221,515,463
- 952,280
2,009,748,012 842,009,080
671,152,778 519,888,056
22,612,550 35,747,606
120,739,263 57,877,929
10,555,958 7,865,756
6,979,644,808 5,533,005,240
5,131,962 -
1,561,352 6,176,233
172,857,144 175,076,206
27,634,388 23,644,793
783,668 787,654
8,012,673,871 6,360,069,473
10,022,421,883 7,202,078,553
17,080,802,025 13,853,197,038

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

2N X L
X )

Faizan Ali éhori

Director




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 19 6,569,614,069 4,907,931,000
Right-of-use assets 20 235,566,923 171,532,871
Intangible assets 21 - -
Long-term deposits 16,759,174 16,322,284
Long-term investments 22 62,738,015 55,582,707
Total non-current assets 6,884,678,181 5,151,368,862
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 23 86,091,117 70,444,301
Stock in trade 24 7,662,053,984 7,171,280,359
Trade debts 25 1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344
Loans and advances 26 155,031,810 103,660,064
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 27 10,683,047 10,130,679
Short-term investment 28 4,254,742 1,579,910
Sales tax refundable 29 105,056,731 123,598,158
Due from related parties 30 51,046,611| 43,366,395
Taxation - net - 31,683,482
Cash and bank balances 31 303,566,417 104,960,484
Total current assets 10,196,123,844 8,701,828,176
Total assets 17,080,802,025 13,853,197,038

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

2N X L
X a ’J

Faizan Ali Ghori

Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note

Sales - net 32
Cost of sales 33
GROSS PROFIT
Selling and Distribution expenses 34
Administrative expenses 35
Finance cost 36
Other income 37
Exchange gain - net 38
Provision for worker's welfare fund 13.1
Provision for worker's profit participation fund 13.2
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense 39
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED 44

2022 2021
Rupees
12,375,920,766 10,556,620,789
(11,056,103,781)  (9,909,427,766)
1,319,816,985 647,193,023
(229,279,801) (185,997,143)
(356,460,731) (309,688,284)
(585,740,532) (495,685,427)
734,076,453 151,507,596
(387,872,994) (272,830,931)
19,789,701 77,029,758
202,334,249 65,215,796
(10,622,942) (391,070)
(26,557,356) (977,674)
531,147,111 19,553,475
(108,731,143) (80,420,184)
422,415,968 (60,866,709
3.45 (0.50)

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

2N X L
X )

Faizan Ali Ghori

Director




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 422,415,968 (60,866,709)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

items that may be reclassified
subsequently to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss - -

ftems that will not to be reclassified
subsequently to the unconsofidated
statement of profit or foss

- Remeasurement of defined benefits obligation 19.:2.5 (11,763,974) (982,193)

- Unrealized loss on revaluation of investment
at fair value through OCI during the year (3,390,337) =

Other comprehensive loss (15,154,311) (982,193)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR 407,261,657 (61,848,902)

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statement

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui Faizan Ali éhon‘
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 19
Depreciation on right of use assets

Exchange gain - net 38
Short-term investment

Provision for slow moving stock

Finance cost 36
Provision for staff gratuity 11.2
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 37

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - considered good

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments
Sales tax refundable

Due from related parties

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Due to related party

Deferred grant

Advances from customers

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Finance cost paid

Income taxes paid

Gratuity paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure including capital work in progress
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term investment

Long-term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

11.2

Balance carried forward

2022 2021
Rupees
531,147,111 19,553,475
226,967,664 232,491,504
30,008,456 26,925,392
(203,480,971) (64,232,621)
(2,674,832) (116,470)
594,383 186,342
401,566,347 284,806,019
43,929,752 32,336,550
(2,299,686) (48,814,578)
494,611,113 463,582,138
1,025,758,224 483,135,613
(15,646,816) (25,421,771)
(491,368,008) (| (528,943,351)
(574,880,792) 358,591,962
(51,371,746) 14,959,650
(552,368) (1,966,591)
18,541,427 42,791,173
(7,680,216) (38,061,524)
(1,122,958,519) (178,050,452)
151,264,722 || (495,284,019)
2,690,202 894,848
(5,567,161) 1,004,335
(13,135,056) (16,231,445)
135,252,707  (509,616,281)
38,052,412  (204,531,120)
(338,705,013)(| (271,258,365)
(82,058,315) (72,358,944)
(15,353,244) (6,115,622)
(398,064,160) (554,264,051)
(1,908,382,235)|] (379,010,425)
9,814,000 216,678,100
(10,545,645) -
(436,890) (3,744,206)
(1,909,550,770) (166,076,531)
(2,307,614,930) (720,340,582)




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note  —--smeemccmceeen. Rupees------==s-uuu-

Balance brought forward (2,307,614,930) (720,340,582
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term finances - net 1,087,302,395 213,866,285
Lease rentals paid during the year (28,863,836) (33,932,143)
Dividend paid (3,986) (67,848,128)
Short-term borrowings - net 1,446,639,568 417,108,202
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,505,074,141 529,194,216
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

during the year 197,459,211 (191,146,366)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning

of year 104,960,484 297,090,025
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 1,146,722 (983,175)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year 31 303,566,417 104,960,484

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

,..--\;:_"_ ‘:_'__A*J_F
Faizan Ali Ghori
Director

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Surplus on Unrealized
Issued, Capital revaluation of (loss)
ital reserve ;
subscribed and P Unappropriated || property, plant || revaluation of ol
paid up share profit and equipment - || investment at ota
capital Share premium net of tax fair value to
reserve ocl

Balance as at July 01, 2020 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 2,241 380,358 2,622,193,143 = 6,768,047,701
Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year - - (60,866,709) - - (60,866,709)

Other comprehensive loss - - (982,193) - - (982,193)

Total comprehensive loss - - (61,848,902) - (61,848,902)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of

fixed assets on account of incremental

depreciation net of tax - (note 8) - - 26,422,570 (26,422,570) - -

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment on account

of disposal of land and building net of tax - - 136,271,079 (136,271,079) & -
Transactions with owners

Dividend paid @ Re. 0.45 per share - - (55,080,314) - - (55,080,314)
Balance as on June 30, 2021 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 2,287,144,791 2,459,499,494 5 6,651,118,485
Balance as on July 01, 2021 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 2,287,144,791 2,459,499,494 & 6,651,118,485
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - 422,415,968 - - 422,415,968

Other comprehensive loss - - (11,763,974) - (3,390,337) (15,154,311)

Total comprehensive income - - 410,651,994 - (3,390,337) 407,261,657

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of

fixed assets on account of incremental

depreciation net of tax - (note 8) " - 23,666,099 (23,666,099) - _

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment on account

of disposal of land net of tax i = 1,932,093 (1,932,003) 2 =
Balance as on June 30, 2022 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 2,723,394,977 2,433,901,302 (3,390,337) 7,058,380,142

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

Faizan Ali

Ghori
Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1

3.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Matco Foods Limited, ('‘the Company') was incorporated on April 14, 1990 in Karachi as a private
limited company underthe repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now: Companies Act, 2017). The
Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on February 13, 2018. The principal activity
of the Company is to carry out the business of processing and export of rice, rice glucose, rice
protein and pink salt, masala and kheer. The registered office of the Company is situated at B-1/A,
S.I.T.E.-ll Phasel, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi; whereas the factories of the Company are
situated at (i) Plot A-15 & 16, SITE-II, Super highway Karachi; (i) A-21, SITE-II, Super highway K arachi;
(iii) G-205, SITE-I1, Super highway Karachiand (iv) 50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke, Tehsil Kamonki, District
Gujranwala.

The Company has 100% ownership in JKT General Trading FZE (subsidiary) a United Arab Emirates
based company which is situated at P.O.Box 123347, Sharjah - U.A.E, and registered with
Government of Sharjah. The business ofthe subsidiary is purchasing and selling of processed rice.

The Company has 99.99% ownership in Matco Marketing (Private) Limited (subsidiary) which was
incorporated on June 16, 2016 with authorized and paid-up share capitalof PKR 10,000,000and PKR
7,500,000 respectively. The subsidiary is situated at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super Highway Indust rial
Area, Karachi. However, no business activity has been carried out by the subsidiary since its
incorporation.

The Company has started a new business venture of Corn Starch at Plot # 53, S.E.Z, Allama Igbal
Industrial City in Faisalabad.

These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries
and jointventureare stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL POSITION
ANDPERFORMANCE

During the year the Company has recognized Rs. 1,772 million (2021: Rs. 175 Million) in Capital
work in progress for the Cornstarch Project, which willcommenceits business operation innear
future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicablein Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- provisions of and directives issued underthe Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the required
of IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed
in preparation ofthese unconsolidated financial statements.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

34.1

3.4.2

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as stated otherwise inthese unconsolidated financialstatements.

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the
Company's functional currency and presentation currency.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the
company and adoptedin the current year

There are no standard amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during
the current year.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but
not yet effectiveand not earlyadopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard orinterpretation.

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
on or after)

Feesinthe ‘10percent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
(Amendmentto IFRS 9) January 1, 2022
Onerous Contracts —Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
(Amendments to IAS 37) January 1, 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to |AS 16) January 1, 2022
Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendmentto IFRS 1) January 1, 2022
Taxationin Fair Value Measurements (Amendment to IAS 41) January 1,2022




343

Effective Date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
onor after)

Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework

(Amendmentsto IFRS 3) January 1, 2022
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(Amendmentsto IAS 1) January 1, 2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction (Amendments to |AS 12) January 1, 2023
Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendmentsto IAS 8) January 1, 2023
Disclosure Initiative—Accounting Policies January 1, 2023

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and
interpretationsto the published standards onthe financial statements ofthe Company.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified
bytheSecurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective Date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
on or after)
IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023
IFRS 1'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards’ January 1, 2009

CRITICALASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved financial
reporting framework requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exerciseits judgmentin the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revis ion
affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

Annual Report 2022
"



matco

5.1

Note
(a) useful lives of property, plant and equipmen 5.1
(b) useful lives of right-of-use asset 5.2
(c) impairment of financial asset 5.5
(d) staff retirement pla 5.9
(e} income taxes 5.12
(f) contingencie 5.17
(g) provision 5.22
(h) impairment of non-financial asse 5.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies have been applied on consistent basis. These policies have been
adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment otherthan land,factory buildings, plantand machinery and
generators are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (ifany).

Land, factory buildings, plant and machinery and generators are measured at the revalued amount
lessaccumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any).

Revaluation model

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, factory buildings, plant and machinery
and generators is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income and presented as a
separate componentofequity as “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of
tax”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreasein carrying
amount arising on the revaluation is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, ifany, held in the Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is
transferred to unappropriated profit. Impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis as defined
innote5.24.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revalued amount of assets (otherthan land a nd
capital work in progress) over their estimated useful lives, using the diminishing balance method at
rates specified in note 19.1to the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on addition is
charged fromtheday an asset is available for use upto the day priortoits disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,
andrelated surplus on revaluation of property and plant is transferred directly to retained earnings /
unappropriated profits.

The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The Company's estimate of residual value of property, plant

andequipment asatJune 30, 2022 did not requireany adjustment.



5.2

5.3

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All
expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period
are carried under capital work-in-progress. Cost also includes applicable borrowing cost. These are
transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Right-of-useassets andrelated liabilities

Afterthe commencement date, the Company measures theright-of-use asset applying a cost model
whereby the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulatedimpairmentlosses adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on straight line basis in case of Godown and written down
value methodin case ofvehicles, fromthe lease commencement dateto the earlier of theend ofthe
usefullife of the right-of-use asset orthe end of the lease term unless the lease transfers owner ship
of the underlying assetto the Company by the end of the lease ter morif the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option in which case the right-of-use asset
is depreciated from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset.
The estimated useful lives ofassets are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. The
right-of-use asset is subject to testing for impairment if there is an indicator for impairment, asfor
owned assets.

Intangibleassets

Intangible assets having definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and

impairment losses (if any). However, Intangible assets having indefinite life are stated at cost less
impairment losses (ifany). Impairment losses (if any) are recorded on the basis as defined in note

5.24.

Subsequent cost is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditureis expensed as incurred.

Amortizationis charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit orloss onastraight line basis over
the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Amortization on
additions to intangible assets are charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or
capitalized while noamortization is charged in the month in which the assetis disposed of.

Allintangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at each
reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverableamount it
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount of other intangible
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists than the assets recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverableamountisthe greater ofits valuein use and fair value less cost to sell.

Useful lives of intangibles assets are reviewed at each reporting date and us adjusted if the impact
onamortizationis material.
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5.4
5.4.1

5.4.2

5.5

Investments
Investment in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies

Investment in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies is initially recognized and carried
at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the
extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly.
Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the
carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited
to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Otherinvestments

All regular way purchases / sales of investment are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date the
Company commits to purchase/ selltheinvestments. Regular way purchases or sales ofinvestment
require delivery of securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement Initial
recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measu red at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given orreceived. These are subsequently measured at fair value oramortized cost as
thecasemay be.

Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or

-at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The
classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company's business
modelfor managing the financialassets and their contractual cash flowcharacteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets n
orderto collect contractualcash flows; and

-the contractualterms ofthe financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely
payments of principaland interestonthe principalamount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

-the contractualterms ofthe financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principalamount outstanding.




By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
-at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or

- at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at
FVTPL (such as instrument held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure
them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
1) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recog nized at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from
changesinfairvaluerecognizedin unconsolidated statement of other comprehensiveincome.

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost, and inthe case offinancialassets, less any impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and t ransaction
costs are expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are
includedin the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Wherethe management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated
with the Company's own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss).
Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financialassets measured
at amortized cost and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in
which thereis no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or financial assets which
are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is
recorded. The following were either determined to have low or there was no credit risk since initial
recognition and at the reporting date:

-bank balances;
-duefromrelated parties;
-deposits; and

-loan and advances

Loss allowance fortrade receivables are always measured at an amount equalto life time ECLs.
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5.6

5.7

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life ofa
financialinstrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECLthat result from default events that are
possible within twelve months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash short falls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordan ce
with the contract and cash flows that the company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectation ofrecovering a financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

Derecognition
i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assets expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated
risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at
amortized cost, the difference between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated intheinvestments revaluation reserve is reclassified to unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity.

ii) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial
liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss

account. The Company's financial liabilities include long term finances, trade and other payables,
accrued mark-up and short term borrowing.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the dates on which the
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using
appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when
fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of
derivativeinstruments is taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Stores, sparesandloosetools

These are valued at the cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are
valued atinvoice value plus other charges incurred thereon, up to the reporting date.




5.8 Stock-in-trade

These arevalued at lower of cost and net realizable value less impairment loss, ifany. Raw materi alis
valued at moving weighted average cost, packing materialis valued at cost, work in process is valued
at manufacturing cost and finished goods is valued at cost allocated on sales value of finish and by-
product for each job completion or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

5.9 Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unapproved gratuity scheme for its employees completing the eligibility
period of service as defined under the plan. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits
dependent on the length of service of an employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of
minimum qualifying period of service. Gratuity is based on employees' last drawn gross salary.

Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation
carried out annually by an external expert, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. All re-
measurement gains and losses are recognized in 'Statement Of Other Comprehensive Income' as
these occur. The amount recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of defined benefit obligations. The past service cost, current service
cost and interest cost are recognized in the unconsolidated statement bprofit or loss when they
incur.

5.10 Tradedebts

These are measured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for allowance for expected
credit loss based on the probability of default at reporting period. Bad debts are written off when
identified.

5.11 Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost
Forthepurpose of statementcash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances
with banks, highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known amounts of cash and
aresubject toinsignificant risk of changein value.

5.12 Taxation
Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance with the final tax
regime, where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) or the minimum tax
under section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate Tax(ACT) under section 113Cofthe said
Ordinance, whicheveris higher.

Deferred

Deferred taxis recognized using the unconsolidated statement offinancial position liability method
on alltemporary differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax
bases.
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5.13

5.14

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured atthe taxratethat are expected to apply tothe year
when the asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted atthe reporting date.

Borrowings and theircosts

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received net of transaction cost. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period oftime to get ready for theirintended use are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. All other borrowing costs are charged to unconsolidatedstatement of profit or loss in the
period in which theseareincurred.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contractis, or contains, alease. That s, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing theright to use the underlying assets.

i. Lease liabilities

Theleaseliability is initially measured at the present value ofthe lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method and remeasured
(with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU assets when there is a change in future lease
payments in case of renegotiation, changes ofan index or rate orin case ofreassessment of options.

ii. Short-term leases andleases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments onshort-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expenseon a
straight-line basis overtheleaseterm.




5.27 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements in the period in which such dividends are approved by the
Board.

5.15 Deferred grant

The Company has obtained long term financing facility under State Bank of Pakistan Refinance
Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns

('Refinance Scheme'). It carries mark-up rate of SBP plus 1%, payable on quarterly basis, which is
below prevailing market-rate. The government's underlying objective for introducing the said

Refinance Scheme for businesses is to support the employment of workers in the face of economic
challenges posed by the spread of novel coronavirus (COVID-19).

The Refinance Scheme shall be considered as the transfer of resources from government as
reflected by below-market mark-up rate on the loans obtained under the Refinance Scheme. The
said transfer shall be accounted for as Government grant in accordance with the circular # 11 of
2020issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Government grants are first recognised in the statement of financial position and then subsequently
accounted for in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Company recognises as expense the related cost for which the grants were
intended to compensate.

5.16 Tradeand otherpayables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paidin future for goods and services.

5.17 Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the
outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the
availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities wh ich
may differ on the occurrence/non-occurrence ofthe uncertain future event(s).

5.18 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Company is in the business of the manufacture and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and thereby the
performance obligations are satisfied, at amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods.

The Company has concluded that based on the contractual arrangement control of goods are
transferred and performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time when the goods are
dispatched tothe customers.

In case of export the controlis transferred whenthe goods are shipped to the destination and Bill of
Lading has been prepared, thus completing the performance obligation. Whereas in case of local
sales, controlis transferred whenthe goods aredispatched to customers fromthe warehouse.

5.19 Interestincome

Interestincomeis recognized on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield.
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5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

Foreign currency transaction &translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the
reporting date are expressed in Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are taken to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the
unconsolidated financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to off-
set the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle ona net basis ortorealize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligationas a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Operating segments

Operating segment is component of the company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incurred expenses. Board of Directors has beenidentified as chief operating

decision maker and is responsible for performance, allocation of resources and assessment of
results.

Operating Segment are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief operating decision maker. The Chief Operating Decision maker; who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions. On the
basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single
reportable segments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated and accordingly an impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit orloss forthe carrying amount of the asset that exceeds its recoverable amount.

Related party transactions
Allrelated party transactions are carried out by the Company on arm'slength basis.
Earnings pershare

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders ofthe Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares, ifany.
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6 SHARE CAPITAL
6.1 Authorized Share Capital

2022 2021
Number ofshares

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
200,000,000 200,000,000 (2020: Rs. 10 each) 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

6.2 Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up Share Capital

2021 2020
Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each:

50,340,213 50,340,213 - fully paidin cash 503,402,130 503,402,130
6,002,950 6,002,950 -issued for consideration 60,029,500 60,029,500
other than cash
66,057,535 66,057,535 -issued as fully paid bonus 660,575,350 660,575,350
shares
122,400,698 122,400,698 1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980
6.3 On April 30, 2008 the Company entered into an agreement to takeover the running business of

Matco Marketing Company (the "Firm"), a sole proprietorship firm against the issuance of shares.
The firm's capital account as per the audit conducted by M/S Rafiq & Co, Chartered Accountant was
Rs. 60 million, against which shares were issued to Mr. Tarig Ghori(Late)in lieu of this takeoverin
accordance with the regulation 8 of Companies (Issue of Capita) Rules, 1996.

2022 2021
6.4 Shares held by the related parties of the Company --Number of Shares--

Director and their spouse

Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori 23,964,021 23,964,021
Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori 24,031,271 24,031,271
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori 843,250 523,250
Ms. Naheed Jawed (Spouse of Jawed Ali Ghori) 448,875 448,875
Ms. Nuzhat Khalid Ghori (Spouse of Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori) 448,875 448,875
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza 500 500
Mr. Murtaza Mahfooz Talib (Spouse of Faryal Murtaza) 336,821 336,821
Mr. Safwan Ghori 5,250 5,250
Mr. Syed Kamran Rasheed 7,029 7,029
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan 500 500
Ms. Umme Habibah 2,500 500
Mr Muhammad Mohsin 500 -
Substantial shareholder

International Finance Corporation 18,360,109 18,360,109
Ms. Sadaf Tariq 24,480,146 425,250
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6.5 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding 2022 2021
is as under:
Shares at the beginning of the year 122,400,698 122,400,698

Shares issued during the year in cash - -
Bonus shares issued during the year - -
Shares at the end of the year 122,400,698 122,400,698

6.6 The Company has issued 15% shares to International Finance Corporation (IFC) (registered with
World Bank) under an agreement with the Company. During the year 2012, the Company offered
shares as fully paid right shares which were declined by the existing members and the directors
issued those shares to the IFC. These shares have been issued at a price of Rs. 39.28 per share
resulting in overall premium from IFC on issue of shares amounting to Rs. 341.311 million.

7 CAPITAL RESERVE Note
Share premium 7.1&7.2 680,467,220 680,467,220
7.1 - premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to IFC amounting to Rs. 341

million out of which Rs. 22.9 million had been utilized under section 83 of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017) during the year

7.2 - Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to general public through IPO
amounting to Rs. 466.3 million out of which Rs. 45.9 million had been utilized under section 81 of
the Companies Act, 2017 during the year ended June 30, 2019.

8 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX

This represents surplus arising on revaluation of land, buildings, plant and machinery and

generators, net of deferred tax. The revaluation was carried by Oceanic Surveyors (Private) Limited
on June 29, 2020.

Note
Surplus on revaluation at the beginning of the year 2,548,210,281 2,722,227,888
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of
disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,932,093) (136,271,079)
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the year (33,808,713) (37,746,528)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets as 2,512,469,475 2,548,210,281
at June 30
Less: related deferred tax liability:
- at beginning of the year (88,710,787) (100,034,745)

10,142,614 11,323,958
2,433,901,302  2,459,499,494

- on incremental depreciation charged during the year
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Note 2022 2021
Rupees
LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED
From banking companies and financial institution:
LTFF/ILTFF 9.1 413,740,791 316,751,724
TERF/ITERF 9.2 986,349,285 111,690,996
FFSAP 9.3 278,782,716 60,455,042
sa B oo
Salary Refinance 9,5 e e
1,755,289,337 667,986,942
Current portion of long term finances (172,857,144) (175,076,206)
1,582,432,193 492,910,736

The Company has obtained Long Term Financing/Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF/ILTFF)
under SBP Schemes from various commercial banks. The effective rates of mark-up on these
facilities vary from SBP rate+ 1% to 2.5% per annum (2021: SBP rate+ 1% to 2.5% per annum).

The Company has obtained Temporary Economic/Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
(TERF/ITERF) under SBP Schemes from various commercial banks and islamic banks. The effective

rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from SBP rate+ 1.50% to 2% per annum (2021: SBP
+1.5%to 2 % Per Annum).

The Company has obtained Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP) under SBP
Scheme from various financial institutions. The effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary
from SBP rate+ 1.25% to 1.5% per annum (2021: SBP rate+ 1% to 1.25% per annum).

The Company has obtained Demand Finance Facility (DF) from various commercial banks. The
effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from KIBOR+ 1% to 1.5% per annum (2021:KIBOR+
.75% to 1.75% per annum).

The Company has obtained Diminishing Musharakah Islamic Long Term Financing Facility(ILTFF) under
SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees as per the
SBP Circular # 06 of 2020 dated: April 10, 2020. The effective rate of mark-up on the facility is SBP

rate plus 1% (2021: SBP rate plus 1% per annum).

These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present/future fixed assets (land, building,
plant & machinery) of the Company with 25% margin / 1st Exclusive charge over specific machinery assets.

The maximum available amount from above mentioned facilities amounts to Rs. 27 million
(2021:Rs. 674 million).

Annual Report 2022



MATCO FOODS LIMITED
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10 LEASE LIABILITIES
2022 2021
Note Vehicle Godown Total Vehide Godown Total
Rupees
Opening balance 62159861  88,115533 150275354 53104121 89370526 142474647
Tmpact of adoption of TFRS-16 - - - - - -
Reasacsment of keaac liabiliy - 17437,503 17,437,503 - 3,225,802 3,225,802
At July 1 62159861 105553036 167712897 53,104,121 92596328 145,700,449
Additions for the year 64,387,816 - 54387816 26,532,000 - 26,532,000
Acctucd intotest duting the yeat BS04527 _ 13693353 _ 22207880 _ 4519909 11975088 _ 16494997
135152204 119246389 254398593 84156030  10457L416 188,727,446
Payment mack during the yeat (32322672) _ (18839045} _ {51,161,717) _ (21,996,169) _ (1645588%) _ (3B,452052)
102829532 _100A07,344 _ 203.236876 62,159,861 88,115,533 150275394
Catrent pottion of lease lizhilities 20193971 7440417 _ 27634388 18277390 5367403 23644793
Non-cutrent 82635561 _ 92,966927 175602488 43882471 _ B2748,150 126,630,601
10.1  Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

11

11.2.1

Upto onc year 0193971 TAMOMT 27634388 1827730 S36TAB 23644793

After one year 82635561 92966927 175602488 43882471  B2T48130 126,630,601

Lease liabilities 102829537 100407344 203,736876  GL150861  BR115533 150,275,394
2022 2021

DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note Rupees

Deferred tax liahility 111 78,568,173 88,710,787

Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 112 173,145,158 132,804,676

251,713,331 221,515,463

This tepresent deferred tax on sutplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Further, the
Company has deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 21.25 million (2021: Rs. 13.83 million). However, the
Company has not recorded deferred tax asset in of these unconsoclidated financial statements.

2022 2021
Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded Note Rupees
Balarice at beginning of the year 132,804,676 105,601,555
Charge for the year 11.2.7 43,929,752 32,336,550
Actuarial losses 11,763,974 982,193
Payments made during the year (15,353,244) {6,115,622)
Balance at end of the year 11.2.3 173,145,158 132,804,676

Staff retirement benefits - unfunded

In accordance with the requirements of TAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuatial valuation was cartied out
as at June 30, 2022, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in these
unconsolidated financial statements to covet obligations in accordance with the actuarial
recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the valuation in respect of above-
mentioned schemes are as follows:

2022 2021
Discount rate - per annum 13.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum 12.25% 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC (2001-05)  SLIC (2001-05)
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2022 2021
11.2.2 The amounts recognized in the unconsolidated Note Rupees
staternent of financial position are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.2.3 173,145,158 132,804,676
11,23 Movements in the net liability recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:
Opening liability 132,804,676 105,601,555
Chazge for the year 11.2.4 43,929,752 32,336,550
Acinarial losses 11,763,974 982,193
Benefits paid {15,353,244) (6,115,622)
Balance at end of the year 173,145,158 132,804,676
11.2.4 The amounts recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss against defined benefit
scheme are as follows:
Current service cost 31,416,947 23,620,332
Interest cost 12,512,805 8,716,218
Charge for the year 43,929,752 32,336,550
11.2.5 The amounts recognized in the other comprehensive
income against defined benefit scheme are as
follows:
Actuarial loss arising from
- expetience adjustment 11,763,974 982,193
11.2.6 Expense chargeable to unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss for the next year
Current service cost 39,226,611 28,190,867
Interest cost 22,941,733 13,280,468
Chasge for the year 62,168,344 41,471,335
11.2.7 The expense for the staff retirement benefit
scheme has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 334 27,805,465 20,845,668
Selling and distribution 341 3,305,420 2,600,385
Administrative expenses 3541 12,818,867 8,890 497
43,929,752 32,336,550

11.2.8 Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity analysis is prepared nsing same computation model and assumptions as used to determine
defined benefit obligation based on Projected Credit Unit Method. There is no change from prior year in
respect of methods and assumptions nsed to prepare sensitivity analysis. The impact of 1% change in
following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
Rupees
Discount rate 158,315,458 189,368,170
Expected salary increase 189,363,983 158,313,513

Annual Report 2022
:



MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

11.2.9 Risks on account of defined benefit scheme

The Company faces the following risks on account of defined benefit scheme:

Final salary risk

'The risk that the final salaty at the time of cessation of setvice is gteatet than what the Company has
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportonately.

Discount rate fluctuation

The defined benefit liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond
yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase defined benefit liabilities.

11.2.10 Maturity profile 2022 2021
Average expected remaining working lifetime of members 10 Years 10 Years
Average duration of liability 09 Years 09 Years
12 DEFERRED GRANT

In Prior year, State Bank of Pakistan introduced a temporary Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages
and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of business concerns to support payment of salaries and
wages under economic challenges due to COVID-19.

The Company has availed this facility from MCB Islamic Bank. The loan catries mark-up rate of SBP
plus 1% per annum. However, the effective interest rate is calculated as 8.95% per annum and the loan
has been recognised at the present value. ‘The differential mark-up has been recognised as government
grant which will be amortised to interest income over the period of facility.

2022 2021
Rupees
Opening Balance 7,128,513 6,124,178
Grant recognized during the year - 5,973,613
Amortization of grant (5,567,161) {4,969,278)
1,561,352 7,128,513
Less: current portion of deferred grant (1,561,352) {6,176,233)
- 952,280

12.1  The grant was conditional upon the fact that the company would not terminate any employee, due/owing
to cash flow limitations, for a period of three months from the date of receipt of the first tranche.

2022 2021
13  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees

Creditors 539,068,297 459,356,401
Accrued liabilities 90,742,704 49,314,422
Tax deducted at source and payable to statutory authorities 4,156,573 2,122,837
Worker's welfare fund 10,622,942 7,504,284
Worker's profit participation fund 26,562,262 990,112

671,152,778 519,888,056
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2022 2021
131 Worker's welfarefund -~ e—— Rupees———
Opening balance 7,504,284 7,113,214
Allocation for the year 10,622,942 391,070
Reversal of WWE (6,081,207) -
Amount paid (1,423,077) -
Closing balance 10,622,942 7,504,284
13.2 Worker's profit participation fund
Opening balance 990,112 12,234,103
Allocation for the year 26,557,356 977,674
Amount paid (985,206) (12,221,665)
Closing balance 26,562,262 990,112
14 ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up on long term finances 21,697,763 8,243,265
Mark-up on short term botrowings 99,041,500 49,634,664
120,739,263 57,877,929

15 DUE TO RELATED PARTY

This teptesents amount teceived from the Matco Matketing (Private) Limited and Ghori Trust for the
purpose of expenses to be incurred by the Company on their behalf. . The maxzimum aggregate amount
at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 6.89 million and Rs. 4.66 million (2021: Rs. 6.89
million and Rs. 0.98 million respectively).

2022 2021
16 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS Note Rupees:
SECURED
Export re-finance 16.1 4,537,949,000 4,331,949,000
Owmn regource 16.2 2,441,695,808 1,201,056,240

6,979,644,808  5,533,005240

16.1 The Company has short term running finance facility under Export Refinance Scheme of the State
Bank of Pakistan from Commercial banks and Islamic banks, The effective tates of mark-up on these
facilities at SBP fate plus 1% pet annum {2021: SBP tate plus 1% per annum).

16.2 ‘The Company has short term running finance facility under own resource from Commercial banks and
Islamic banks, The effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from 3-month/6-month KIBOR
plus 0.75% to 2% per annum(2021: 3-month/6-month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2% pet annum).

16.3 'The facilities available from various banks amount to Rs. 7,120 million (2021: Rs. 6,150 million). These
facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of all present and future cash collateral/TDR,
receivable, stocks & current assets. These facilities are registered by mortgage charge of land, building,
plant and machinery and all present & future fixed assets.

164  As at June 30, 2022, the unavailed facilities from above borrowings amounting to Rs. 624 million (2021:
617 million).
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17 UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents part of interim dividend for the half year ended December 31, 2017 and final dividend
for the year ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020 which remained unpaid to the
shateholders who have not provided theit valid Central Depository System (CDS) Account no. and
International Bank Account Number (IBAN). The Company has already sent letters to those
shareholders for the purpose of above stated information,

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
18.1 Contingencies

18.1.1 The Company has filed a civil suit No. 1061 of 2021, for declaration and permanent injunction against
Sindh Industrial Trading Estates Limited (SITE). The SITE issued an impugned notice to the
Company cancelling the Company's lease of plot H/162 SITE ("Subject Property) in alleged
compliance of a Supteme Coutt order, declaring the plot in question to be an amenity plot. The
Company has opposed such cancellation of its lease on the basis that the Master Plan of site shows the
Subject Property to be an industrial plot. Furthermore, it is contended that the STTE has issued the
impugned notice in defiance of the Company's proprietary rights in the land and such notice is illegal
and in excess of theit authotity. The Company has a stay order in favout of the Company dated April
29, 2021 restraining the SITE from taking any coercive action in pursuance of the notice, The matter is
fixed for hearing and the management of the Company believes that the matter will be decided in
favour of the Company.

18.1.2 The Company had filed the civil suit no, 1635 of 2009 for possession of land which was illegally
dispossessed by the Syed Alay Sadaqain Naqvi (defendants) and to issue a permanent injunction to
testtain the defendants from alienation ot transferting the land. The Honotable Sindh High Court
(SHC) passed an order on November 19, 2009, in which SHC has granted permanent injunction in
above suit on December 11, 2018, The matter is fixed for hearing and the management of the
Company believes that the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

18.1.3 Suit no. 2141 of 2015 has been filed against the Company for declaration, possession, damages, mesne
profit and injunction before the Senior Civil Judge (west) at Karachi. The plaintiff claims to be the
lawful owmner of a piece of land measuring 10 acres ("Subject Land"}, which also includes the land
which is also subject matter of suit no. 1635 of 2009. The plaintiff has sought declaration as to the
ownership and occupation of Subject Land, The Company has filed an application under Order 7 Rule
11 starting therein that the instant suit is barred by law as the plaintiff's earlier suits raising the same
dispute wete dismissed. On August 29, 2017, the learned Judge was pleased to allow the application of
the Company and the plaintiff appeal was tejected accordingly. The Plaintiff aggrieved by the said order
appealed the same matter before IVth Additional and District Judge (AD]) bearing Appeal No. 311 of
2017 ("Appeal"). On September 09, 2018, the learmed Appellate Court decided the Appeal in favor of
the Plaintiff and against the Company, set aside the order dated August 29, 2017 and restored the
above suit. Agprieved by the otder of AD] in Appeal no. 311 of 2017 the Company filed appeal no 157
of 2018, The Company contended that the order passed by AD] was bad in law as the law does not
permit fresh proceedings on the same cause of action of which issue has already been adjudicated upon
by the Courts and the suit 2141 of 2015 was rightly rejected by the trial court. ‘The learned Judge after
heating the Company's submission and atguments was pleased to suspend the operation of the
impugned Judgement (passed in Appeal no. 311 of 2017) via order dated December 17, 2018, The
matter is fixed for hearing and the management of the Company believes that the matter will be

decided in favor of the Company.
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18.1.4 The Company has filed suit no. 1378 of 2019 and suit 1820 of 2020 in SHC against Sui Southern Gas
Company Limited. The case has been filed on the ground that the gas tariff/price has been increased
by SSGC illegally. The case is pending before SHC and is fixed for hearing, however, SHC has directed
the Company to pay their bills according to previous judgement by either bank guarantee or deposit
cheque ready to encash to the satisfaction of the Nazir of the court and S8GC shall issue revised bills,
further the management of the Company in consulation of legal advisor is of the view that based on
the merit of the case, the same will be decided in favor of the Company.

18.1.5 The Company has filed 2 suit for declaration and permanent injunction against the Syed Alay Sadagain
Naqvi (defendants) for continuolsy interfering with the peaceful possession of the extended portion of
0.5 acres of land that was regularized in favor of the Company on February 07, 2020 by virtue of a
registered deed of Addenda of lease. The Company has pleaded that the Company is the absolute and
lawful owner in possession of an immovable property, name Plot. No. G-205 SITE Super Highway
Phase 1 Karachi measuring 4.5 actes by virtue of lease deed dated November 10, 2008 executed by
Sindh Industtial Trading Estate Limited. The Company intends to utilize the 0.5 acres of land that was
regularized recently in favor of the Company however, the defendants is interfering with the posesseion
of the property. The Company has asked the SHC to declare that the defendant is wrongfully and
ilegally claiming to be the owner of the property and requested SHC to stop interfering with the
Company's peaceful posession on the extended portion measuring 0.5 acres. SHC through an order
dated May 19, 2020 restrained the defendant from creating any interference in the Company's extended
portion of the property. Being aggreived from the decision the defendant has filed an appeal H.C.A D-
110 of 2020 in SHC, in which defendant has pleaded that SHC entertained the suit despite clear
instructions from Honorable Chief Justice, High Court not to entertain civil matters duting COVID-19
pandemic. Defendant has also alleged that the bench failed to examine the documents relied upon by
the Company as the title of Sindh Industrial Trading Estate Limited cannot be established on the basis
of such documents, Further, it is contended that the Company misled the Honourable bench and
obtained the Order by not disclosing the pendency of earlier suit bearing No. 1635/2009 for
possession of the same subject property. Based on the merit of case the management of the Company
believes that the matter will be decided in favor of the Company.

18.1.6 In prior years Government of Sindh imposed infrastructure cess (@ 0.85% of impott value on all
impotts into Pakistan. A large number of importers including the Company challenged the matter in
the SHC. The SHC has issued an intetim otrder allowing release of impotted goods on 50% payment
and 50% bank guarantee, This suit no. 2173 of 2013 was filed on June 10, 2013, the SHC has passed
the judgement in the subject matter wherein SHC has declared the imposition of cess valid piece of
Legislation. The Company alongwith other industries affected by the SHC order has challenged the
judgement of SHC in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (3CP). The managment is of the view that
the Company is not likely to suffer any losses due to above suit.

18.1.7 1n 2011, Government of Pakistan (GoP) impose a levy on gas consumers in the industrial sector,
known as The Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). The amount: collected was to be used for
the construction of infrastructure projects.

GIDC was challenged in Honourable Peshawar High Court (PHC) in December 2013, PHC declared
the levy of GIDC unconstitutional. PHC further directed the GoP to retum the collected amount, GoP
challenged the decision of PHC in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP}, however, SCP
upheld the decision of PHC by declaring GIDC a fee and not a tax that can be charged.

In 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 was introduced which re-imposed the
GIDC. The affected industries again approached the SCP stating that the earlier tax money was not

used for the construction of infrastructure projects. SCP granted stay order against payment of any
GIDC levies.
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18.1.8

18.2

In their judgement dated August 13, 2020, SCP dismissed all petitions against the GIDC levy and ruled
in favour of the GoP which would collect the GIDC from different companies. The affected industties
filed a review petition against the judgement of SCP which has also been dismissed by SCP vide its
order dated November 03, 2020.

On October 15, 2020, the Company filed suit no. 1531 of 2020 in Honcurable High Court of Sindh
(SHC), with a plea that the Company did not pass on the GIDC burden to the end consumer, therefore
in accordance with section 8 {2) of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (GIDC Act, 2015)
the GIDC is not applicable on the Company, which is pending for decision, however, the SHC has
issued sustaining order to Gas companies from taking any coercive action against the Company. The
management of the Company in consultation of its legal advisor is of the view that since the Company
has not passed on the burden to its consumer/clients, it is not liable to pay GIDC as they cleatly falls
within the ambit of the exception in line with section 8 (2) of GIDC Act, 2015.

The Company has filed suit No. 730 of 2015 before SHC against the imposition of Captive Power
Plant rate instead of Industrial Consumer tate. The Company contends that they donot fall into the
category of Captive Power Plant, but rather an Industrial Consumer, so the rate charged by the §8GC
ie. Rs.200 per MMBTU, is not applicable in the case of the company. The case has been decreed in
favour of the Company vide order dated February 02, 2020. SSGC has challenged the Judgment before
the Divisional bench of SHC which is pending for adjucation, Based on the merit of case the
management of the Company believes that the matter will be decided in favor of the Company.

2022 2021
Commitments Note  ————- Rupees——-——
Letter of credit 386,270,071 912,150,112
Letter of guatantees 45,296,400 34,620,480
Capital Expenditures 2,400,000 543,478,892
Cheques issued in favour of Nazir of high court
in relation to SSGC case 18.14 5,165,163 1,828,689

439,131,634  1,492,078,173
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MATCQ FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

19.1.1 The depreciation charpe for the year has been allocated as follows:

2022 2021
Note Rupees
Cost of sales 33 181,574,131 185,993,203
Selling and disttibution expenses 34 11,348,383 11,624,575
Adeministrative expenses 35 34,045,150 34,873,726

226,967,664 232,491,504

19.1.2 Factory land includes a plot in which a law suit has been filed by the phaintiff who is claiming the possession
and injunction of the propetty. The case is in process under the Honourable High Court Sindh Karmchi(refer
note 18.12,18.13, 18.14 & 18.1.6).

19.1.3 Operating fized assets include assets that are subject to mortgage with various banks against long-term
finances and short-term botrowings {refer note 09 and 186).

19.1.4 Details of forced sale value of revalued property, plant and equipment

Description of Assets Forced sale value
Rupees

Land 2.230,524,000
Building 700,400,000
Plant and machinery 886,259,750
Generators 46,645,250
‘The sbove forced sale value has been taken from revaluation repott of Oceanic Sutveyors (Private) Limited as
on June 29, 2020,

19,1,5 Following items of property, plant and equipment having book value above Rs. 500,000 were disposed off
during the year

Hevc;fa; on m‘:m 'im Sale proceeds  Gain/ Loss :}m Particulars of buyer
Rupees

Generalor
Diesel Generator 100 KW 6,133,680 2,195,590 3,938,090 1500000  (2438,080) Tender Soyal Sons
Mator Vehkles
Toyota Altis 2227 500 1,358,384 859,116 275,000 1,215,884 Tender Mr, Noman Khan
Changan Katwsn 1,627,630 WEE 1346004 1,755,000 408,99 Tender  King Motors

19.1.6 Buyer of the disposed vehicle has no relation with the company and its directors,
19.1.7 Particulars of immaovable property (ie. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Locations Total Areain Covered Areain
Acres Square Feet

Plot A-15 & 16, STTE-II, Super highway Karachi 2 79155
A-21, SITE-II, Super highway, Karachi 1.5 49631
G-205, STTE-IL, Supet highway, Karachi 4 76566
50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke District, Gujranwala 15 133024
B1-A, SITE-IT, Super highway, Katachi 097 34850
Plot H-162, STTE-II, Super highway, Karachi 2.5 -
Plot F-193, SFTE-II, Super highway, Karachi 2 60871
50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke District, Gujranwala 338 -
Plot # 53, 8.E.Z, Allama Iqbal Industrial City, Faisalabad 20 723358
House # 87, Block K, Street # 24, Al Bairuni Road, WAPDA City,
Faisalabad 0.063 2723

E AnnualReport 2022



MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

19.2 Capital work In progress

Tangibles

Plant and machinery
Electric cables and fitting

Office equipment
Factory equipment
Furniture 8 Fixture

Genetator
Land

Factory Building

Computers
Motor Vehicles

19.3 Movement in capital wotk in propgress is a5 unde:

Plant and machinery
Electtic cables and HAtting:

Office equipment
Factory equipment

Furniture 8z Fixrure

Generator

Latd

Factory Building
Computetrs

194 The amount of borrowing costs capitalised duting the year ended June 30, 2022 was Rs. 25.2 million (2021:
0.295 million). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was

19.5

2022 2021
Note Rupees

1,154,791,242 154,616,058
68,653,446 4,182,422
226,000 1,242 250
5,060,072 17,982
789,432 180,100
50,137,131 715,522
81,778,739 40,133,739
581,395,975 62,902,671
1,632,042 272,600

4,864,590 -
1,949,328,669 264,263,344

Cost

As at July 01,

Additlons

during the year Transferred to

Property, plant

As at June 30,

2021 and equipment 2022
Rup

154,616,058 1,105, 770,060 (105,594,877 6) 1.154, 791,242
4,182,422 &4.471,0249 - S8,653 445
1,242,250 226,000 {1.242,250} 226,000
17,982 5,042,090 - 5,060,072
180,100 609,332 - 789,432
715,522 49,421 509 - 50,137,131
40,133,739 41,645,000 - 81,778,739
62,902,671 557,086,706 (38,593,402) 581,395,975
272,600 1,359,443 - 1,632,042
- 4,864,590 - 4,864,590
264,263,344 1,830,495 853 (145,430,528} 1,949,328,669

Coat

Aas ar July 01,

Additions dutng i . 1 to
the y Property, plant

Aa ar Tune 30,

2020 and equi; € 2021
Rup
- 193,679,084 (39,063,026 154,616,058
- 4,182 422 - 4,182 422
4. 225158 2,531,752 {5,514,660) 1,242 250
57,754,424 3,060,803 (60,797,245 17,982
180,100 - 180,100
715,522 - 715,522
40,133,739 - 40,133,739
62,902 671 - 652,902,671
— 272,600 — 272,600

61,979,582

307,658,693 (105,374,931)

264,263,344

2.56%, which is the EIR of the specific borrowings.

Had thete been no tevaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating property, plant and

equipment would have been amounted to:

Net book value
Land
Building

Plant and machinery

Genetators

2022 2021
Rupees
233,230,637 233,230,637
556,993,579 574,646,438
1,015,743,907 988,805,928
26,069,878 23,297,704
1,832,038,001 1,819,980,707




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTES TC THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

20

201

0

22

2022 2021
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS vehide Godown Total Vehicle Godown. Tota
Rupees.
Cost
Opening balance 150,416,518 95,623,341 245,039,859 115,124,413 92,397,539 207,521,952
Impact of adoption of IFRS-16 - - - - - -
Reassesament of leape linhility - 17,437,503 17,437,503 - 3,225,802 3,225,802
As at July 1 150416518  113,060844 263477362 115,124,413 95,623,341 210,747,754
Additions during the year 78,272411 - 78,2724 35,292,105 - 35,202 105
Dispoeal dusing the year (4,083,500) - (4,083,500) - - -
Total 224,605,429 113,060,844 ~ 337,666,273 150,416,518 95,623,341 246,039 859
Accumulated depredation
Opening balance 57,384,855 17,122,132 74,506,987 39,181,819 8,399,776 47,581,595
Chatge for the yeat 19,219,644 10,788,812 30,008,455 18,203,036 8,722,356 26,925,392
Disposal adjustment (2,416,093) - (2416,093) - - -
Closing ___7418BA06 27010044 102099350 5T3B4855 17,102,132 74506987 _
Net book value 150,417,023 85,145,900 235,566,923 93,031,663 78,501,208 171,532,871
Lease term 5 Years 10 Years 5 Years 10 Years
The following are the amounts recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit ot loss:
2022 2021
Note Rupees
Depreciaton expense of right-of-use assets 33 30,008,456 26,925,392
Interest expense on lease liabilities on Godown 33 13,693,353 11,975,388
Interest expense on lease liabilities on vehicles 36 8,604,527 4,519,909
Total amount recognlised In unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss 52,306,336 43,420,689
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Opening 14,710,766 14,710,766
Addition during the year - -
Closing 14,710,766 14,710,766
Armortization
Opening (14,710,766) (14,710,766)
Charge for the year - -
Closing {14,710,766) (14,710,766)
Balance as at June 30 - -
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment - at cost
Subsidiary
JKT Genersl Trading FZE 221 23,582,747 23,582,747
Matco Marketing (Private) Limited 222 7499,960 7,499,960
Joint Venture
Barentz Pakistan Private Limited 22.3 24,500,000 24,500,000
Other Investments - at 1air value through OCF 224
Pakistan Alumininm Beverage Cans Limited 6,091,628 -
Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,063,680 -
62,738,015 55,582,707
Annual Report 2022




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

22.1 On Octaber 8, 2013, the Company incorporated a new wholly owned subsidiary, JK'T' Genetal Trading FZE
in U.AE. The ptincipal activities are general trading, export / import and other related activities. The
Company has made an equity investment of USD 255,000 out of which shares of USD 40,872 have been
issued. Shares for the remaining amount would be issued after completion of necessary regulatory formalities.

222 On November 13, 2017, the Company has subscribed 749,996 shares of Matco Marketing (Private) Limited.
However, Matco Martketing (Private) Limited has not commenced its operations since incorporation.

223 On June 28, 2019, the Company has been incorporated in Pakistan as per agreement between Barentz
International B.V. and Matco Foods Limited. Matco Foods Limited has subscribed 49% of total shareholding
of Rs. 50 Million, thereby, constituting a Joint Venture.

The following table provides summarized financial information for the joint venture. The information
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates and not the Company's
share of those amounts. The financial information presented below are based on the interim financial
statements for the period ended June 30, 2022,

2022 2021
Rupees
Assets 190,341,423 142,508,771
Liabilities 104,282,191 115,220,069
Revenues 258,968,579 144,620,437
Profit/ (Loss) for the period 9,967,224 (7,425,089)

224 'This represents the fair value of 193,201 shares of Pakistan Beverages Aluminum Can's acquired by the
Company through initdal public offering at the rate of Rs. 49 per share. As at June 30, 2022, the share was
revalued at Rs. 31.53 per share, resulting a loss of Rs, 3.38 million (2021: Nil) during the period. Further the
fair value of 12,000 shares of Engro Fettilizers acquired by the company duting the year at the rate of Rs.
89.90 per share. As at June 30, 2022 the share was revalued at Rs. 88.64 per share, resulting a loss 0.015
million (2021: Nil).

225 ‘The investment in subsidiary and associates bhave been made in accordance with the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017. Further, no such terms and conditions has been made at the time of investment. ‘The
Company has beneficial ownership of the investee companies. No return on investrnent has been made since
incotporation. There are no litigation against the subsidiaries and assodates of the company that may impact
the interest of the company,

2022 2021
23 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Note Rupees
Stores and spares 333 87,635,046 71,988,230
Provision fot slow maoving / obsolete items 231 (1,543,929) (1,543,929)
86,091,117 70,444,301
23.1 Movement In provislon for slow moving / obsolete
tems
Balance at beginning of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929
Charge for the year - -
Balance at end of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929
24 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw matetials 242 5,864,610,205 5,523,328,949
Packing materials 33.2 219,576,329 122,293,225
Finished goods 24.3 1,598,342,533 1,545,538,885
7,682,529,067 7,191,161,059
Provision for slow maving / obsolete items 24.1 {20,475,083) (19,880,700}
7,662,053,984 7,171,280,359




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

24.1

24,2

243

25

25.1
25.2

253

254

2022 2021
Movement in provislon for slow Rupees:
moving / obsolete items
Opening balance 19,880,700 19,694,358
Chatge for the year 594,383 186,342
Wirite off during the year - -
Closing balance 20,475,083 19,880,700

This includes pledged raw material with vatious banks under long term and short term borrowing
arrangements (refer note 09 and 16).

'This includes by product amounting to Rs. 354.4 million (2021: Rs, 116.43 million} and stock-in-transit
amounting to Rs. 118.3 million {2021: Rs. 54.31 million}

2022 2021

TRADE DEBTS Note Rupees
Considered good

Export - secured 25.2 1,693,674,417 930,393,038

Local - unsecured 124,664,968 110,731,306
Considered doubtful

Local - unsecured 13,567,967 13,567,967
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 254 (13,567,967) (13,567,967)

1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344

Borrowings are secured by way of charge over book debts of the Company (refer notes 09 and 16).

It includes the amount of Rs, 23,6 million which is past due up to 3 months {2021; Rs, 63.1 million) and Rs,
10.6 million which is past due up to 6 months, {2021: Rs. Nil) due from JKT General Trading FZE (related
patty). The maximum aggtegate amount due from related party at the end of any month duting the yeat was
Rs. 40.8 million (2021: Rs. 63.1 million).

As of June 30, 2022, the age analysis of trade debts 2022 2021

is as folloves: Note Rupees

Not yet due - -

Past due:

- Up to 3 months 1.510,256,01 832,927,550

- 3 to 6 months 264,482,259 170,189,719

- 6 to 12 months 43,601,11 34,767,261

- Mote than 12 months - 3,239,814
1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344

Trade debts - Gross 1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344

Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 13,567,967 13,567,967

Charge during the year - -

Closing balance 13,567,967 13,567,967

Annual Report 2022
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

26

26.1
26.2

263

264

27

27.1

28

28.1

28.2

2022 2021
LOANS AND ADVANCES Note =  ———— Rupees———
Loans
Staff - unsecured, considered good 261 13,245,862 14,697,971
Advances
- against services and others 3,318,622 1,338,081
- against purchases 26.3 138,467,326 B2 457,247
- 1O CONLractors - 166,765
- against shates 264 - 5,000,000
155,031& 103,660,064

It represent interest free loans to various staff in accordance with the (-:ompany's policy.

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.78
million (2021: Rs. 0.62 million).

It represents the amount provided to suppliers of rice, stores & spares and packaging which is adjustable
against future purchases.

It represents the amount paid to Pakistan Aluminum Beverage Cans Limited for purchase of shares in TPO.

2022 2021
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM Note Rupees
PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Capital management account - 681,549
- Guarantee margin 1,448,588 1,604,650
1,448,588 2,286,199
Prepayments
- Prepaid expense 27.1 3,122,592 3,228,065
- Prepaid insurance 6,111,867 4,616,415
9,234,459 7,844,480
10,683,047 10,130,679
This include prepaid expense telating to godown rent and system maintenance chatges.
2022 2021
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT Note Rupees
Mutual fund units 28.1 3,054,742 379,910
Term deposit certificates 282 1,200,000 1,200,000
4,254,742 1,579,910

It represent mutual funds unit 39,210 (2021: 5,643) of Al-Meczan Islamic fund , AL-Ameen Islamic Fund, Al-
Ameen Islamic Stock Pund.

These represent term deposit certificates of Askari Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1.2 million (2021: Rs, 1.2
million) respectively. The rate of profit on these cettificates is 6.25% per annum (2021: 6.5%) these term
deposit certificates will mature on June 2022,




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

29

29.1

30

301

30.2

303

304

305
306

31

311

SALES TAX REFUNDARBLE
Sales tax refundable

Movement in sales tax refundable is as under:
Balance at beginning of the year

Refunds claim for the year

Received during the year

Adjusted duting the year

Balance at end of the year

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
Unsecured
Matco Engineering Company (Private) Limited
Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited
JKT Genetal Trading FZE
Faiyaz Centre Owmer Association

2022 2021
Note Rupees
291 105,056,731 123,598,158
123,598,158 166,389,331
188,680,494 127,104,175
(138,591,280) (160,604,293)
(68,620,641) (9,291,055)
105,056,731 123,598,158
301 - 1,572,277
30.2 51,046,611 41,338,226
303 - 295,831
30.4 - 160,061
51,046,611 43,366,395

The maximum appregate amount due from Matco Engineering Company (Private) Limited, at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 3.48 million (2021: Rs. 1.62 million).

‘This includes an amount of Rs. 3.4 million teceivable in respect of interest on loan. The maximum agprepate
amount of loan due from Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
48.58 million (2021: Rs. 43.36 million}. The amount will be utilized by the associated company to meet the
working capital requirement of the associated company, The effective rates of mark-up on this receivable is 3

months KIBOR+2% {2021: 3 months KIBOR+2%).

The maximum aggregate amount due from JKT General Trading FZE at the end of any month during the

year was Rs. 0.3 millicn (2021: Rs. 0.3 million).

The maximum aggregate amount due from Faiyaz Centre Owner Association at the end of any month
duting the year was Rs. 1.14 million (2021: Rs. 0.2 million).

All above dues are payable on demand,

Ageinp analysis of receivables from related parties past due bt not impaired are as follows:

Matco Engineering . Falyaz Centre
Barentz Pakistan JKT General
Company (Private) o ate) Limited  Trading FZE Owner
Limlited Assoclatlon
Up to 3 Manths - 51,046,611 - -
3 to 6 Months - - - -
065 to 12 Months - - - -
More than 12 Months - - - -
- 51,046,611 - -
2022 2021
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note Rupees
Cash in hand 8,860,885 3,530,324
Cash at bank
- cutrent accounts 264,668,224 75,258,254
- deposit accounts 31.1 30,037,308 26,171,906
294,705,532 101,430,160
303,566,417 104,960,484

These carry weighted average profit of 11% per annum (2021: 11% per annum).

Annual Report 2022




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

32

321

33

SALES - NET
Expott sales

Local sales
Rice

By-products

Sales discount / return
Freight
Clearing and forwarding

Sales tax

Disaggregation of sales

2022 2021
Rupees

10476,272,078 B,248,706,121
816,897,975 724,198,889
2447,665,117 2,100,535,538
3,264,563,092 2,824,734,427
13,740,835,170 11,073,440,548
{78,969,129) (82,749,024)
(1,146,956,926) {360,920,422)
{89,216,337) (43,322,987)
{49,772,012) (25,827,326)
12,375,920,766 10,556,620,789

The Company disaggregated revenue recognized from customers into categories that depict how the nature,

amount, timing and uncertinty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

In the following table, revenue is disaggregmated by primary geographical markets and major product lines;

Major product Lines
Rice
Others

Primary geographical Markets
Local

Africa

Agia

Australia & New Zealand
Europe

USA & Canada

COST OF SALES

Rice consumed

Packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Processing expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Electricity and power
Telephone and mobile
Insutance

Repairs and maintenance
Other purchases

Provision for slow moving stock
PFumigation chargres

Water charges

Canteen

Diesel and oil

Staff welfare

Secutity expenses

Godown expenses

Note

331
332
333

334

2022 2021
Rupees

11,935,342,157 9,893,449,787
1,805,493,013 1,179,990,761
13,740,835,170 11,073,440,548
3,264,563,092 2,824,734,427
815,185,624 374,284,303
3,012,567,597 3,030,259,281
1,941,121,649 1,456,649,113
3,488,535,180 2,290,121,196
1,218,862,028 1,097,392,228
13,740,835,170 11,073,440,548
9,212,220,732 8,577,211,227
497,392,298 457,437,640
165,235,085 133,265,478
478,731,750 445,917,170
200,076,597 209,626,919
1,087,510 1,419,046
2,476,678 8,980,473
26,238,178 25,178,363
88,946,902 42,131,127
594,383 186,342
74,835,705 33,737,005
32,677,840 49 206,266
11,087,556 11,165,787
311,725 462,820
2,308,308 2,797,963
18,299,672 16,330,349
23,546,498 16,873,130
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331

332

333

334

Neote

Rent, rates and taxes

Vehicle running expenses

Medical

Depreciation 19.11
Depreciation on tight-of-use assets 20.1
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2041
Processing charges

Inspection charges

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods

Opening stock
Closing stock 24

Rice consumed

Opening stock of taw matetial

Purchases

Cartage inwards

Closing stock of raw material 24

Packing material consumed
Cpening stock

Purchases

Closing stock-gross 24
Stores and spares consumed

Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock-gross 23

It includes provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 27.8 million (2021: Rs. 20.8 million}.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION Note
EXPENSES

Salaties and benefits 341

Travelling

Sales promotion

Insurance

Export charges

Export commission

Depreciation 19.1.1

Shop rent

General

2022 2021
Rupees
1,675,166 23,451,490
11,916,618 7,460,610
3,690,618 3,766,863
181,574,132 185,993,203
30,008,456 26,925,392
13,693,353 11,975,088
220,930 2,161,945
23,060,739 19,582,415
11,108,907,429 10,313,244,112
1,545,538,885 1,141,722 539
{1,598,342,533) (1,545,538,885)
(52,803,648) (403,816,346)
11,056,103,781 9.909.427,766
5,523,328,949 5,435,050,944
9,277.485,006 8,488,184,359
276,016,982 177,304,873
(5,864,610,205) {5,523,328,949)
9,212,220,732 8,577.211,227
122,293,225 85,444,225
594,675,402 494 286,640
716,968,627 579,730,865
{219,576,329) (122,293,225)
497,392,298 457,437,640
71,988,230 46,566,459
180,881,901 158,687,249
252,870,131 205,253,708
{87,635,046) (71,988,230)
165,235,085 133,265,478
2022 2021
Rupees
56,910,005 55,625,772
14,282,161 8,199,157
34,969,628 15,221,120
2,120,366 1,946,871
80,106,245 52,286,127
23,995,061 20,546,306
11,348,383 11,624,575
2,520,000 2,720,000
3,027,952 17,827,215
229,279,801 185,997,143
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341 Ttincludes provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 3.3 million (2021: Rs. 2.6 million).

2022 2021
35 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note Rupees:

Salaties and benefits 351 220,704,770 190,179,802
Vehicle running 11,423,116 8,536,441
Entertainment 1,394,156 936,656
Printing and stationery 1,701,925 1,197,997
Fee and subscription 20,899,680 20,281,570
Legal and professional 200,000 1,535,000
Auditor's remuneration 353 3,255,655 3,465,327
Postage and telegrams 2,344,015 1,787,505
General expenses 2,297,385 2,913,622
Newspaper and petodicals 73,353 60,309
Electricity and gas charges 352 2,748,956 21,492,276
Taxes, duty and fee 21,802,289 257,246
Medical 2,889,170 2,162,186
Insurance 3,547,762 2,632,037
Software maintenance 503,249 495,616
Computer expenses 6,198,327 4,574,968
Depreciation 19.1.1 34,045,150 34,873,726
Donations 35.4 11,335,724 6,263,200
Advertisement 1,219,792 564,900
Cthers 7,876,257 5,477,901

356,460,731 309,688,284

35.1 It includes directors' remuneration amounting to Rs. 18.71 million (2021: Rs. 19.61 million) and provision
for gratuity amounting to Rs. 12.80 million (2021: Rs. 8.89 million).

35.2 Itincludes provision of GIDC Cess amounting to Rs. Nil (2021: Rs. 18 million).

2022 2021
353 Auditor's remuneration Note Rupees:

- andit fee of unconsolidated financial statements 2,000,000 2,000,000
- andit fee of consclidated financial statements 100,000 100,000
- audit fee of half yearly review 609,930 484,402
- fee for review code of corporate governance 150,000 150,000
- other certifications 150,000 150,000
- out of pocket expenses 245,725 245,725
- other services 35.31 - 335,200

3,255,655 3,465,327

35.3.1 This represents services relating to taxation.
354 Donation includes amount of Rs.10.84 million (2021: Rs.5.26 million) paid to Ghori Trust, which is

operated by Board of directors of the company and their spouse namely Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori, Mr. Khalid
Sarfaz Ghor, M. Faizan Ali Ghoti, Mrs. Naheed Jawed, Mrs. Nuzhat Khalid and Mrs. Dr. Sadaf Tariq.
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2022 2021
36 FINANCE COST Note Rupees:
Matk up
- long term finances - net 36.1 29,090,951 26,983,531
- short term borrowings 347,800,253 235,927,358
- interest expense on lease liabilities 8,604,527 4,519,909
Bank chatges and commission 2,377,263 5,400,133
387,872,994 272,830,931

36.1 The mark-up presented is net of amortization of grant amounting to Rs,5,57 millien (2021: Rs.4.97 million),

2022 2021
37 OTHER INCOME Note Rupees

From financial assets
- Profit on bank/short term deposits 2577677 3,008,532
- Interest income on account of due from related parties 4,959,465 3,680,954
From non-financial assets
- Reversal of Wotker's Welfare Fund 6,081,207 -
- Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 2,299,686 48,814,578
- Scrap sales - 19,035,694
- Rental income 2,389,000 2,490,000
- Others 1,482,666 -

19,789,701 77,029,758

38 EXCHANGE GAIN - NET

This represents exchange gmin incurred on foreign cutrency denominated trade debts, advances from
customers, creditors and bank balances.

2022 2021
39 INCOME TAX EXPENSE Rupees
- Current 138,778,927 91,744,142
- priot year (19,905,170) -
- Deferred {10,142,614) (11,323,958)
108,731,143 80,420,184
39.1 Reconciliation of income tax expense for the
year and accounting profit
Profit before tax 531,147,111 -
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2021:29%%) 154,032,662 -
Tax effect of poverty elevation tax 13,511,757 -
Priot year chatge {19,905,170) -
Tax charge on temporary difference {10,142,614) -
Tax effect of income under FTR (27,306,931) -
Other (1,458,561) -

108,731,143 -

39.2 Current year taxation has been chatged on the basis of provisions in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and
accounted for after taking effect of admissible expenses in normal taxation with propottion of local sales and
on final tax regime applicable to the Company based on tax withheld from export proceeds which is deemed
as full and final discharge of the tax liability.
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393

394

39.5

11

During the year, the company has received notice U/S 221(2) from FBR regarding WWE and WPPF for the
tax year 2019 and 2020, The deputy commissioner is of view that the company has adjusted the liability of
WWE and WPPF against the refund. He quoted the section 170(3) of the ordinance that the refund can only
be adjusted against any other liability of tax. Since WWF and WPPF ate not classifiable as "Fax" hence the
same cannot be adjusted against the tax liability or credit. The company has responded that they had not
adjusted any liability of WWF and WPPF against the refundable income tax ameunt upon filing of income
tax retumn for tax year 2019 and 2020. The deputy commissioner has passed the order, without being
considering the point raised by the company, against the company u/s 221(1) to rectify mistakes of
mistreatment of WWF and WPPF amounting to Rs. 4.96 million and Rs. 4.15 million for the tax year 2019
and 2020 respectively, The company has filed appeal before the commissioner inland revenue (Appeals-IT),
Karachi against the order and has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh, Karachi with reference of
C.PNo. D-6595 of 2021 and C.P.No. D-65%6 of 2021 against the recovety notice of tax year 2019 and 2020
respectively. On the basis of factual and legal position in above pending appeals before with CIRA, we
anticipate favorable outcome of such appeals in the favor of the Company.

Return of 2016-17 filed on January 17, 2018, is an assessment order u/s 120 unless amended under section
122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The ADCIR initiated the proceeding u/s 122(5A) of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 vide notice dated 21-05-2018 for amendment of deemed assessment. The response of
the above notice submitted by the Company till November 15, 2018, no further notice has been received.

Return of 2020-21 filed on February 26, 2022, is an assessment order under section 120 unless amended
under section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2022 2021
Number of employees as at June 30 750 708
Average number of employees duting the year 729 688

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include subsidiary company, entities under commeon directorship, directers, major
shareholders, key management personnel and retirement benefit funds. Transactions with related parties
essentially entail rent expense and transactions with key management personnel. Details of transactions with
related parties and the balances with them as at year end other than those which have been disclosed else
where are as follows:




41.1

Nature of relationshlp

Directors
Subsidiary
JKT General Trading FZE

Matco Marketing (Private)
Litaited

Joint Venture
Barentz Pakistan (Privase) Limited

Associates based on common
directorship

Matco Bngincering Co (Privatc) Limited

Faiyaz Center Owmner Association

Trust operated by the Company
Ghoti Trust

Nature of relationship

Subsidiary

JKT General Trading FZE

Matco Marketing (Private)
Lirnited

Joint Venture

Percentage

Assoclates based on common directorship

Matco Engincering Co (Privatc) Limited

Faiyaz Center Owner Association

Trust operated by the Company
Ghoti Trust

of Holding Transactions
Godown rent paid to director
100% Sales
Payment teceived on account of sales
99.99% Paid expenses on behalf
49% Paid cxpenscs on behalf
Payment received oo account of expenscs
Interest Income
Interest Recelved
0% Paid expenses on behalf
Payment received on account of expensce
0% Paid expenses on hehalf
Payment reccived on account of expenses
0% Paid expenses on hehalf
Payment received on account of cxpenscs
Donstion expense
Percentage
of Holding Balances
100% Trade receivables ou i
090.99% Advwance outsmanding
49% Receivable against expenses
Interest receivable
0% Receivable againat expenaes
0% Receivable against expetises
0 Payable against donation

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Rupeas In
14,622,631 13,019,342
151,501,167 151,255,186
180,432,477 88,062,856
81475 81,835
108,381,383 124,782,682
100,022,341 85,325,438
4,189,553 3,680,954
1973986 2486642
1,678,675 -
1,911,001 1,040,161
3,483,278 1,085,000
981,021 160,061
1,141,082 -
8,138,247 4,487,539
74,200 5,946,122
10,835,724 5,265,700
June 30,2022  June 30, 2021
Rupees In
34,261,020 63,192,330
6,807,598 6,889,073
47,636,733 40,143,915
3,409,878 1,194,311
- 1,572.277
- 160,061
3‘748260 976I683

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered nto transactions or have arrangement

/ agresment in place:

Registered
Address

Company

8. No. Name

1
Trading FZE  Sharjah

JKT General  P.OBox 123347,

Name of Chief
Country of Basis of Executive / Aggregate % of  Operational
Incorporation  Association Principal Officer/  shareholding Status
Authorized Agent
U SUPSARLY e Al Ghor 100% Active
Company ’

Auditor's
Opinion

Clean
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41.2

41.3

42

42.1

42,2

423

43

43.1

Consideration for services is determined with mutual agreement considering the level of services provided.
Expenses charged by / to the Company are determined on actual cost basis. Particulars of remuneration of
chief executive officer, directors and executives are disclosed in note 42 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity. The Company considers all members of its management team,
including the chief executive officer and the directors to be key management personnel.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
For the purpose of disclosure those employees are considered as executives whose basic salary exceed twelve
hundred thousands rupees in financial year.

Chief Bxscutive Officer Directors Executives Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees

Short-term employee benefits

Mamgetial retohcmation 3,524,800 3,609,872 8,950,800 SA64.347 56,002,363 36,527,547 69,367,963 49,601,785
Haouae rent allowanees 1,409,920 1,624,442 3,580,320 4,258,956 22,756,945 16437405 27,747,185 22 320,803
Ttilities 1595898 1,113,478 2379848 3,054,896 6240811 2296572 10,216,557 6,464,946
Baonus 791,000 385,000 1,362,000 950,000 5653895 4,475 583 7006895 5,810,583
Fuel expetine 516,076 628,515 1,670,646 1,803,931 7,699,712 3,573,948 9,806434 6,006,394
Medical expense 214705 58,658 298,043 406,982 1301,046 685,800 1812,799 1,151,440
‘Vehicle expense 65,861 178,668 1552862 838,303 1,060,185 300,401 2,682,908 1,817,372
Other expense 207,200 89,520 405,563 633,220 - - 612,783 722,740

8,329,430 7'288‘153 20,200,087 21,4-10|§5 101,604,957 64‘79’?,276 130,1 34)._524 9%

Value of motor vehidles 5105267 17906727 _ 21568043 15434001 _ 43812448 20510,638 _ 70485758 54152266
Number of Persons 1 1 2 3 35 19

In addition to above, fees of 0,719 million (2021: 0.950 million) was paid to independent directors of the
company for attending board of directors meeting during the year.

In addition to the above, chief executive officer and directors are provided with the use of the Company's
vehicles, Certain executives are also provided with Company maintained cars,

The Company considers its chief execntive officer and the executive director as its key management
petsonnel Le. the personnel having authotity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company.

2022 2021
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION (Tons) (Tons)
Annual Plant Capacity
- Rice processing 178,500 134,700
- Rice Glucose 33,000 33,000
Actual Production
- Rice processing 118,266 103,962
- Rice Glucose 12,081 11,878

Actual production is less than installed capacity due to planned maintenance shutdown and production
planned as per market demand.
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2022 2021
44 EARNINGS / {LOSS} PER SHARE - ——————Rupees-———7—
BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit / (Loss) for the year 422,415,968 (60,866,709)
Number of ordinary shares 122,400,698 122,400,698
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 122,400,698 122,400,698
Earnings / (loss ) per share - basic and diluted 3.45 (0.50)

‘There is no dilutive effect on earnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible instruments
as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
‘The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price rigk), credit risk and liquidity risk.. The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings
volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.
‘The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framewotk. The Boatrd is also tesponsible fot developing and monitoting the Company's tisk
management policies. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance which are as
follows:

45.1 Market risk
Market risk refers to fluctuation in value of financial instruments as a result of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprise of currency dsk, interest rate risk and price rsk.

45.1.1 Currency risk
Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where recetvables, bank balances,
borrowings and payables exist due 1o transactions entered into foreign currencies.

Exposure to Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the

following:

2022 2021

————Amount In USD ———

Trade debts 8,268,009 5,905,758
Cash and bank balances 104,534 20,087
Advance from customer (30,170 (129,973)
Net Exposure 8,342,373 5,795,872
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2022 2021

Rupee per USD

Average rate 179.00 160.33
Reporting date rate 204.85 157.54

Forelgn currency sensltivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have effect on the equity and
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of the company as shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
June 30, 2022,
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45.1.2

45.1.3

2022 2021
—————Rupees————
Strengthening of PKR against respective cutrencies (170,890,764) {91,308,160)
Weakening of PKR against respective currencies 170,890,764 91,308,160

A 10 percentage weakening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have had the equal but
opposite effect on USD to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
becanse of changes in market prices {other than those atising from interest or currency rate tisk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specified to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to price risk
because of investments in equity securities amounting to Rs. 10,210,050 (2021: Rs. 379,910) as changes in
ptices of equity secutities affect the Company. The Company is not exposed to commodity ptice risk.

As of June 30, 2022, if fair value had been 1% higher/ {(lower) with all the variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been higher / (lower) by Rs. 102,100.5 (2021: Rs. 3,791.9).

Interest/Mark-up rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates, The Company has long tetm and short term finance at vatiable
rates. The Company is exposed to interest/mark-up tate tisk on long and short term financing and these ate
coveted by holding "Prepayment Option" and "Rollover Option". Interest rate fisk on short term
bottowings is covered by holding "Prepayment Option" which can be exetcised upon any adverse movement
in the underlying interest rates. ‘The local and foreign currency loans carry mark up at the prevailing rate of
SBP plus 1% to 2.5%, KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2% respectively. Applicable interest rates for financial assets
and liahilities are given in respective notes.
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2022
Marle-up / profit bearing Non mark-up / Total
Less than One year to 0 profit bearing
Note one year Five years five years
Fnancial assets Rupees
Amortised cost _
Long-term deposita - - - 16,759,174 16,759,174
Long-tetm investnemnts 2 - - - 55,582,707 55,582,707
Trade debts - considered goods 25 - - - 1,818,339,385 1,818,339,385
Loans 26 - - - 13,245,862 13,245,862
Deposita 27 - - - 1A48,588 1A48,588
Shott-teom investment 29 1,200,000 - - - 1,20¢.000
Due froum related parties 30 51,046,611 - - - 51,046,611
Cash and bank balances ) | 30,037,308 - - 273,529,109 303,566,417
82,283,919 - - 2,178,904,824 2,261,1B8,743
Fair value through profit or koss
Short-term investment 28 | - - - | 3,054,742 | 3,054,742 |
Falr value through other comprehensive
Income

Long-tertn investmetts 2 | - - - |l 7155308 7.155.308]|
Financial liabllitles
At amortized cost
Long tern fingnces - secared 9 172,857,144 1,582,432,193 - - 1,755,289337
Due to related party 15 - - - 10,555,958 10,555,958
Ttade and othet payables 13 - - - 529,811,001 529,811,001
Acermed mark-np 14 - - - 120,739,263 120,739,263
Short term battowings - secuted 16 6,979,644,808 - - - 6,979,644,808
Unpaid dividend 17 - - - 783,668 783,668
Lease lighilities 10 27,634,388 129,119, 45,483,454 - 203,236,876

7,180,136,.340 1,711,551 217 46,483 464 761,339,889 9,700,060,910
On balance sheet gap 7,097 852421) _ (1,711,551,2171 __ [46,A83,464) 1A17,014935 |7, 438,872,166)
Off balance sheet Items
Guarantees 1B.2 - - - 45,296,400 45,296,400
Lettet of credit 18.2 - - - 386,270,071 386,270,071
Capital Expenditures 18.2 - - - 2,400,000 2,400,000
Cheqnes issued in favour of Nazir of high
court in relation to S3GC case 1R.2 - - - 5,165,163 5,165,163

2021
Mark-nup / profit bearing Non mark-up / ‘Total
Less than One year to O profit beating
Note one year Five years five ;

Firancial asscts -Rupees
Amortised cost
Long-term deposits - - - 16,322,284
Long-tetin investimeniy 22 - - - 55,582,707
Trade debta - considered gooda 25 - - - 1,041,124.344
Loany 26 - - - 14,597,971
Depoaits 27 - - - 2,286,199
Shott-tztm investment 28 1,200,000 - - -
Dhue from related partica 30 41,338,226 - - 2,028,169
Cash and bank balances 3 %‘1 71:906 - - 73:5%578
Fait value through profit of loss _
Short-term investment 28 | -] -] -] 379,910 | 379910 |
Finanwial liahilities
At amortized cost
Long tenn finances - secored 9 175,076,206 492,910,736 - - 667,986,942
Dhue to related party 15 - - - 7,865,756 7,865,756
"T'rade and other payables 13 - - - 508,670,823 508,670,823
Acerued mark-op 14 - - - 57,877,929 57,877,929
Shott term battowings 16 5,533,005,240 - - - 5,533,005,240
Unpaid dividend 17 - - - 787,654 787,654
Leage liskilities 10 - 67,527,264 92,748,130 - 150,275,354

5,708,081,446 560,438,000 82,748,130 575,202,162 6,926,469,738
On balance sheet gap (5,639,371.314) (560,438,000} (82,748,130 635,628,090 {5,646,929,3549)
Off balance sheet itemn
Guarantees 18.2 - - - 34&430 34&480
Lettet of credit 18.2 - - - 912,150,112 912,150,112
Capital Expenditures 1B.2 - - - 543,478,892 543,478,892
Cheques issued in favour of Nazit of high 182 - - - 1,828,689 1,828,689
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)] On balance sheet gap tepresents the net atnounts of unconsolidated statement of finaneial position items.
® Effective rates of return/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

Financial liabilities 2022 2021
SBP rate+ 1% to SBP rate+ 1% to
Long term finances - secured 2.5% & KIBOR + 2.5% & KIBOR +
1% to 1.5% 1% to 1.5%
SBP rate+ 1% & SBP rate+ 1% &
Short term borrowings KIBOR + (.75% KIBOR + 0.75%
to 2% to 1.75%

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company docs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit ot
loss. Therefote, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect unconsolidated statement of
profit ot loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At June 30, 2022, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 17.55 million (2021: Rs. 6.68 million) higher /
lowet, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings,

At June 30, 2022, if interest rates on short term borrowings bad been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 69.8 million (2021: Rs. 55.30 million)
higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate botrowings.
452 Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-partics
failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant exposure to any
individual countet-party, thetefore, the management does not consider that it has any concentration of credit
dsk at reporting date. To reduce exposure to credit tisk the Company has developed a formal approval
process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management also repularly monitors the credit
exposute towards the customers and makes allowance for ECLs against those balances considered doubtful
of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based
on evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Ouistanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored. Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security
deposit, bank guarantees and insurance guarantees.

The Company's maximum exposute to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2022 2021

Financial assets Rupees

Long-term investments 55,582,707 55,582,707
Long-term deposits 16,759,174 16,322,284
Ttrade debts 1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344
Loans 13,245,862 14,697,971
Ttade deposit 1,448,588 2,286,199
Short-term investment 4,254,742 1,579,910
Due from telated patties 51,046,611 43,366,395
Bank balances 294,705,532 101,430,160

2,255,382,601 1,276,389,970
The ageing of trade debts and relsted movement of ECL has been disclosed in note 25.3 of these

unconsolidated financial statements.

Bank balances

The Company limits its exposute to credit risk by investing in liquid secutities and maintaining bank accounts
only with counter-parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not
expect that any counter party will fail to meet their obligations.




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:

Short- 2022 2021
term = — Rupees- S—
Ratings

MCB Bank Limited Al+ 21,449,332 38,391,155
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ 18,306,880 10,244,734
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ 1,400,712 2,652,575
Standard Chartered Banlk Limited Al+ 33,028,302 114,953
United Bank Limited Al+ 8,299,915 6,881,097
Allied Bank Limited Al+ 4,446,577 1,247,631
Askari Bank Limited Al+ 17,293,543 7,019,543
Bank Alfalah Timited Al+ 73,095,514 15,019,069
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ 28,663,442 1,946,405
Habib Bank Limited Al+ 52,510,236 8,425,469
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ 11,354,257 3,300,398
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ 542,742 570,177
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ 7,727,330 3,190,623
JS Bank Al+ 147,589 -
MCB Islamic Bank Al - 2,733,731
Bank of Punjab Al+ 39,678,021 892,600

317,944,392 102,630,160

Exposure to credlt risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
Note @  ——— Rupees- S—
Due from related parties 30 51,046,611 43,366,395
Trade debis 25 1,818,339,385 1,041,124,344
Loans 26 13,245,862 14,697,971
Shori-term investment. 28 4,254,742 1,579,910
Baok balances 3 294,705,532 101,430,160
2,181,592,132 1,202,198,780

453 Liquidity risk
The Company finances its operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping regular continued credit lines.
As on reporting date, the Company had cash and bank balances and term deposit amounting to Rs 295.27
million 8 Rs. 1.2 million respectively (2021: Rs. 105 million & 1.2 million}, and unudlized credit lines of Rs.
464 million (2021: 566 million).

46 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing par ties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying values
and the fair value estimates.
The Company classifics fair value measurements using a fair value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the:
a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are obsetvable for the asset ot Hability, either
directly (that is, as prices) ot indirectly (that is, detived from prices) (level 2).
¢ Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

Annual Report 2022
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
petiod during which the wransfer has occurred.

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes
monitoring of the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g.. significant increases / decreases in activity)

- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g, inputs becoming / ceasing 0 be observable in the
market)

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year,

The following table represenis the Company's assets that are measured at fair value as at June 30, 2022 and

June 30, 2021:
202
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
J— —Rllpﬁ— —
Noo-aancial gesets
Property, plant snd equipment - - 5,797, 041,660 5,797,041,660
Financiol ssscrs
Pinancial assets held at fair vahue through profit or loss 5,054,742 - - 3054, 742
Pinancial assets held at fair value through other
comprehensive income 7,155,308 - - 7,155,308
P-4
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
___Rnpgq___
Nenfnandial arreis
Property, plant and equipment - - 4,366,622,54 4,366,622,54
Fiwansind assett
Financial sssets held at fulr whae through profit of oss 3NS50 - - 379,910

Certain categories of operating fixed assets {(Jand, buildings, plant and machinery and penerators include
tevaluation surplus} (level 3 measurement) detetmined by an independent professional valuer based on their
assessment of the market values as disclosed in note 8 to these unconsolidated financial statements. The
effect of changes in the unohservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty.
Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these unconsclidated financial
statements.

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
cofcemn so that it can contiue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholdets and to
maintain a strong capital base to suppott the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company managres its capital structure by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and keeping in view
future investments requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings
(short term borrowings, long term finances and current portion of long term finances as shown in the balance
sheet). Capital significs equity as reported in statement of financial position and includes shate capital, share

The Company's stratepy is to maintain leveraged gearing. ‘The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2022 and 2021
were as follows:




MATCC FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees

Total botrowings 8,948,367,908 5,712,492,342
Less: Cash and bank 31 (303,566,417) (298,290,025)
Net debt 8,644,801,491 5,414,202,317
Total equity 7,058,380,142 6,651,118,485
Total equity and debt 15,703,181,633 12,065,320,802
Gearing ratio (Vo) 85% 45%

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to maintain an approptiate mix amongst various soutces of finance to minimize risk.

48 OPERATING SEGMENTS

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepated on the basis of a single teportable segment as
the Company's asset allocation decision are based on single, integrated business strategy and the Company’s
business petformace is evaluated on an overall basis.

48.1 Revenue from sale of rice represents 88.68% (2021: 89.59%) of the total tevenue of the Company. Whereas
9.59% (2021: 9.43%) tepresents revenue from sale of rice glucose and remaining represents othet items.

48.2  All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan except for itvestment in
JKT General Trading (FZE) which is disclosed in note 22 of these unconsoclidated financial statements,
Further, debtors from tice represents 83.58% (2021: 90.13%) of the total debtors,

49 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have also been rearranged and/or reclassified, whetever necessary, for better
presentation, However, there has been no material reclassification in these unconsolidated financial
statements,

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for
issue on September 07, 2022,

50.1 Non-adjusting events after the reporting date

Subsequent to the year end on 26 August 2022, Matco Foods Limited (MFL) has announced the successful
commissioning and commercial operations of its new 72,000 MT per year Corn Starch Plant, located in
Allama Iqgbal Industrial City, Special Economic Zone Faisalabad, FIEDMC.,

51 GENERAL
511  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee,
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Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui Faizan Ali Ghori
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Matco Foods Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Matco Foods Limited and
its subsidiaries {the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at June 30, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.




Following is the Key Audit Matter:

S. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our
audit
1. Valuation of Stock in Trade As part of our audit, we have performed

As at June 30, 2022, the Group held
stock in trade amounting to Rs. 7,662
million (2021: Rs. 7,171 million) as
disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. The stock in trade
account for 74.4% {2021: 81.9%) of
the total current assets. The value of
stock is based on the purchase price
using weighted average method.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to
the risk of valuation of stock in trade
as a result of volatility in prices.

The Group is required to measure its
stock in trade at the lower of cost and
net realizable value {NRV). There is an
element of judgement involved
relating to the valuation, which is
required for the estimation of the
NRV and allowance for slow-moving
and obsolete stock in trades. Such
estimation is made after taking into
consideration factors such as
movement in prices, current and
expected future market demands and
pricing competitions.

This was the key audit mater because
of its materiality and significance in
terms of judgments involved in
estimating the NRV of underlying
inventories.

the
following audit procedures:

e Attended the stock counts at locations
to observe the stock count process
and
evaluate the condition of stock in
trade.

* Tested the valuation method used by
the management in valuation of stock
in trade.

e Compared on sample basis specific
purchases with underlying supporting
documents.

» Evaluated the appropriateness of the
basis and processes used by
management in determining the net
realizable value of
stock in trade.

* Performed testing on sample of items
to assess the NRV of the inventories
held and evaluating the adequacy of
provision for slow moving and
obsolete stock.

o Reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures on stock in trade in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
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Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Khalid Aziz.

B ot Vet Hu— ) -

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: September 27, 2022
UDIN: AR2022101542ulRf7yVI




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Capital reserve

Exchange revaluation reserve

Unappropriated profit

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of tax

Unrealized revaluation (loss) on investment
at fair value through OCI

Total shareholders’ equity

Non-current liabilities

Long-term finances-secured
Lease liabilities

Deferred liabilities
Deferred grant

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Advance from customers - secured
Accrued mark-up

Due to related party

Short-term borrowings-secured
Taxation-net

Current portion of deferred grant
Current portion of long term finances-secured
Current portion of lease liabilities
Unpaid dividend

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

Note

6.1

6.2

10
i b 1
12

13
14
15
16
12

10
17

18

2022 2021
Rupees

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980
680,467,220 680,467,220
35,813,942 15,811,102
2,755,161,471 2,292,538,936
2,433,901,302 2,459,499,494

(3,390,337) -
7,125,960,578 6,672,323,732
1,582,432,193 492,910,736
175,602,488 126,630,601
252,041,979 221,768,163
- 952,280
2,010,076,660 842,261,780
671,791,401 520,549,749
22,612,550 35,747,606
120,739,263 57,877,929
3,748,359 989,503
6,979,644,808 5,533,005,240

5,131,962 -
1,561,352 6,176,233
172,857,144 175,076,206
27,634,388 23,644,793
783,668 787,654
8,006,504,895 6,353,854,913
10,016,581,555 7,196,116,693
17,142,542,133 13,868,440,425

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

/"’ Notis {._:’" S
= e e
i /

Faizan Ali Ghori
Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note ------rsmmmmcmmmme e Rupees--------==emrmmmemeu-
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 19 6,569,614,069 4,907,931,000
Right-of-use assets 20 235,566,923 171,532,871
Intangible assets 21 - -
Long-term deposits 16,759,174 16,322,284
Long-term investments 22 25,410,712 13,371,464
Total non-current assets 6,847,350,878 5,109,157,619
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 23 86,091,117 70,444,301
Stock in trade 24 7,662,053,984 7,171,280,359
Trade debts 25 1,897,929,702 1,060,858,614
Loans and advances 26 155,031,810 103,660,064
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 27 11,705,111 10,792,520
Short-term investment 28 4,254,742 1,579,910
Sales tax refundable 29 105,056,731 123,598,158
Due from related parties 30 51,046,611 43,070,564
Taxation - net - 31,683,482
Cash and bank balances 31 322,021,447 142,314,834
Total current assets 10,295,191,255 8,759,282,806
Total assets 17,142,542,133 13,868,440,425

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

M. Aamir Farooqui

Chief Financial Officer

/"’ Notis {._:’" S
= e e
i /

Faizan Ali Ghori
Director




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note

Sales - net 32
Cost of sales 33
GROSS PROFIT
Selling and Distribution expenses 34
Administrative expenses 35
Finance cost 36
Other income 37
Share of profit/(loss) from associate company
Exchange gain - net 38
Provision for worker's welfare fund 131
Provision for worker's profit participation fund 13.2
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense 39
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Holding Company
Non-controlling interest
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED 44

2022 2021
Rupees

12,399,470,102 10,574,095,621
(11,056,103,781) (9,909,427,766)

1,343,366,321 664,667,855
(229,279,801) (187,321,615)
(358,270,742) (312,402,873)
(587,550,543) (499,724,488)

755,815,778 164,943,367
(388,135,728) (273,181,730)

19,801,519 77,035,369
4,883,940 (5,276,389)

202,334,249 65,215,796
(10,622,942) (391,070)
(26,557,356) (977,674)

557,519,460 27,367,669
(108,731,143) (80,420,184)
448,788,317 (53,052,515)
448,788,317 (53,052,515)
448,788,317_ (53,052,515_)
3.67 (0.43)

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer

X

M. Aamir Farooqui
Chief Financial Officer

/ 5 2o
7N e
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Faizan Ali Ghori

Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note mmmm e e e - RUP @@= mmmmmmmmm
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 448,788,317 (53,052,515)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss
- Exchange difference of translation 20,002,840 (3,773,523)
of foreign operations
Items that will not to be reclassified
subsequently to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefits obligation 11.2.5 (11,763,974) (982,193)
- Unrealized loss on revaluation of investment
at fair value through OCI during the year (3,390,337) -
Other comprehensive loss (15,154,311) (982,193)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR 453,636,846 (57,808,231)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Holding Company 453,636,846 (57,808,231)
Non-controlling interest - -
453,636,846 (57,808,231)

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- Ee=3

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui Faizan Ali Ghori
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 19
Depreciation on right of use assets
Exchange gain - net 38
Short-term investment
Provision for slow moving stock
Share of (profit) / loss from associates
Finance cost 36
Provision for staff gratuity 11.2
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 37

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - considered good

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments
Sales tax refundable

Due from related parties

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Due to related party

Deferred grant

Advances from customers

Cash used in operations

Finance cost paid

Income taxes paid

Gratuity paid 11.2
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure including capital work in progress
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term investment

Long-term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Balance carried forward

2022 2021
Rupees
557,519,460 27,367,669
226,967,664 232,491,504
30,008,456 26,925,392
(203,480,971) (65,215,796)
(2,674,832) (116,470)
594,383 186,342
(4,883,940) 5,276,389
401,829,081 285,156,818
43,929,752 32,336,550
(2,299,686) (48,814,578)
489,989,907 468,226,151
1,047,509,367 495,593,820
(15,646,816) (25,421,771)
(491,368,008)|| (528,943,351)
(634,736,839) 378,509,224
(51,371,746) 14,959,650
(912,591) (908,771)
18,541,427 42,791,173
(7,976,047) (38,061,524)
(1,183,470,620) (157,075,370)
151,241,652 (495,259,839)
2,758,856 989,503
(5,567,161) 1,004,335
(13,135,056) (16,231,445)
135,298,291 (509,497,446)
(662,962) (170,978,996)
(338,891,799)|| (271,609,164)
(101,963,487) (72,336,350)
(15,353,244) (6,115,622)
(456,871,492) (521,040,132)
(1,908,382,234)|| (379,010,425)
9,814,000 216,678,100
(10,545,645) -
(436,890) (3,744,206)
(1,909,550,769) (166,076,531)
(2,366,422,261) (687,116,663)
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees

Balance brought forward (2,366,422,261) (687,116,663)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term finances - net 1,087,302,395 213,866,285
Lease rentals paid during the year (28,863,837) (33,932,143)
Dividend paid (3,986) (67,848,128)
Short-term borrowings - net 1,446,639,568 417,108,202
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,505,074,140 529,194,216
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

during the year 138,651,879 (157,922,447)
Effect of exchange rate changes on value of

foreign operation 20,002,840 (3,773,523)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning

of year 142,314,834 304,050,251
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 1,146,722 (39,447)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year 31 302,116,275 142,314,834

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(e X A2

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui Faizan Ali Ghori
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The 'Group' consists of:

Holding Company
- Matco Foods Limited (the Holding Group)

Subsidiary Companies
- JKT General Trading FZE
- Matco Marketing (Private) Limited

Associated Company
- Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited

The Group is engaged in the business of processing and export of rice, glucose, protein and flour,
manufacturing, general trading, exports/imports and other related activities. Brief profile of the
Holding Group and its subsidiaries is as under:

a) Matco Foods Limited

Matco Foods Limited, ('the Holding Company') was incorporated on April 14, 1990 in Karachi as a
private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now: Companies Act, 2017).
The Holding Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on February 13, 2018. The
principal activity of the Holding Company is to camry out the business of processing and export of rice,
rice glucose, rice protein and pink salt, masala and kheer. The registered office of the Holding Company
is situated at B-1/A, S.LT.E.-ll Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi; whereas the factories of
the Holding Company are situated at (i) Plot A-15 & 16, SITE-II, Super highway Karachi; (ii) A-21, SITE-II,
Super highway Karachi; (iii) G-205, SITE-II, Super highway Karachi and (iv) 50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke,

The Group has 100% ownership in JKT General Trading FZE (subsidiary) a UAE based Company and
99.9% in Matco Marketing (Private) Limited based in Pakistan.

The Group has started a new business venture of Corn Starch at Plot # 53, S.E.Z, Allama Igbal Industrial
City in Faisalabad.

b) JKT General Trading FZE

JKT General Trading FZE, ('the establishment') is a free zone establishment with limited liability
registered in Saif-Zone, Sharjah, United Arab Emirates (UAE) under general trading license no. 12689.
The principal activity of the establishment is purchasing and selling of processed rice.

The registered office of the establishment is at PO Box 123347, Sharjah, UAE.
The subsidiary has been established on October 8, 2013.
c) Matco Marketing (Private) Limited

The Group has incorporated another subsidiary Matco Marketing (Private) Limited through 100%
ownership. The subsidiary is situated at B-01/A, S.I.T.E, Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi.
Matco Marketing (Private) Limited was incorporated on June 16, 2016 with authorized and paid-up
share capital of PKR 10 million and PKR 7.5 million respectively. However, no business carried out by
the subsidiary company since itsincorporation.

d) Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited

The Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited (a joint venture between Barentz International B.V and Matco
Foods Limited with holding of 51% and 49% respectively) has been incorporated in Pakistan on June 28,
2019 with the approval of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Competition Commission
of Pakistan.
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2 SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE Group'Ss FINANCIAL POSITION AND
PERFORMANCE
During the year the Group has recognized Rs.1,772 million (2021:Rs. 175 million) in Capital work in
progress In respect of Comstarch Project, which has commenced its commercial operation subsequent
to the reporting date.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as appllcable In Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable In
Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the Intemnational Accounting Standards
Board (I1ASB} as notifled under the Companles Act, 2017; and
- provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the required of
IFRS, the provislons of and directives Issued under the Companles Act, 2017 have been followed In
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

3.2  Basls of measurement
These consolidated financlal statements have been prepared under the historlcal cost convention
except as stated otherwise in these consolidated financial statements.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented In Paklstani Rupees which is the Group's
functional currency and presentation currency.

34  Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

34.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the
Group and adopted in the current year
The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and
interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Effective Date
Standard or Interpretation {Annual perlods beginning
on or after}

Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in January 1, 2020
IFRS Standards v
IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3 January 1, 2020
IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material’ {Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020
IFRS 9, and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase | January 1, 2020
Adoption of the above standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30,
2021.

3.4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not
yet effective and not early adopted by the Group
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and Interpretations would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.
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Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annual periods beginning
on or after}
Fees In the “10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabllities
1, 2022
{Amendment to IFRS 9) fanuary 1, 20
Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendments to 1AS 37} January 1, 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1. 2022
{Amendments to IAS 16} January 1,
Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendment to IFRS 1) January 1, 2022
Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (Amendment to 1AS 41) January 1, 2022
Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework {Amendments to January 1, 2022
Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annual periods beginning
on or after}
Classification of LiablliHes as Current or Non-current {Amendments to January 1, 2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Labllitles arising from a Single January 1. 2023
Transaction {Amendments to IAS 12) vh
Definltion of Accounting Estimates {Amendments to 1AS 8) January 1, 2023
Disclosure Initiative—Accounting Policies January 1, 2023

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and
Interpretations to the published standards on the flnanclal statements of the Group.

Standards, amendments and Interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notifled by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP}

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB}
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date
{Annual periods beginning
on or after}
IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023
IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting January 1, 200%

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved financial
reporting framework requires the use of certaln critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of
which form the basls of making the Judgments about carrying values of assets and llabllities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in
the perlod of the revislon and future perlods If the revislon affects both current and future perleds.
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5.1

The areas involving a higher degree of Judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Note
{a) useful lives of property, plant and equipment 5.2
{b) useful lives of right-of-use assets 5.3
{c) Impalrment of financlal assets 5.6
{d) staff retirement plan 5.1
{e} Income taxes 5.13
{f) contingencles 5.18
{g) provisions 5.23
{h) impairment of non-financial asset 5.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

The principal accounting policies have been applled on consistent basls. These policles have been
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Basls of consolidation

The consolidated financlal statements consists of financial statements of the Holding Company and Its
subsidiary companies as disclosed in note 1 to these consclidated financial statements {here in after
referred as the Group).

The financlal statements of the Holding Company and hs subsldlary companles are prepared up to the
same reporting date and are combined on a line-by-line basis.

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combination using the acquisiion method when control Is transferred
to the Group. The consideration transferred (including contingent consideration) in the acquisition is
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwlll that acquire Is not
amortized but tested annually for Impairment. Any galn on a bargain purchase Is recognized In profit or
loss immediately. Transaction cost are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or
equity securities. When the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete at the end of a
reporting period, provisional amounts are used. During the measurement pericd, the provisional
amounts are retrospectively ad]usted and additional assets and llablliles may be recognized, to reflect
new information obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date which
would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized at that date, had they been known
the measurement period does not exceed twelve months from the date of acquisition.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed
to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those retums through its power over the entity generally accompanying Grouping a shareholding of
more than fifty percent of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control 1s transferred to the Group and up to the date when the control ceases. Nen-controlling
interest is that portion of equity in a subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Parent. Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Non-controlling interests are presented as a separate

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acqulired of the carrylng value of net assets of the subsldlary Is recorded In the
equity. Galns or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equlty.

Changes in the Group interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equlty as transactions.
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5.2

On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidlary. Any surplus or
deficit arising on the loss of control Is recognised in consolldated pro t and loss account. If the Group
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date
that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-
for-sale financial asset depending on the level of Influence retalned.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated.

Froperty, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment other than land, factory bulldings, plant and machinery and
generators are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss {if any].

Land, factory buildings, plant and machinery and generators are measured at the revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any).

Revaluation model

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, factory buildings, plant and machinery and
generators Is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income and presented as a separate
component of equity as “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax®, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in
consolldated statement of profit or loss, In which case the Increase is credited to statement of profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the
revaluation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held in the Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. The Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to the
extent of Incremental depreclation charged {net of deferred tax) Is transferred to unappropriated
profit. Impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.24.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revalued amount of assets {other than land and
capltal work in progress) over their estimated useful lives, using the diminishing balance method at
rates specified In note 19.1 to the consolidated financial statements. Depreclaon on additdon Is
charged from the day an asset is available for use upto the day prior to its disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and
related surplus on revaluation of property and plant is transferred directly to retained eamings /
unappropriated profits.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The Group's estimate of residual value of property, plant and
equipment as at June 30, 2021 did not require any adjustment.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures
connected to the specific assets Incurred during Installation and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. Cost also includes applicable borrowing cost. These are transferred to specific
assets as and when assets are available for use.

Right-of-use assets and related liabilities

After the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost model
whereby the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on straight line hasis in case of Godown and written down value
method In case of vehicles, from the lease commencement date to the earller of the end of the useful
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5.5
551

5.5.2

5.6

life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Iease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option in which case the right-of-use asset Is
depreciated from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. The
estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. The right-of-
use asset is subject to testing for impaimment if there is an indicator for impairment, as for owned

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses {if any). However, Intangible assets having Indefinite life are stated at cost less
impairment losses {if any). Impairment losses {if any} are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.24.

Subsequent cost is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
speclfic assets ta which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Amortization on additions to
intanglble assets are charged from the month In which an asset Is acquired or capitallzed while no
amortization is charged in the month In which the asset Is disposed of.

All intangible assets with an Indefinite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at each
reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount it is
written down immediately to Its recoverable amount. The carrying amount of other intangible assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there s any indication of Impalrment. If any
such indication exists than the assets recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is the
greater of its value in use and fair value less cost to sell.

Useful lives of intangibles assets are reviewed at each reporting date and us adjusted if the impact on
amortization is material,

Investments
Investment in Associates & Joint Venture

Assoclates are all entitles of which the Holding Company has slgnificant Influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or common

Investment in assoclated companies and loint ventures Is accounted for using the equlty method of
accounting. It is initially recognized at cost. The Group’s share in its associate’s & joint venture is post
acquisition profits or losses and other consolidated statements if profit or loss and other
comprehenslve income. The cumulative post acquisiion movements are adJusted agalnst the carrying
amount of the Instrument. Impalrment loss Is recognlzed whenever the carrylng amount of investment
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in a statement of profit or loss.

Other Investments

All regular way purchases / sales of investment are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date the
Group commits to purchase / sell the Investments. Regular way purchases or sales of Investment
require delivery of securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

IFRS 9 - Financlal Instruments - Inltial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial recognition

All financlal assets and llabllities are Inltially measured at cost which 1s the fair value of the
consideration given or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value ar amortized cost as

Classification of financlal assets

The Group classifies its financial instruments In the following categorles:
- at fair value through profit or loss {"FYTPL"}
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- at fair value through other comprehensive income {"FVTOCI"}, or
- at amortized cost.

The Group determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
instruments [other than equity instruments) is driven by the Group's business madel for managing the
financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financlal assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financlal assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Casslfication of financlal llabllties

The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss {"FVTPL"}, or

- at amortized cost

Financlal liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FYTPL
{such as instrument held for trading or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them at FVTPL.
Subsequent measurement

i} Financial assets at FYTOCI

Elected Investments in equlty Instruments at FVTOCI are Initially recognlzed at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value recognized in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

i1} Financlal assets and llabllites at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financlal assets, less any Impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed In the consolldated statement of profit or loss. Reallsed and unreallsed galns and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Where the management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated
with the Group's own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income/f{loss). Currently,
there are no financlal llabllitles designated at FVTPL.

Impalirment of financlal assets

The Group recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which
there Is no significant increase In credlt risk since initlal recognition or financlal assets which are
determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded.
The following were either determined to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition
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5.7

- bank balances;

- due from related parties;

- deposits; and

- loan and advances

Loss allowance for trade recelvables are always measured at an amount equal to life ime ECLs.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are
possible within twelve months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash short falls {i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract and cash flows that the Group expects to recelve).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

Derecognlition
i} Financlal assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assets expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks
and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized
cost, the difference between the assets carrylng value and the sum of the conslderation received and
receivable is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an
investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated 1In the Investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to consclidated statement of profit
or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an Investment In equity Instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previcusly accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss, but

11} Financial liabllites

The Group derecognises financlal liabllities only when Its obligations under the financlal llabllities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabiliies
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
Ilabilitles assumed, is recognised In consolidated statement of profit or loss account. The Group's
financlal llabilitles include long term finances, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up and short
term borrowing

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the dates on which the
derlvative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at falr value using appropriate
valuation techniques. All derlvative financlal Instruments are carrled as assets when falr value Is
positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative instruments
is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at the cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving Items. Items In transit are
valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon, up to the reporting date.

Stock-In-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value less impairment loss, if any. Raw material is
valued at moving weighted average cost, packing material is valued at cost, work in process is valued at
manufacturing cost and finished goods is valued at cost allocated on sales value of finish and by-
product for each Job completion or net reallzable value {NRV} whichever Is lower.

Net reallzable value signifies the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of buslness less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an unapproved gratuity scheme for its employees completing the eligibility period
of service as defined under the plan. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits dependent
on the length of service of an employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of minimum
qualifying period of service. Gratulty Is based on employees’ |ast drawn gross salary.

Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation
carrfed out annually by an external expert, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. All re-
measurement gains and losses are recognized in "Statement Of Other Comprehensive Income’ as these
occur. The amount recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of defined benefit obligations. The past service cost, current service cost and interest cost
are recognized in the consolldated statement of profit or loss when they Incur.

Trade debts
These are measured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for allowance for expected credit
loss based on the probabllity of default at reporting perlod. Bad debts are written off when [dentified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents are carrled In the consolldated statement of financlal position at cost. For
the purpose of statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with
banks, highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known amounts of cash and are
subject to Inslgnificant risk of change In value.

Taxation

Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance with the final tax regime,

where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the Ordinance) or the minimum tax under
section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the said

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the consolidated statement of financial positian liability methad on all
temporary differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases,
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Borrowings and their costs

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received net of transaction cost. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other
borrowlng costs are charged to consolldated statement of prefit or loss In the perlod In which these are
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perlod of time In exchange for
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5.16

5.17

5.19

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease llabilides to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Lease fiabilities

The lease llabllity Is Initally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method and remeasured (with a
corresponding ad]ustment to the related ROU assets when there Is a change In future lease payments
in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of reassessment of options.

il. Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment {l.e., those |leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

Deferred grant

The Group has obtained long term financing facility under State Bank of Pakistan Refinance Scheme for
payment of wages and salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns ('Refinance
Scheme’). It carries mark-up rate of SBP plus 1%, payable on quarterly basls, which Is below prevalling
market-rate. The government's underlying objective for introducing the sald Refinance Scheme for
businesses is to support the employment of workers in the face of economic challenges posed by the
spread of novel coronavirus {COVID-19).

The Refinance Scheme shall be considered as the transfer of resources from government as reflected
by below-market mark-up rate on the loans obtalned under the Refinance Scheme. The sald transfer
shall be accounted for as Government grant in accordance with the circular # 11 of 2020 issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP).

Government grants are first recognised In the statement of financlal position and then subsequently

accounted for in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expense the related cost for which the grants were intended to

Trade and other payables

Liabllides for trade and other payables are measured at cost which [s the falr value of the conslderation
to be paid in future for goods and services.

Contingencles

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the
outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability
of the latest Informaton, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabllities which may differ on
the occurrence/non- occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Group Is In the business of the manufacture and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and thereby the
performance obligations are satisfied, at amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
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5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.27

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods,

The Group has concluded that based on the contractual arrangement control of goods are transferred
and performance obllgations are satisfled at a point In time when the goods are dispatched to the

In case of export the control is transferred when the goods are shipped to the destination and Bill of
Lading has been prepared, thus completing the performance obligation. Whereas In case of local sales,
control Is transferred when the goods are dispatched to customers from the warehouse.

Interest Income
Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield.
Forelgn currency transaction & translation

TransacHons In forelgn currencles are accounted for In Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange prevalling on
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the
reporting date are expressed in Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transactlon. Exchange differences are taken to the consolldated
Off-setting of financlal assets and financlal liabllitdes

FInanclal assets and financlal liabllities are off-set and the net amount Is reported In the consolldated
financial statements only when the Group has a legally enforceable right to off-set the recognized
amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a |egal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and It Is probable that an cutflow of econemic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Operating segments
Operating segment is component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may

earn revenues and Incurred expenses. Board of Directors has been Identified as chief operating declslon
maker and is responsible for performance, allocation of resources and assessment of results.

Operating Segment are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
operating declsioh maker.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated and accordingly an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the carrying amount of the asset that exceeds its recoverable amount.

Related party transactions

All related party transactions are carrled out by the Group on arm's length basls.
Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share {(EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS Is determined by
ad[usting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Group's consolidated
financlal statements In the perlod In which such dividends are approved by the Board.
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6 SHARE CAPITAL
6.1  Authorized Share Capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 (2021:
200,000,000 200,000,000 Rs.10) 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

6.2  Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each:
50,340,213 50,340,213 - fully paid in cash 503,402,130 503,402,130
6,002,950 6,002,950 -issued for consideration other 60,029,500 60,029,500
than cash

66,057,535 66,057,535 -issued as fully paid bonus shares 660,575,350 660,575,350

122,400,698 122,400,698 1,224,006,980 1,224,006,980

6.3  On April 30, 2008 the Group entered into an agreement to takeover the running business of Matco
Marketing Group (the "Firm"), a sole proprietorship firm against the issuance of shares. The firm's
capital account as per the audit conducted by M/S Rafiq & Co, Chartered Accountant was Rs. 60
million, against which shares were issued to Mr. Tariq Ghori (Late) in lieu of this takeover in
accordance with the regulation 8 of Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996.

2022 2021
6.4 Shares held by the related parties of the Group --Number of Shares--
Director and their spouse
Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori 23,964,021 23,964,021
Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori 24,031,271 24,031,271
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori 843,250 523,250
Ms. Naheed Jawed (Spouse of Jawed Ali Ghori) 448,875 448,875
Ms. Nuzhat Khalid Ghori (Spouse of Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori) 448,875 448,875
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza 500 500
Mr. Murtaza Mahfooz Talib (Spouse of Faryal Murtaza) 336,821 336,821
Mr. Safwan Ghori 5,250 5,250
Mr. Syed Kamran Rasheed 7,029 7,029
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan 500 500
Ms. Umme Habibah 2,500 500
Mr Muhammad Mohsin 500 -
Substantial shareholder
International Finance Corporation 18,360,109 18,360,109
Ms. Sadaf Tarig 24,480,146 425,250
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2022 2021
6.5 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding --Number of Shares--
is as under:
Shares at the beginning of the year 122,400,698 122,400,698
Shares issued during the year in cash - -
Bonus shares issued during the year - -
Shares at the end of the year 122,400,698 122,400,698

6.6 The Group has issued 15% shares to International Finance Corporation (IFC) (registered with World
Bank) under an agreement with the Group. During the year 2012, the Group offered shares as fully
paid right shares which were declined by the existing members and the directors issued those shares
to the IFC. These shares have been issued at a price of Rs. 39.28 per share resulting in overall
premium from IFC on issue of shares amounting to Rs. 341.311 million.

2022 2021
7 CAPITAL RESERVE Note Rupees

Share premium 718&7.2 680,467,220 680,467,220

7.1 Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to IFC amounting to Rs. 341
million out of which Rs. 22.9 million had been utilized under section 83 of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017) during the year ended June 30, 2014.

7.2 Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to general public through IPO
amounting to Rs. 466.3 million out of which Rs. 45.9 million had been utilized under section 81 of
the Companies Act, 2017 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

8 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
NET OF TAX

This represents surplus arising on revaluation of land, buildings, plant and machinery and
generators, net of deferred tax. The revaluation was carried by Oceanic Surveyors (Private) Limited

2022 2021
Rupees

Surplus on revaluation at the beginning of the year 2,548,210,281 2,722,227,888
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of

disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,932,093) (136,271,079)
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of

incremental depreciation charged during the year (33,808,713) (37,746,528)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets as at June 30 2,512,469,475 2,548,210,281
Less: related deferred tax liability:
- at beginning of the year (88,710,787) (100,034,745)
- onincremental depreciation charged during the year 10,142,614 11,323,958

2,433,901,302 2459499494
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9

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

115

2022 2021
LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED Note ~  ~--m-ceeemeeee Rupees-------------
From banking companies and financial institution:
LTFF/ILTFF 9.1 413,740,791 316,751,724
TERF/ITERF 9.2 986,349,285 111,690,996
FFSAP 9.3 278,782,716 60,455,042
Demand Finance 9.4 26,391,304 56,989,128
Salary Refinance 9.5 50,025,241 122,100,052
1,755,289,337 667,986,942
Current portion of long term finances (172,857,144) (175,076,206)
1,582,432,193 492,910,736

The Group has obtained Long Term Financing/Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF/ILTFF)
under SBP Schemes from various commercial banks. The effective rates of mark-up on these
facilities vary from SBP rate+ 1% to 2.5% per annum (2021: SBP rate+ 1% to 2.5% per annum).

The Group has obtained Temporary Economic/Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
(TERF/ITERF) under SBP Schemes from various commercial banks and islamic banks. The effective
rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from SBP rate+ 1.50% to 2% per annum (2021: SBP+ 1.5% to
2% per annum).

The Group has obtained Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP) under SBP
Scheme from various financial institutions. The effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary
from SBP rate+ 1.25% to 2.00% per annum (2021: SBP rate+ 1% to 1.25% per anum).

The Group has obtained Demand Finance Facility (DF) from various commercial banks. The effective
rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from KIBOR+ 1% to 1.5% per annum (2021: KIBOR+ 0.75% to
1.75% per annum).

The Group has obtained Diminishing Musharakah Islamic Long Term Financing Facility(ILTFF) under
SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees as per the
SBP Circular # 06 of 2020 dated: April 10, 2020. The effective rate of mark-up on the facility is SBP
rate plus 1% (2021: SBP rate plus 1% per annum).

These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present/future fixed assets (land,
building, plant & machinery) of the Group with 25% margin / 1st Exclusive charge over specific
machinery assets.

The maximum available amount from above mentioned facilities amounts to Rs. 27 million (2021:Rs.
674 million).
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10 LEASE LIABILITIES

2022 2021
Note Vehicle Godown Total Vehicle Godown Total
Rupees

Opening balance 62,159,861 88,115,533 150,275,394 53,104,121 89,370,526 142,474,647

Impact of adoption of IFRS-16 - - - - - -
Reassessment of lease liability - 17,437,503 17,437,503 - 3225302 3,225,302
At Julyl 62,159,861 105,553,036 167,712,897 53,104,121 92,596,328 145,700,449
Additions for the year 64,387,816 - 64,387,816 26,532,000 - 26,532,000
Accrued interest during the year 8,604,527 13,693,353 22,297 880 4519909 11,975,088 16,494.997
135,152,204 119,246,389 254,398,593 34,156,030 104,571 416 188,727 446
Payment made during the year (32,322,672)  (18,839,045) (51,161,717) (21,996,169) (16,455,383) (38,452,052)
102,829,532 100,407,344 203,236,876 62,159,861 38,115,533 150,275,394
Current portion of lease liabilities 20,193,971 7,440,417 27,634,388 18,277,390 5,367,403 23,644,793
Non-current 82,635,561 92,966,927 175,602,488 43,882,471 82,743,130 126,630,601

10.1 Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Upto one yeat 20,193,971 7,440,417 27,634,388 18,277390 5367403 23,644 193
After one year 8263551 92966927 175,602,488 43882470  SQTAB130 126,630,601
Lease liabilities 102029532 100407344 203236876 62159861 88115533 150,275,394
2022 2021
11 DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note ~  ----ememeeeee- Rupees-------------
Deferred tax liability 11.1 78,568,173 88,710,787
Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 11.2 173,145,158 132,804,676
Employees' end of service benefit 11.3 328,648 252,700

252,041,979 221,768,163

11.1 This represent deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Further, the
Group has deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 21.25 million (2021: Rs. 13.83 million). However, the
Group has not recorded deferred tax asset in of these consolidated financial statements.

2022 2021
11.2 Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded Note ~  -----eemeeee- Rupees-------------
Balance at beginning of the year 132,804,676 105,601,555
Charge for the year 11.2.7 43,929,752 32,336,550
Actuarial losses 11,763,974 982,193
Payments made during the year (15,353,244) (6,115,622)
Balance at end of the year 11.2.3 173,145,158 132,804,676

11.2.1 Staff retirement benefits - unfunded

In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried
out as at June 30, 2022, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in these
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consolidated financial statements to cover obligations

in accordance with the actuarial

recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the valuation in respect of above-

mentioned schemes are as follows:

Discount rate - per annum
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum
Mortality rate

11.2.2 The amounts recognized in the consolidated

statement of financial position are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation

11.2.3 Movements in the net liability recognized in the

11.2.4 The amounts

consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

Opening liability

Charge for the year

Actuarial losses

Benefits paid

Balance at end of the year

recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss against defined benefit
scheme are as follows:

Current service cost

Interest cost

Charge for the year

11.2.5 The amounts recognized in the other comprehensive

income against defined benefit scheme are as
follows:

Actuarial loss arising from
- experience adjustment

11.2.6 Expense chargeable to consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the next year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Charge for the year

11.2.7 The expense for the staff retirement benefit

scheme has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales

Selling and distribution
Administrative expenses

11.2.8 Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity analysis is prepared using same computation model and assumptions as used to
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Note

11.23

11.2.4

334
34.1
351

2022 2021
13.25% 10.00%
12.25% 9.00%

SLIC (2001-05)  SLIC (2001-05)

2022 2021

Rupees
173,145,158 132,804,676
132,804,676 105,601,555
43,929,752 32,336,550
11,763,974 982,193
(15,353,244) (6,115,622)
173,145,158 132,804,676
31,416,947 23,620,332
12,512,805 8,716,218
43,929,752 32,336,550

11,763,974

982,193

————————

39,226,611 28,190,867
22,941,733 13,280,468
62,168,344 41,471,335
27,805,465 20,845,668

3,305,419 2,600,385
12,818,868 8,890,497
43,929,752 32,336,550
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11.2.9

11.2.10

11.3

12

determine defined benefit obligation based on Projected Credit Unit Method. There is no change
from prior year in respect of methods and assumptions used to prepare sensitivity analysis. The
impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
———————— Rupees----e=aceauue
Discount rate 158,315,458 121,430,096
Expected salary increase 189,363,983 145,244,734

Risks on account of defined benefit scheme

The Group faces the following risks on account of defined benefit scheme:

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Group has
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportionately.

Discount rate fluctuation

The defined benefit liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate
bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase defined benefit liabilities.

Maturity profile 2022 2021
Average expected remaining working lifetime of members 10 Years 10 Years
Average duration of liability 09 Years 09 Years
Employees’ end of service benefit = e Rupees-------------
Opening liability 252,700 269,553
Charge for the year 75,948 -
Payment during the year - (16,853)
Closing liability 328.648 252 700

e ————
DEFERRED GRANT
In Prior year, State Bank of Pakistan introduced a temporary Refinance Scheme for Payment of
Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of business concerns to support payment of
salaries and wages under economic challenges due to COVID-189.
The Group has availed this facility from MCB Islamic Bank. The loan carries mark-up rate of SBP plus
1% per annum. However, the effective interest rate is calculated as 8.95% per annum and the loan
has been recognised at the present value. The differential mark-up has been recognised as
government grant which will be amortised to interest income over the period of facility.

2022 2021
Note ——emcececeeeee Rupees----e=aceauue
Opening Balance 7,128,513 6,124,178
Grant recognized during the year - 5,973,613
Amortization of grant 36.1 (5,567,161) (4,969,278)
1,561,352 7,128,513
Less: current portion of deferred grant (1,561,352) (6,176,233)
- 952,280
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12.1 The grant was conditional upon the fact that the Group would not terminate any employee,
due/owing to cash flow limitations, for a period of three months from the date of receipt of the first

2022 2021
13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees
Creditors 539,143,298 459,356,401
Accrued liabilities 91,306,326 49,901,115
Tax deducted at source and payable to statutory authorities 4,156,573 2,722,837
Worker's welfare fund 13.1 10,622,942 7,504,284
Worker's profit participation fund 13.2 26,562,262 990,112

671,791,401 520,474,749
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13.1

13.2

15

16

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

2022 2021

Worker's welfarefunrd 000000 —— Rupees-————
Opening balance 7,504,284 7,113,214
Allocation for the year 10,622,942 391,070
Reversal of WWF (6,081,207) -
Amount paid {1,423,077) -
Closing balance 10,622,942 7,504,284
Worker's profit participation fund
Opening balance 990,112 12,234,103
Allocation for the vear 26,557,356 977,674
Amount paid {985,206) (12,221,665)
Closing balance 26,562,262 990,112
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up on long term finances 21,697,763 8,243,265
Mark-up on short term borrowlngs 99,041,500 49,634,664

120,739,263 57,877,929
DUE TO RELATED PARTY

This represents amount received from the Ghori Trust for the purpose of expenses to be incurred
by the Group on their behalf. . The maximum aggregate amount at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 4.66 million (2021: Rs. 0.98 million}).

2022 2021
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS Note  ——m—m——— Rupees—————
SECURED
Export re-finance 16.1 4,537,949,000 4,331,949,000
Own resource 16.2  2,441,695,808 1,201,056,240

6,979,644,808 5,533,005,240

The Group has short term running finance facility under Export Refinance Scheme of the State
Bank of Pakistan from Commercial banks and Islamic banks. The effective rates of mark-up on
these facilities at SBP rate plus 1% per annum {2021: SBP rate plus 1% per annum).

The Group has short term running finance facility under own resource from Commercial banks
and Islamic banks. The effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from 2-month/6-month
KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2% per annum(2021: 3-month/6-month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2% per annum).

The facilities available from various banks amount to Rs. 7,120 million {(2021: Rs. 6,150 million).
These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of all present and future cash
collateral/TDR, receivable, stocks & current assets. These facilities are registered by mortgage
charge of land, building, plant and machinery and all present & future fixed assets.

As at June 30, 2022, the unavailed facilities from above borrowings amounting to Rs. 624 million
{2021: Rs. 617 million).
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17

18

UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents part of interim dividend for the half year ended December 31, 2017 and final
dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020 which remained
unpald to the sharehclders who have not provided thelr valld Central Depository System (CDS)
Account no. and International Bank Account Number {IBAN). The Group has already sent letters
to those shareholders for the purpose of above stated information.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies
18.1.1 The Group has filed a civil suit No. 1061 of 2021, for declaration and permanent injunction agalnst

Sindh Industrial Trading Estates Limited (SITE). The SITE issued an impugned notice to the Group
cancelling the Group's lease of plot H/162 SITE ("Subject Property) in alleged compliance of a
Supreme Court order, declaring the plot in question to be an amenity plot. The Group has
opposed such cancellation of its lease on the basis that the Master Plan of site shows the Subject
Property to be an industrial plot. Furthermore, it is contended that the SITE has issued the
impugned notice in defiance of the Group's proprietary rights in the land and such notice is illegal
and in excess of their authority. The Group has a stay order in favour of the Group dated April 29,
2021 restraining the SITE from taking any coercive action in pursuance of the notice, The matter is
fixed for hearing and the management of the Group belleves that the matter will be decided in

18.1.2 The Group had filed the civil suit no. 1635 of 2009 for possession of land which was illegally

dispossessed by the Syed Alay Sadaqgain Naqvi (defendants) and to issue a permanent injunction
to restrain the defendants from alienation or transferring the land. The Henorable Sindh High
Court (SHC) passed an order on November 19, 2009, in which SHC has granted permanent
injunction in above suit on December 11, 2018. The matter is fixed for hearing and the
management of the Group believes that the matter will be decided in favour of the Group.

18.1.3 Suit no. 2141 of 2015 has been filed against the Group for declaration, possession, damages,

mesne profit and injunction before the Senior Civil Judge {west) at Karachi. The plaintiff claims to
be the lawful owner of a piece of land measuring 10 acres {"Subject Land"), which also includes
the land which is also subject matter of suit no. 1635 of 2009. The plaintiff has scught declaration
as to the ownership and occupation of Subject Land. The Group has filed an application under
Order 7 Rule 11 starting therein that the instant suit is barred by law as the plaintiff's earlier suits
raising the same dispute were dismissed. On August 29, 2017, the learned Judge was pleased to
allow the application of the Group and the plaintiff appeal was rejected accordingly. The Plaintiff
aggrieved by the said order appealed the same matter before IVth Additional and District Judge
{ADJ) bearing Appeal No. 311 of 2017 ("Appeal”). On September 09, 2018, the learned Appellate
Court decided the Appeal in favor of the Plaintiff and against the Group, set aside the order dated
August 29, 2017 and restored the above suit. Aggrieved by the order of ADJ in Appeal no. 311 of
2017 the Group filed appeal no 157 of 2018. The Group contended that the order passed by ADI
was bad in law as the law does not permit fresh proceedings on the same cause of action of which
issue has already been adjudicated upon by the Courts and the suit 2141 of 2015 was rightly
rejected by the trial court. The learned Judge after hearing the Group's submission and
arguments was pleased to suspend the operation of the Impugned Judgement (passed in Appeal
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18.14

18.1.5

18.1.6

18.1.7

no. 311 of 2017) via order dated December 17, 2018. The matter is fixed for hearing and the
management of the Group belleves that the matter will be declded In favor of the Group.

The Group has filed suit no. 1378 of 2019 and suit 1820 of 2020 in SHC against Sui Southern Gas
Company Limited. The case has been filed on the ground that the gas tariff/price has been
increased by SSGC illegally. The case Is pending before SHC and is fixed for hearing, however, SHC
has directed the Group to pay their bills according to previous judgement by either bank
guarantee or deposit cheque ready to encash to the satisfaction of the Nazir of the court and
SSGC shall issue revised bills, further the management of the Group in consulation of legal advisor
is of the view that based on the merit of the case, the same will be decided in favor of the Group.

The Group has filed a suit for declaration and permanent injunction against the Syed Alay
Sadagain Nagvl {defendants) for continuolsy interfering with the peaceful possession of the
extended portion of 0.5 acres of land that was regularized in favor of the Group on February 07,
2020 by virtue of a registered deed of Addenda of lease. The Group has pleaded that the Group is
the absolute and lawful owner in possession of an immovable property, name Plot. No. G-205
SITE Super Highway Phase |l Karachl measuring 4.5 acres by virtue of lease deed dated November
10, 2008 executed by Sindh Industrial Trading Estate Limited. The Group intends to utilize the 0.5
acres of land that was regularized recently in favor of the Group however, the defendants is
interfering with the posesseion of the property. The Group has asked the SHC to declare that the
defendant is wrongfully and lllegally claiming to be the owner of the property and requested SHC
to stop interfering with the Group's peaceful posession on the extended portion measuring 0.5
acres. SHC through an order dated May 19, 2020 restrained the defendant from creating any
interference in the Group's extended portion of the property. Being aggreived from the decision
the defendant has filed an appeal H.C.A D-110 of 2020 in SHC, in which defendant has pleaded
that SHC entertained the suit despite clear instructions from Honorable Chief Justice, High Court
not to entertain civil matters during COVID-19 pandemic. Defendant has also alleged that the
bench failed to examine the documents relied upon by the Group as the title of Sindh Industrial
Trading Estate Limited cannot be established on the basis of such documents. Further, it is
contended that the Group misled the Honourable bench and obtained the Order by not disclosing
the pendency of earlier suit bearing No. 1635/2009 for possession of the same subject property.

In prior years Government of Sindh imposed infrastructure cess @ 0.85% of import value on all
imports into Pakistan. A large number of importers including the Group challenged the matter in
the SHC. The SHC has issued an interim order allowing release of imported goods on 50%
payment and 50% bank guarantee. This suit no. 2173 of 2013 was filed on June 10, 2013, the SHC
has passed the judgement in the subject matter wherein SHC has declared the imposition of cess
valid piece of Legislation. The Group alongwith other industries affected by the SHC order has
challenged the Judgement of SHC in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan [SCP). The managment
is of the view that the Group is not likely to suffer any losses due to above suit.

In 2011, Government of Pakistan {GoP) impose a levy on gas consumers in the industrial sector,
known as The Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). The amount collected was to be used
for the construction of infrastructure projects.

GIDC was challenged in Honourable Peshawar High Court {PHC) in December 2013, PHC declared
the levy of GIDC unconstitutional. PHC further directed the GoP to return the collected amount,
GaP challenged the decision of PHC in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan {SCP), however,
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18.1.8

SCP upheld the decision of PHC by declaring GIDC a fee and not a tax that can be charged.

In 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 was Iintroduced which re-imposed
the GIDC. The affected Industries again approached the SCP stating that the earlier tax money
was not used for the construction of infrastructure projects. SCP granted stay order against
payment of any GIDC levies.

In their judgement dated August 13, 2020, SCP dismissed all petitions against the GIDC levy and
ruled in favour of the GoP which would collect the GIDC from different companies. The affected
industries filed a review petition against the judgement of SCP which has also been dismissed by
SCP vide its order dated November 03, 2020,

On October 15, 2020, the Group filed suit no. 1531 of 2020 in Honourable High Court of Sindh
{SHC), with a plea that the Group did not pass on the GIDC burden to the end consumer,
therefore in accordance with section 8 (2} of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015
{GIDC Act, 2015) the GIDC is not applicable on the Group, which is pending for decision, however,
the SHC has Issued sustalning erder to Gas companies from taking any coerclve action against the
Group. The management of the Group in consultation of its legal advisor is of the view that since
the Group has not passed on the burden to its consumer/clients, it is not liable to pay GIDC as
they clearly falls within the ambit of the exception in line with section 8 (2} of GIDC Act, 2015,

The Group has filed suit No. 730 of 2015 before SHC agalnst the imposition of Captive Power
Plant rate instead of Industrial Consumer rate. The Group contends that they donot fall into the
category of Captive Power Plant, but rather an Industrial Consumer, so the rate charged by the
SSGC i.e. Rs.200 per MMBTU, is not applicable in the case of the Group. The case has been
decreed in favour of the Group vide order dated February 02, 2020, S5GC has challenged the
Judgment before the Divisional bench of SHC which is pending for adjucation. Based on the merit
of case the management of the Group believes that the matter will be decided in favor of the

2022 2021
18.2 Commitments Note T s RUP@@S-mmmmmnmmanann
Letter of credit 386,270,071 912,150,112
Letter of guarantees 45,296,400 34,620,480
Capital Expenditures 2,400,000 543,478,892
Cheques issued in favour of Nazir of high court
in relation to SSGC case 18.1.4 5,165,163 1,828,689
439,131,634 1,4592,078,173
AnnualReport 2022
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19.1.1The depreclation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

2022 2021
Note —————-—-—Rupees----———
Cost of sales 33 181,574,131 185,993,203
Selling and distribution expenses 34 11,348,383 11,624,575
Administrative expenses 35 34,045,150 34,873,726
226,967,664 232,491,504

19.1.2Factory land Includes a plot In which a law suit has been filed by the plaintiff who Is claiming the
possession and injunction of the property. The case is in process under the Honourable High Court Sindh
Karachl {refer note 18.1.2, 18.1.3, 18.1.4 & 18.1.5).

19.1.3 Operating fixed assets include assets that are subject to mortgage with various banks against long-term

finances and short-term borrowings (refer note 09 and 16).
19.1.4 Detalls of forced sale value of revalued property, plant and equipment

Description of Assets Forced sale value
Rupees

Land 2,230,524,000
Building 700,400,000
Plant and machinery 886,259,750
Generators 46,645,250
The above forced sale value has been taken from revaluation report of Oceanic Surveyors [Private)
Limited as on June 29, 2020.

19.1.5 Following ems of property, plant and equipment having book value above Rs. 500,000 were disposed
off during the year:

R::;“m’;m mz m Sale proceeds Gain / Loss m Purticulars of bayer
Ropees

Genetar
Diesdl Generator 100KW 6,133,680 2195500 3938090 1500000 (2438090)  Tender  SoalSoms
Motor Vehicles
"Toyota Altis 2227500 1,368,384 850016 2075000 1215884  Tender  Mr NomanKhen
Changan Karwsn 1,627,630 281626 146004 1755000 408996  Tender  King Motors

19.1.6 Buyer of the disposed vehicle has no relation with the Group and its directors.
19.1.7 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Group are as follows:

Locations Total Area In Covered Area in
Acres Square Feet

Plot A-15 & 16, SITE-ll, Super highway Karachi 2 79155
A-21, SITE-Il, Super highway, Karachl 15 45631
G-205, SITE-, Super highway, Karachi 4 76566
50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke District, Gujranwala 15 133024
B1-A, SITE-II, Super highway, Karachi 0.97 34850
Plot H-162, SITE-Il, Super highway, Karachi 2.5 -
Plot F-193, SITE-Il, Super highway, Karachi 2 60871
50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke Distrlct, GuJranwala 3.38 -
Plot # 53, 5.E.Z, Allama Ighal Industrlal Ciy, Falsalabad 20 723358
House # 87, Block K, Street # 24, Al Bairuni Road, WAPDA Clty,
Faisalabad 0.063 2723
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2022 2021
19.2 Capttal work In progress Note —  —Rupees———
Tangibles
Plant and machinery 1,154,791,242 154,616,058
Electric cables and fitting 68,653,446 4,182,422
Office equipment 226,000 1,242,250
Factory equipment 5,060,072 17,982
Fumiture & Fixture 789,432 180,100
Generator 50,137,131 715,522
Land 81,778,739 40,133,739
Factory Bullding 581,395,975 62,902,671
Computers 1,632,042 272,600
Motor Vehicles 4,864,550 -
1,949,328,669 264,263,344
19.3 Movement in capital work in progress is as under:
Conat
Addidons
Asn n;gaully 01, during the year ::;;’:ty fh" Pl"d‘:: An n:zjo::e 30,
and equiprment
Fany
Plant and machinery 154,616,056 1,105,770,060 (105,594,876) 1,154,791,242
Electric cables and firding 4,182,422 64,471,024 - 68,653,416
Office equipment 1,242,250 226,000 (1,242,250) 226,000
Factory equipment 17,982 5,042,090 - 5,060,072
Furniture & Fixture 180,100 609,332 - 789,432
Generator 718,522 49,421,609 - 50,137,131
Land 40,133,739 41,645,000 - 81,778,739
Factory Building 62,902,671 S$57.086,706 (38,593,402) 581,395,975
Computers 272,600 1,359,442 - 1,632,042
Maotor Vehicles - 4,864,590 - 4,864,590
264,263,344 1,830,405,853 (145,430,528) ___1,949,326,669
Coat

Addidons
N ‘Traneferred to
As at July 01, during the year P . plant An a;(_':l";;:c a0,
atyd equipment
Rup

Plant and rmachinery - 193,679,084 (39,063,026) 154,616,058
Electric cables and fitting - 4,182 422 - 4,182,422
Office equipment 4225158 2,531,752 (5,514,660) 1,242 250
Factory equipment 57,754,424 3,060,803 (60, 797,245) 17,982
Furniture & Fixture 180,100 - 150,100
Generatot 715,522 - 715,522
Land 40,133,739 - 40,133,739
Factoty Building: 62902 671 - 62,902,671
Computers - 272,600 - 272,600
61,979,582 307,658,693 {105,374.931) 264,263 344

19.4 The amount of borrowing costs capltallsed during the year ended June 30, 2022 was Rs. 25.2 mlilllon
{2021: 0.295 million). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capltalisation was 2,56%, which 1s the EIR of the specific borrowings.

19,5 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating property, plant and

equipment would have been amounted to:
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2022 2021
Net book value Rupees:
Land 233,230,637 233,230,637
Bullding 556,993,579 574,646,438
Plant and machinery 1,015,743,907 988,805,928
Generators 26,069,878 23,297,704
1,832,038,001 1,819,980,707
20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS Vehicle e Godown Total Vehide i Godown Total
Bupees—— — ——————
Cost
Opening balance 150,416,518 95,623,341 246,039,859 115,124,413 92,397,539 207,521,952
Tmpact of adoption of IFRS-16 - - - - - -
Reassesstment of lease lisbility - 17,437,503 17,437,503 - 3,225,802 3,295,802
AsatJuly 1 150,416,518 113,060,844 263,477,362 115,124,413 95,623,341 210,747,754
Additians dusing the year 78212411 - 7821241 35,292,105 - 35,292,105
Disposal duting the year €4,083,500) - (4,083,500) - - -
Total 224,605,429 113,060,M4 337,666,273 150,416,518 95,623,341 246,039,959
Opening balsnce 57,384,855 17,122,152 74,506,987 9,181,819 8,399,776 47,581,595
Chatge for the year 19,219,644 10,788,312 30,008,456 1820303 8722356 26,925,392,
Disposal adjustment 246005 0 - (246005 - - -
Closing 488,406 27,910,944 102,099,350 57,384,855 17122120 74,506,987
Net book value 150,417,023 85,149,000 235,566,923 93,031 663 T4501,208 171532871
Lease term 5 Yecars 10 Years 5 Years 10 Yeara
20.1 The following are the amounts recognised in consolldated statement of profit or loss:
2022 2021
Note ——---——Rupees----
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 33 30,008,456 26,925,392
Interest expense on lease liablliHes on Godown 33 13,693,353 11,975,388
Interest expense on lease Habllities on vehicles 36 8,604,528 4,519,909
Total amount recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss 52,306,337 43,420,689
21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Opening 14,710,766 14,710,766
Addition during the year - -
Closing 14,710,766 14,710,766
Amortization
Opening {14,710,766) (14,710,766}
Charge for the year - -
Closing (14,710,766) (14,710,766}
Balance as at June 30 - -
22 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Unquoted
Associate - equity accounted investment 221 18,255,404 13,371,464
Quoted
Other investments - ot fair value through OC! 22.2
Pakistan Aluminium Beverage Cans Limied 6,091,628 -
Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,063,680 -
25,410,712 13,371,464
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2022 2021
Rupees
22.1 Equity accounted investment - Barentz
Intemational B.V
Balance at beginning of the period 13,371,464 18,647,853
Investment In associate - -
Share of profit/{loss) for the year - net of tax 4,883,940 (5,276,389)
Dividend received during the year - -
18,255,404 13,371,464

22,1,10n lune 28, 2019, the Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited has been incorporated in Pakistan as per

agreement between Barentz International B.V. and Matco Foods Limited, The Group has subscribed 49%
of total shareholding of Rs. 50 Million, thereby, constituting a Joint Venture.

The following table provides summarized financial information for the joint venture. The information
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the assoclates and not the
Group's share of those amounts. The financial Information presented below are based on the Interlm

financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2022,

2022 2021
Rupees
Assets 150,341,423 142,508,771
Liabilities 104,282,191 115,220,069
Revenues 258,968,579 144,620,437
Profit/{Loss) for the period 5,967,224 {7,425,089)

This represents the fair value of 193,201 shares of Pakistan Beverages Aluminum Can's acquired by the
Group through initial public offering at the rate of Rs. 49 per share. As at June 30, 2022, the share was
revalued at Rs. 31.53 per share, resulting a loss of Rs. 3.38 million {2021: Nil} during the perlod. Further
the fair value of 12,000 shares of Engro Fertilizers acquired by the Group during the year at the rate of
Rs. 89.90 per share. As at June 30, 2022 the share was revalued at Rs. B8.64 per share, resulting a loss
0.015 million {2021: Nil).

The investment in assoclates have been made in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act,
2017. Further, no such terms and conditions has been made at the time of Investment. The Group has
beneficial ownership of the investee companies. No return on investment has been made since
incorporation. There are no litigation against the subsidiaries and associates of the Group that may

2022 2021
23  STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Note Rupees
Stores and spares 333 87,635,046 71,988,230
Provision for slow moving / obsolete items 23.1 {1,543,929) {1,543,929)
86,091,117 70,444,301
23.1 Movement In provision for slow moving / obsolete
items
Balance at beginning of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929
Charge for the year - -
Balance at end of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929
24 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials 24.2 5,864,610,205 5,523,328,949
Packing materials 33.2 219,576,329 122,293,225
Finlshed goods 24.3 1,598,342,533 1,545,538 885
7,682,529,067 7,191,161,059
Provision for slow moving / obsolete items 24.1 {20,475,083) {19,880,700)
7,662,053,984 7,171,280,359
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2022 2021
24.1 Movement in provision for slow Rupees
moving / obsolete Items
Opening balance 19,880,700 19,694,358
Charge for the year 594,383 186,342
Write off during the year - -
Closing balance 20,475,083 19,880,700

24.2

24.3

25

25.1

25.3

This includes pledged raw material with various banks under long term and short term borrowing
arrangements (refer note 09 and 16).

This includes by product amounting to Rs. 354.40 million {(2021: Rs. 116.43 million) and stock-in-

transit amounting to Rs, 118,30 million {(2021; Rs, 54.31 million)

2022 2021

TRADE DEBTS Note Rupees
Considered good

Export - secured 1,773,264,734 950,127,308

Local - unsecured 124,664,968 110,731,306
Considered doubtful

Local - unsecured 13,567,967 13,567,967
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 25.3 {13,567,967) (13,567,967)

1,897,929,702 1,060,858,614

Borrowings are secured by way of charge over book debts of the Group {refer notes 09 and 16).

As of June 30, 2022, the age analysis of trade 2022 2021

debts is as follows: Note Rupees

Not yet due - -

Past due:

- Up to 3 months 1,589,846,329 832,927,550

- 3 to 6 months 264,482,259 170,189,719

- 6to 12 months 43,601,114 34,767,261

- More than 12 months - 3,239,814
1,897,929,702 1,041,124,344

Trade debts - Gross 1,897,929,702 1,041,124,344

Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 13,567,967 13,567,967

Charge during the year - -

Closing balance 13.567.967 13,567.957

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans

Staff - unsecured, considered good 26.1 13,245,862 14,697,971

Advances

- agalnst services and others 3,318,622 1,338,081

- against purchases 26.3 138,467,327 82,457,247

- to contractors - 166,765

- against shares 26.4 - 5,000,000

155,031,810 103,660,064
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26.1 It represent interest free loans to various staff in accordance with the Group's policy.
26.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year
was Rs. 0.78 million {2021: Rs. 0.62 million).
26.3 It represents the amount provided to suppliers of rice, stores & spares and packaging which is
adjustable against future purchases.
26.4 [t represents the amount paid to Pakistan Aluminium Beverage Cans Limited for purchase of
shares in IPO.
27 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM 2022 2021
PREPAYMENTS Note Rupees-
Deposlts
- Capital management account - 681,549
- Guarantee margin 1,448,588 1,604,650
1,448,588 2,286,199
Prepayments
- Prepald expense 27.1 4,144,657 3,889,906
- Prepald Insurance 6,111,866 4,616,415
10,256,523 8,506,321
11,705,111 10,792,520
27.1 This include prepaid expense relating to godown rent and system maintenance charges.
2022 2021
28 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT Note Rupees
Mutual fund units 28.1 3,054,742 379,910
Term deposit certificates 28.2 1,200,000 1,200,000
4,254,742 1,579,910
28.1 It represent mutual funds unit 39,210 (2021: 5,643) of Al-Meezan Islamic fund , AL-Ameen islamic
Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Stock Fund.
28.2 These represent term deposit certificates of Askarl Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1.2 milllon
(2021: Rs. 1.2 million) respectively. The rate of profit on these certificates is 6.25% per annum
(2021: 6.5%) these term deposit certificates will mature on June 2022,
2022 2021
29 SALES TAX REFUNDABLE Note Rupees
Sales tax refundable 29.1 105,056,731 123,598,158
29.1 Movement in sales tax refundable is as under:
Balance at beginning of the year 123,598,158 166,389,331
Refunds claim for the year 188,680,494 127,104,175
Received during the year (138,591,280) (160,604,293}
Adjusted during the year (68,630,641) (9,291,055)
Balance at end of the year 105,056,731 123,598,158
30 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
Unsecured
Matco Engineering Company (Private) Limited  30.1 - 1,572,277
Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited 30.2 51,046,611 41,338,226
Faiyaz Centre Owner Association 303 - 160,061
51,046,611 43,070,564
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30.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from Matco Engineering Group (Private) Limited. at the end
of any month during the year was Rs. 3.48 million (2021: Rs. 1.62 million).

30.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 3.4 million receivable In respect of interest on loan. The maximum
aggregate amount due from Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 48.58 million {2021: Rs. 43.356 million). The amount will be utlitized by the associated
Group to meet the working capital requirement of the associated comapny. The effective rates of
mark-up on this receivable is 3 months KIBOR+2% (2021: 3 months KIBOR+2%).

30.3 The maximum aggregate amount due from Faiyaz Centre Owner Association at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 1.14 million {2021: Rs. 0.2 million}.

30.4 All above dues are payable on demand.
30,5 Ageing analysis of receivables from related parties past due but not impaired are as follows:

Matco Engincering Barentz Palkis Faiyaz Cenw

Cmﬁ:ﬁwm) (Frivate) Limited Assoda‘:'on
Up to 3 Months - 51,046,611
3 to 6 Months - -
06 to 12 Months - -
More than 12 Months - -
- 51,046,611
2022 2021
31 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note Rupees
Cash in hand 8,860,885 3,530,324
Cash at bank
- current accounts 283,123,254 112,612,604
- deposit accounts 30,037,308 26,171,906
313,160,562 138,784,510
322,021,447 142,314,834
31.1 These carry weighted average profit of 11% per annum (2021: 11% per annum).
2022 2021
32 SALES - NET Rupees
Export sales 10,499,821,413 8,266,180,953
Local sales
Rice 816,897,974 | 724,198,889
By-products 447,665,117 2,100,535,538
3,264,563,091 2,824,734, 427
13,764,384,504 11,090,915,380
Sales discount / return (78,969,127} (82,749,024)
Freight (1,146,956,926) (360,920,422)
Clearing and forwarding (89,216,337} (43,322,987)
Sales tax (49,772,012} (29,827,326)

32.1 Disaggregation of sales

12,399,470,102

10,574,095,621

The Group disaggregated revenue recognised from customers into categories that depict how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical markets and major
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Major product Lines

Rice
Cthers

Primary geographical Markets
Local

Africa

Asia

Australla & New Zealand
Europe

USA & Canada

COST OF SALES

Rlce consumed
Packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed

Processing expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Electricity and power
Telephone and mobile
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Other purchases

Provision for slow moving stock
Fumigation charges

Water charges

Canteen

Diesel and oil

Staff welfare

Security expenses

Godown expenses

Rent, rates and taxes
Vehicle running expenses
Medical

Depreciation

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Processing charges
Inspection charges
Cost of goods manufoctured
Finished goods

Opening stock

Closing stock

AnnualReport 2022

i3l
33.2
333

334

24.1

19.1.1
201
20.1

24

2022 2021
Rupees
11,958,891,491 §,910,924,619
1,805,493,013 1,179,990,761
13,764,384,504 11,090,915,380
2022 2021
Rupees

3,264,563,091 2,824,734,427
815,185,624 374,284,303
3,036,115,932 3,047,734,113
1,941,121,649 1,456,649,113
3,488,535,180 2,290,121,1%6
1,218,862,028 1,097,392,228
13,764,384,504 11,090,915,380
9,212,220,732 8,577,211,227
497,392,298 457,437,640
165,235,085 133,265,478
478,731,750 445,917,170
200,076,597 209,626,919
1,087,510 1,419,046
9,476,678 8,980,473
26,238,178 25,178,363
88,946,902 42,131,127
594,383 186,342
74,835,705 33,737,005
32,677,840 49,206,266
11,087,556 11,165,787
311,725 462,820
2,308,308 2,797,963
18,299,672 16,330,349
23,546,498 16,873,130
1,675,167 23,451,490
11,916,618 7,460,610
3,690,618 3,766,363
181,574,131 185,993,203
30,008,456 26,925,392
13,693,353 11,975,088
220,930 2,161,945
23,060,739 19,582,415
11,108,907,429 10,313,244,112
1,545,538,885 1,141,722,53%
{1,598,342,533) {1,545,538,885)
(52,803,548) (403,816,346)
11,056,103,781 9,909,427,766
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2022 2021
Note Rupees
33.1 Rice consumed
Opening stock of raw material 5,523,328,949 5,435,050,944
Purchases 9,277,485,006 8,488,184,359
Cartage inwards 276,016,982 177,304,873
Closing stock of raw material 24 (5,864,610,205) (5,523,328,949)

9,212,220,732 B,577,211,227

33.2 Packing material consumed

Opening stock 122,293,225 85,444,225
Purchases 594,675,402 454,286,640
716,968,627 579,730,865
Closing stock-gross 24 {219,576,329) (122,293,225}
497,392,298 457,437,640
33.3 Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock 71,988,230 | 46,566,459 |
Purchases 180,881,901 158,687,249
252,870,131 205,253,708
Closing stock-gross 23 {87,635,046) (71,988,230)
165,235,085 133,265,478
33.4 [tincludes provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 27.8 million (2021: Rs. 20.8 million).
34 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION 2022 2021
EXPENSES Note Rupees
Salaries and benefits 34,1 56,910,005 55,625,772
Travelling 14,282,161 8,199,157
Sales promotion 34,969,628 16,545,593
Insurance 2,120,365 1,946,871
Export charges 80,106,245 52,286,127
Export commission 23,995,061 20,546,306
Depreciation 19.1.1 11,348,383 11,624,575
Shop rent 2,520,000 2,720,000
General 3,027,953 17,827,214

225,279,801 187,321,615

34.1 Itincludes provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 3.3 million (2021: Rs. 2.6 million).

2022 2021
as ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note Rupees
Salaries and benefits 35.1 220,704,770 150,179,802
Vehicle running 11,423,116 8,536,441
Entertainment 1,394,156 936,656
Printing and stationery 1,701,925 1,197,998
Fee and subscription 22,135,697 22,403,229
Legal and professional 200,000 1,535,000
Auditor's remuneration 35.3 3,829,649 3,854,400
Postage and telegrams 2,344,015 1,787,505
General expenses 2,297,385 2,913,622
Newspaper and perlodicals 73,353 60,309
Electricity and gas charges 35.2 2,748,956 21,492,276
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2022 2021
Note ——————————————— Rupees--
Taxes, duty and fee 21,802,289 257,246
Medical 2,889,170 2,162,186
Insurance 3,547,762 2,632,037
Software maintenance 503,249 495,616
Computer expenses 6,198,327 4,574,968
Depreciation 19.1.1 34,045,150 34,873,726
Donations 354 11,335,724 6,263,200
Advertisement 1,219,792 564,900
Others 7,876,258 5,641,757

358,270,742 312,402,873

35.1 It includes directors' remuneration amounting to Rs. 18.71 million {2021: Rs. 19.61 million) and
provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 12.80 million {(2021: Rs. 8.89 million).
35.2 It includes provision of GIDC Cess amounting to Rs. Nil {2021: Rs. 18 million}.
35.3 Auditor's remuneration
- audit fee of unconsolidated financial statements 2,573,994 2,429,073
- audlt fee of consolldated financial statements 100,000 100,000
- audit fee of half yearly review 609,930 484,402
- fee for review code of corporate governance 150,000 150,000
- other certificatlons 150,000 150,000
- out of pocket expenses 245,725 245,725
- other services 35.3.1 - 335,200
3,829,649 3,894,400
35.3.1 This represents services relating to taxation.
35.4 Donation includes amount of Rs.10.84 million (2021: Rs.5.26 million) paid to Ghori Trust, which is
operated by Board of directors of the Group and their spouse namely Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori, Mr.
Khalid Sarfaz Ghori, Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori, Mrs. Naheed Jawed, Mrs. Nuzhat Khalid and Mrs. Dr,
2022 2021
36 FINANCE COST Note ——emm————— Rupees--
Mark up
- long term flnances - net 36.1 29,090,951 26,983,531
- short term borrowings 347,800,252 235,927,358
- interest expense on lease liabilities 8,604,528 4,519,909
Bank charges and commission 2,639,997 5,750,932
388,135,728 273,181,730
36.1 The mark-up presented is net of amortization of grant amounting to Rs.5.57 million {2021: Rs.4.97
millign}).
2022 2021
37 OTHER INCOME e ——— Rupees--
From financial assets
- Profit on bank/short term deposits 2,589,495 3,014,143
- Interest income on account of due from related parties 4,959,465 3,680,954
From non-financial assets
- Reversal of Worker's Welfare Fund 6,081,207 -
- Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 2,299,686 48,814 578
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39

39.1

39.2

39.3

2022 2021
-------- Rupees-—-------=---m=x
- Scrap sales - 19,035,654
- Rental income 2,389,000 2,450,000
- Others 1,482,666 -
19,801,519 77,035,369

EXCHANGE GAIN - NET

This represents exchange gain incurred on foreign currency denominated trade debts, advances
from customers, creditors and bank balances.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
- Current 138,778,927 91,744,142
- Prior {19,905,170) -
- Deferred {10,142,614) (11,323,958}
108,731,143 80,420,184
Reconciliation of income tax expense for the 2022 2021
year and accountingproft =00 & ——— Rupees—------------ -
Profit befor tax 557,519,460 -
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2020:29%) 161,680,643 -
Tax effect of poverty elevation tax 13,511,757 -
Prior year charge (19,905,170} -
Tax charge on temporary difference (10,142,614) -
Tax effect of income under FTR (27,306,931} -
Others {9,106,543) -
108,731,143 -

Current year taxation has been charged on the basis of provisions in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and accounted for after taking effect of admissible expenses in nermal taxation with proportion of
local sales and on final tax regime applicable to the Group based on tax withheld from export
proceeds which is deemed as full and final discharge of the tax liability.

During the year, the Group has received notice U/S 221(2) from FBR regarding WWF and WPPF for
the tax year 2019 and 2020. The deputy commissioner is of view that the Group has adjusted the
liability of WWF and WPPF against the refund. He quoted the section 17G(3) of the erdinance that
the refund can only be adjusted against any other liability of tax. Since WWF and WPPF are not
classifiable as "Tax" hence the same cannot be adjusted against the tax liability or credit. The
Group has reponded that they had not adjusted any liability of WWF and WPPF against the
refundable income tax amount upon filing of income tax return for tax year 2019 and 2020. The
deputy commissioner has passed the order, without being considering the point raised by the
Group, against the Group u/s 221(1) to rectify mistakes of mistreatment of WWF and WPPF
amounting to Rs. 4.26 million and Rs. 4.15 million for the tax year 2019 and 2020 respectively. The
Group has filed appeal before the commissioner inland revenue {Appeals-ll), Karachi against the
order and has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh, Karachi with refernce of C.P.No. D-6595
of 2021 and C.P.No. D-6596 of 2021 against the recovery notice of tax year 2019 and 2020
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respectively. On the basis of factual and legal position in above pending appeals before with CIRA,
we anticipate favorable outcome of such appeals in the favor of the Group.

39.4 Return of 2016-17 filed on January 17, 2018, is an assessment order u/s 120 unless amended
under section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The ADCIR initiated the proceeding u/s
122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 vide notice dated 21-05-2018 for amendment of
deemed assessment. The response of the above notice submitted by the Group till November 15,
2018, no further notice has been recelved.

39.5 Return of 2020-21 filed on February 26, 2022, is an assessment order under section 120 unless
amended under section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

40 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2022 2021
Number of employees as at June 30 750 708
Average number of employees during the year 729 688

41 TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties include subsidiary Group, entities under common directorship, directors, major
shareholders, key management personnel and retirement benefit funds. Transactions with related
parties essentially entail rent expense and transactions with key management personnel. Details of
transactions with related parties and the balances with them as at year end other than those
which have been disclosed else where are as follows:

June 30,2022  June 30, 2021
. . Percentage . -Rupees in '

Nature of relationship of g ‘Transactions

Directors Godown rent paid to director 14,622,631 13,019,342

Joint Venmre

Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited 49% Paid expenses on behalf 108,381,383 124,782,682
Payment received on account of expenses 100,022,391 B5,325.438
Interest Income 4,189,553 3,680,054
Interest Received 1,973,986 2,486,642
Commission paid 1,678,675 -

Associates based on common

" hi

Matco Engineering Co (Private) Limited 0% Paid expenses on behalf 1,911,001 1,040,181
Payment received on account of expenscs 3,483,278 1,085,000

Faiyaz Center Owner Agsociation e Paid expenzes on hehalf 981,021 160,061
Payment received on account of expenscs 1,141,082 -

Truat operated by the Company

Ghod Trast 0% Paid expenses on behalf 8,138,247 4,487,539
Payment reccived on account of expenscs 74,200 5,946,122
Donation expense 10,835,724 5,265,700

Petcentage
Natuyre of relationship of ing Balances June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
—Rupeesin ———

Joint Venture

Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited 49% Receivable against expenses 47,636,733 40,143,915
Interest receivahle 3,409,878 1,194,311
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Associates based on common directorship

Matco Enginceting Co (Ptivate) Limited 0% Reccivable against cxpenses - 1,572277
Faiyaz Center Ownet Assodiation 0% Receivable against expenses - 160,061
Trust operated by the Company

Ghori Trust 0% Payabk: sgainst donation 3,748,360 976,683

41.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have
arrangement / agreement in place:

Name of Chief
&N Companty  Reglatered Comtry of Basis of Execatlve / Aggregate % of Operational  Anditor's
% Name Address Incorporation  Assoclation Principal Officer /  sharehalding Statne Opinlon
Aurthorized Agent
1 JKF General - P.OBox 123347, UAE Subgidiary Jawed Ali Ghoss 100% - Clean

Trading FZE  Sharjsh Company
41.2 Consideration for services is determined with mutual agreement considering the level of services
provided. Expenses charged by / to the Group are determined on actual cost basis. Particulars of

remuneration of chief executive officer, directors and executives are disclosed in note 42 to these
consolidated financial statements.

41.3 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibllity for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The Group considers all members of its
management team, including the chlef executive officer and the directors to be key management

42 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

For the purpose of disclosure those employees are considered as executives whose basic salary
exceed twelve hundred thousands rupees in financial year.

Chiief Executive Officer IHrectors Execmtives Toal
222 21 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Bupeep——1— - —————

Bhoet-term employes benefita

Manegerial remuneation 3,524,800 3600872 8,950,800 9,464,547 56802363 36527567 69,367,963 49,601,786
Horpee gent allooances 1,409,920 1g24442 3,580,320 4,258 056 23,756,948 16437405 27,747,185 22320803
Utilities 1,505,698 1113478 2379848 305489% GOSN 2206572 10,216,557 6464,946
Banus 79,000 385,000 1,362,000 950,000 5,683,895 4,475,583 7,006,855 5,810,583
Puel expenze Lil.Tir ) &2R.515 1670646 1,803,931 7,699,712 3,573,948 9,886 434 £,006,304
Medical expense 214,705 58,658 295,048 406,982 1,300,046 685,800 1,813,799 1,151,440
Vehide expenne 9,861 17668 1,552 852 238303 1,060,185 BO0,401 2,682,908 1,817,372
Chher expense 207,220 B9,520 405,563 633,230 - - 612,783 722,740

S  gesiss _obaboper  71A105% _WLGUWI5T  GA7vizis _IMGIMGSIA _ Ssmoet
Value of motar vehicles 505,267 17506727 _ 21,568/M3 15434901 _ 43812448 20810638 _ T0ABETEE  54,152.266

Nt of Petaotun 1 1 2 3 35 19

42.1 In addition to above, fees of 0.719 million (2021: 0.950 million) was paid to independent directors
of the Group for attending board of directors meeting during the year.

42.2 In addition to the above, chief executive officer and directors are provided with the use of the
Group's vehicles. Certain executives are also provided with Group maintained cars.

42.3 The Group considers its chief executive officer and the executive director as its key management
personnel i.e. the personnel having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.
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2022 2021
43 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION (Tons) (Tons)
Annual Plant Capacity
- Rice processing 178,500 134,700
- Rice Glucose 33,000 33,000
Actual Production
- Rice processing 118,266 89,555
- Rice Glucose 12,081 11,878

43.1 Actual production is less than installed capacity due to planned maintenance shutdown and
production planned as per market demand.
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44

45.1.1

2022 2021
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - Rupees
BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit / {Loss) for the year 448,788,317 {53,052,515)
Number of ordinary shares 122,400,698 122,400,698
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 122,400,698 122,400,698
Earnings / {loss ) per share - basic and diluted 3.67 {0.43)

There is no dilutive effect on earnings per share as the Group does not have any convertible
Instruments as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on having cost efficlent funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize
earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk
management policies. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance which
are as follows:

Market risk

Market risk refers to fluctuation In value of financlal Instruments as a result of changes In market prices.
Market risk comprise of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where
receivables, bank balances, borrowings and payables exist due te transactions entered into foreign
Exposure to Forelgn currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the
following:

2022 2021
————— Amount In USD ————-

Trade debts 9,045,081 6,031,023
Cash and bank balances 193,280 255,442
Advance from customer {30,170) (129,973}
Net Exposure 9,208,191 6,156,491
The followling signiflcant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2022 2021

Rupee per USD

Average rate 179.00 160.33
Reporting date rate 204.85 157.54

Forelgn currency sensltivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have effect on the equity and
statement of profit or loss of the Group as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30,
2022.
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45.1.2

45.1.3

2022 2021
-——————-Rupees—————-
Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies (188,626,763) {(91,308,160)
Woeakening of PKR against respective currencies 188,626,763 51,308,160

A 10 percentage weakening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have had the equal but
opposite effect on USD to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest or currency rate
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specified to the indlvidual financlal Instrument or Its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is exposed
to price risk because of investments in equity securities amounting to Rs. 10,210,050 (2021: Rs.
379,910} as changes in prices of equity securities affect the Group. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

As of June 30, 2022, if fair value had been 1% higher/ {lower) with all the variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been higher / {lower) by Rs. 102,100.5 {2021: Rs. 3,791.9}.

Interest/Mark-up rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group has long term and short term finance
at variable rates. The Group is exposed to interest/mark-up rate risk on long and short term financing
and these are covered by holding "Prepayment Option" and "Rollover Option”. Interest rate risk on
short term borrowings is covered by holding "Prepayment Option" which can be exercised upon any
adverse movement in the underlying interest rates. The local and foreign currency loans carry mark up
at the prevailing rate of SBP plus 1% to 2.5%, KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2% respectively. Applicable interest
rates for financial assets and llabllitles are given In respective notes,
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MATCO FOODS LUMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022
Mark-up J profit bearing Non mark-up / Total
Lass than One year to o profit hearing
Note One year Fve years five years
Finenclal assets Rupees
Amortised cost
Long-term deposits - - - 16,759,174 16,759,174
Long-term Investments 22 - - - 18,255,404 18,255,404
Trade debts - considered goods 25 - - - 1,897,929,702 1,897,929,702
Loans 26 - - - 13,245,862 13,245,862
Deposlts 27 - - - 1,448,538 1,448,588
Short-term investment 2B 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
Due from related partles 3G 51,045,611 - - - 51,046,611
Cash and bank balances 31 20,037,308 - - 291,984,139 322,021,447
82,283,819 - - 2,239,622,868 2,321,906,787
Falr value through profit or loss
short-term Investment 28 | - B | -] 3,054,742 | 3,054,742 |
Feir velue through other comprehensive
income

Long-term Investments 2 | - | - 1 -1l 7,155,308 | 7,155,308 |
Financial llabiites
At amortized cost
Long term finances - secured 9 172,857,144 1,582,432,193 - - 1,755,289,337
Due to related party 15 - - - 9,748,359 9,748,959
Trade and other payables 13 - - - 630,449,624 630,449,624
Accrued mark-up 14 - - - 120,739,253 120,739,253
Short term borrowings - securad 16 6,979,644 ADK - - - 6,979,644 80K
Unpald dividend 17 - - - 783,668 783,668
Lease |Iabllitles 10 27,634,988 129,119,024 - 203,296,876

7,180,136 340 1,711,551,217 46,443 464 755,720,913 9,693,891,534
O balance shest gap eI (LTILSSLEN)  (WASSAG] _ 1ASSSOLYSS (737190 145
OFf balance sheet lems
Guarantees 13.2 - - - 45,295,400 45,295,400
Letter of credit 182 - - - 386,270,071 386,270,071
Capltal Expenditures 13.2 - - - 2,400,000 2,400,000
Cheques Issued in favour of Mazir of high
ceurt In relatlon ta S5GC case 13.2 - - - 5,165,153 5,165,163

2021
Mark-up / profit bearing Non mark-up / Total
Less than One year to profit bearing
Note one year Five years Over five years
Flnanclal assets Rupees
Amortised cost
Long-term deposits - - - 16,322,284 16,322,284
Long-term Investments 22 - - - 13,371,464 13,371,464
Trade debts - considered goods 25 - - - 1,060,858,614 1,0650,858,614
Loans 26 - - - 14,697,971 14,697,971
Deposits 27 - - - 2,286,195 2,286,195
Short-term investment 28 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,010
Due from releted partles 30 41,338,226 - - 1,732,338 43,070,564
ECash and bank balances 3 26,171,906 - - 116,142,928 142,314,834
58,710,132 - - , %

Falr value through profit or loss
Short-term investment 23 | - - 1 -1l 379,910 | 379,910 |
Finandal llablliitles
At amortlzed cost
Long term finances - secured 9 175,076,206 452,910,736 - - 667,986,942
Due to related party 15 - - - 989,503 538,503
Trade and other payables 13 - - - 509,332,516 509,332,516
Accrued mark-up 14 - - - 57,877,925 57,877,925
Shart term borrowings 16 5,533,005,240 - - - 5.533,005,240
Unpald dividend 17 - - - 787,654 787,654
Leasa llabllitles 10 - 67,527,264 82,748,130 - 150,275,394

5.,708,081,446 5&0,438,000 82,748,130 568,987,602 6,920,255,178
On balance sheet gap 5,639,371 314 560,438,000 82,748,130 656,424,196 5,626,133,248
&Hf balance sheet lkems
Guarantees 18.2 - - - 34,620,480 34,620,480
Lettar of credit 18.2 - - - 912‘150‘112 912‘150‘112
Capital Expenditures 18.2 - - - 543.4H£92 543,478,392
Cheques Issued in favour of Mazir of high 18.2 - - - 1,828,685 1,828,689
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

{a)
{b)

On balance sheet gap represents the net amounts of consolidated statement of financial position items.

Effective rates of return/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

Financlal liabilities 2022 2021
SBP rate+ 1% to SBP rate+ 1% to
Long term finances - secured 2.5% & KIBOR + 2.5% & KIBOR +
1% to 1.5% 1% to 1.5%
SBP rate+ 1% & SBPrate+ 1% &
Short term borrowings KIBOR + 0.75% te KIBOR + 0.75% to
2% 1.75%

Falr value sensltivity analysis for flxed rate instruments

The group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet would not affect profit or loss of the

Cash flow sensitivity analysls for varlable rate Instruments

At June 30, 2022, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 17.49 million (2021: Rs. 6.68
million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At June 30, 2022, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 69.80 million {2021: Rs. 55.30
million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

45.2 Credlt risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-
parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant exposure to
any Individual counter-party, therefore, the management does not consider that it has any
concentration of credit risk at reporting date. To reduce exposure to credit risk the group has developed
a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management also
regularly menitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes allowance for ECLs against
those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the group has a system of
assigning credit Iimits to s customers based on evaluatlon based on customer profile and payment
history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Some customers are also secured,
where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security deposit, bank guarantees and insurance
guarantees
The group's gross maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
2022 2021

Financial assets ssssmesamssam=sa[ | JEEGsssameaasmmsan
Long-term Investments 18,255,404 13,371,464
Long-term deposlts 16,759,174 16,322,284
Trade debts 1,897,929,702 1,060,858,614
Loans 13,245,862 14,697,971
Trade deposit 1,448,588 2,286,199
Short-term investment 4,254,742 1,579,910
Due from related parties 51,046,611 43,070,564
Bank balances 313,160,562 138,784,510

2,316,100,644 1,290,971,516
The agelng of trade debts and related movement of ECL has been disclosed [n note 25.3 of these
consolidated financial statements.
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Bank balances

The group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank
accounts only with counter-parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect that any counter party will fail to meet their cbligaticns.

The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:

Short- 2022 2021
term Rupees:
Ratings

MCB Bank Limited Al+ 39,904,362 38,391,155
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ 18,306,880 10,244,734
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ 1,400,712 2,652,575
Standard Chartered Bank Limited Al+ 33,028,302 114,953
United Bank Limited Al+ 8,299,915 6,881,097
Allied Bank Limited Al+ 4,446,577 1,247,631
Askari Bank Limited Al+ 17,293,543 7,019,543
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ 73,095,514 15,019,069
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ 28,663,442 1,946,405
Habib Bank Limited Al+ 52,510,236 8,425,469
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ 11,354,257 3,300,398
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ 542,742 570,177
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ 7,727,330 3,190,623
JS Bank Al+ 147,589 -
MCB Islamic Bank Al - 2,733,731
Bank of Punjab Al+ 39,678,021 852,600

336,399,422 102,630,160
Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
Note Rupees
Due from related parties 30 51,046,611 43,070,564
Trade debts 25 1,897,929,702 1,060,858,614
Loans 26 13,245,862 14,697,971
Short-term investment 28 4,254,742 1,200,000
Bank balances 31 313,160,562 138,784,510
2,279,637,479 1,258,611,659

45.3 LUquidity risk

The group finances its operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix between varlous sources of finance to minimize risk. The management aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular continued credit lines.

As on reporting date, the group had cash and bank balances and term deposit amounting to Rs 313.26
million & Rs. 1.2 million respectively (2021: Rs. 105 million & 1.2 million), and unutilized credit lines of
Rs. 464 millien {2021; 566 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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145

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing par ties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying values and the fair value estimates.

The group classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the:

a) Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices Included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or llability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

¢) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) {level 3).

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the transfer has occurred.

The group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred
includes monitoring of the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity {e.g.. significant increases / decreases in activity)
- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques {e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the
market)

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table represents the group's assets that are measured at fair value as at June 30, 2022
and June 30, 2021:

2022
Leve 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
Rupees
Non-finenclsl assetx
Property, plant and equipment - - 5,797,041,660 5,797,041,660
Finsnicial gsscts
Financial agsets held at fair value through profit or loss 3,054,742 - - 3,054,742
Financig] asscts held at fair value through other
comprehengive Income 7,155,308 - - 7,155,308
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Newfinancial asseis -
Propety, plint and equiptment - - 436,622,594 466,622,594
Fimancial arsots
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 379910 - - 379,910

Certain categorles of operating fixed assets (land, bulldings, plant and machinery and generators
include revaluation surplus) {level 3 measurement} determined by an independent professional valuer
based on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated financial
statements. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be
determined with certainty. Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

a7 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The objective of the Group when managing capital s tc safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of [ts businesses.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and keeping in
view future investments requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt s calculated as total
borrowings (short term borrowings, long term finances and current portion of long term finances as
shown in the balance sheet). Capital signifies equity as reported in statement of financial position and
includes share capital, share premium and unappropriated profits.

The Group's strategy is to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

2022 2021
Note Rupees

Total borrowings 8,948,367,908 6,351,267,576
Less: Cash and bank 31 {322,021,447) {142,314,834)
Net debt 8,626,346,461 6,208,952,742
Total equlty 7,125,960,578 6,672,323,732
Total equity and debt 15,752,307,039 12,881,276,474
Gearlng ratlo (%} 55% 48%

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with
a vlew to malntaln an appropriate mix amongst varlous sources of finance to minimize risk.

a8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable
segment as the Group's asset allocation decision are based on single, integrated business strategy and
the Group's business performace is evaluated on an overall basis.

48.1 Revenue from sale of rice represents 88.68% (2021: 89.59%) of the total revenue of the Group.
Whereas 9.59% (2021: 9.43%) represents revenue from sale of rice glucose and remaining represents

48.2 All non-current assets of the Group as at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan. Further, debtors from
rice represents 83.58% {2021: 90.13%) of the total debtors.

49 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have also been rearranged and/or reclassified, wherever necessary, for better
presentation. However, there has been no material reclassification in these consolidated financial

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Group and authorlzed
for issue on September 07, 2022.

50.1 Non-adjusting events after the reporting date

Subsequent to the year end on 26 August 2022, Matco Foods Limited {MFL) has announced the
successful commissioning and commerclal operations of its new 72,000 MT per year Corn Starch Plant,
located in Allama Igkal Industrial City, Special Economic Zone Faisalabad, FIEDMC.

51 GENERAL

51.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui Faizan Ali éhon‘
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the members that Annual General Meeting of Matco Foods Limited will be held
on Monday, October 24, 2022 at 11:15 a.m. at Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan,
Seminar Room, ICMA Pakistan Building $T-18/C, ICMAP Avenue, Block 6, Gulshan-e-lgbal, Karachi 75300
and through Video Conference to transact the following business:

A. Ordinary Business:

1

2,

C.

5.

To read and confirm the minutes of the previous annual general meeting held on October 21, 2021.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company together with
the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2022 aleng with the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the company and Auditor's report thereon for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023 at a mutually agreed rate of
remuneration, The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has proposed
appointment of M/s Grant Thornten Anjum Rehman Chartered Accountants. The retiring Auditors belng
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

Special Business

To consider and if deemed fit, pass the following Special Resolutions with or without modification{s):
Investment in Associated Companies & Associated Undertakings:

“Resolved by way of special resolution that consent and approval of Matco Foods Limited (the
“Company”} be and is hereby accorded under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017 {the “Act”) for
investment in the form of loans/advances from time to time to Barentz Pakistan {Private) Limited, the
associated company, up to an aggregate sum of Rs. 100 million {Rupees hundred million only) at the
mark-up rate of three (3} months KIBOR plus 2%. Vide special resolution passed in general meeting held
on October 24, 2020 by the shareholders, the Company was authorlzed to extend a facllity of similar
nature to the extent of Rs. 50 millien.”

Resolved further that Chief Executive Officer Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori, Director Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori
and Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized singly to take all steps necessary, ancillary
and incidental, corporate and legal formalities for the completion of transactions Tn relatlon to the loans
/ advances to the holding company but not limited to filing of all the requisite statutory forms and all
other documents with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, executing documents all
such notices, reports, letters and any other document or instrument to give effect to the above
resolutions.”

Any Other Business
To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

By order of the Board
Karachl Danish Ahmed
October 03, 2022 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1) CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOK

2)

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted
for registration from October 17, 2022 to October 24, 2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in
order at the Company’s Registrar Office at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B,
Block B, $.M.C.H.5. Maln Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400, by the close of business on October 14, 2022
will be treated In time to attend and vote at the meeting.

PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VIA PHYSICAL PRESENCE OR THROUGH VIDEO-
CONFERENCING

{(a) In line with the direction issued to listed companies by the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, vide its Circular No. 4 of 2021 dated February 15, 2021 and subsequent Circular No.6 of
2021 dated March 03, 2021, the Company intends to convene this AGM physically and virtually
via video conference facility while ensuring compliance with the quorum requirements and
request to the Members to consolidate their attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies.

(i)

(i)

(i)

Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through Zoom application will be requested to
get themselves registered with Share Registrars of the Company M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited at least 48 hours before the time of AGM at
danish.ahmed@matcofoods.com by providing the following details:

€DC Partklpant i Name of CNIC No. / Cell No Emall
ID / Follo No. Shareholder NTN No. : address
Matco Foods
Limited

Video-link for the meeting will be sent to members at their provided email addresses enabling
them to attend the meeting on the given date and time.

Login facility will be opened thirty (30) minutes before the meeting time to enable the
participants to join the meeting after the identification process. Shareholders will be able to
login and participate in the AGM proceedings through their devices after completing all the
formalities required for the identification and verification of the shareholders.

Shareholders may send their comments and suggestions relating to the agenda items of the
AGM to the Company Secretary Offlce at least two [2) working days before the AGM, at the
given email address danish.ahmed@matcofoods.com. Shareholders are requested to
mention their full name, CNIC # and Folio/CDC Account # for this purpose,

Sharehelders are encouraged to particlpate In the AGM to consolidate their attendance and
participation through proxies.

{b) A member entitled to attend the meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to
attend the meeting physically or through video-link. A proxy form Is annexed in the Annual Report.
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3)

(c) The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or a notarially attested copy of power of attorney must be deposited at the Share Registrar
of the Company M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited at least 72 hours before the time of the
AGM (i.e., latest by Friday, October 21, 2022 at 11:15 a.m.).

(d) For appointing proxies, the shareholders will further have to follow the under mentioned
guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

(i)  In case of individuals having physical shareholding or the account holder or sub-account
holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account and their registration details
are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form accordingly.

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
number shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Notarized copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy

form to the Company.

CNIC/NTN NUMBER ON DIVIDEND WARRANT (MANDATORY)

As it has already been notified from time to time, SECP has directed vide its Notification S.R.O.
831(1)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 that the Dividend Warrant(s) should also bear the Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) number of the registered shareholder or the authorized person, except
in case of minor(s) and corporate shareholder(s).

In order to comply with the SECP’s directives and in terms of Section 243(2)(a) of the Companies Act,
2017, the Company shall be constrained to withhold the Dividend Warrant(s), in case of non-availability
of a copy of valid CNIC (for individuals) and National Tax Number (for corporate entities).

Accordingly, shareholders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN are once again
requested to immediately submit the same to the Company or Share Registrar, CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited.

4) DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to
replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date
notified by the Commission.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub - account with any of
the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form,
this will facilitate them in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want,
as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.
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5)

6)

8)

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES

Information of unclaimed dividend/shares has been placed at the website of the Company
www.matcofoods.com. Respective shareholders are requested to contact Share Registrar of the
Company to collect their unclaimed dividend/shares.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL AUDITED ACCOUNTS THROUGH EMAIL

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its notification SRO787(1)/2014 dated
8th September 2014 has permitted / allowed companies to circulate Annual Financial Statements aleng
with the Notice of Annual General Meeting to its members through email. Accordingly, members are
requested to send written request to the company’s registered office at mentioned above along with
your valid email address to provide you the financial statements at your valid email address. In case
you don’t wish to avail this facility, the financial statements will be sent to you at your registered
address as per normal practice.

PLACEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS ON WEBSITE

Pursuant to the notification of the SECP (SRO 634{1)/2014) dated July 10, 2014, the financial statements
of the Company have been placed on the Company’s website at www.matcofoods.com.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS (IF ANY)

The shareholders are requested to notify the Company at its registered office at aforesaid address if
there is any change in their addresses and update zakat status with their participants immediately.
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Annexure

STATEMENT LINDER SECTION 134{3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES & ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the specific limits of investments in the form of loans
/ advances in the following associated companies and associated undertakings subject to the consent of
members under Section 199 of the Cempanies Act, 2017 / Companies (Investment In Associated Companies
or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017. The Board of Directors do hereby undertake / certify that
necessary due diligence for the following proposed investments have been carried out.

{a) Disclosure for all types of Investments:
{A) Disclosure regarding assoclated company

(i) Name of the associated company or | Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited {"BPPL")
associated undertaking
(ii) Basis of Relationship Matce Foods Limited owns 49% shareholding in
the Barentz Pakistan {Private) Limited
{iii) Earnings / {Loss) per share for the last | 2022;3.83 *

three Years 2021:(3.32)
2020; (0,91}
{iv) Break-up value per share, based on | 2022: PKR 7.45 *
last audited financial statements 2021: PKR 3.61

(v} Financial position, including main | Based on the reviewed and audited financial
items of statement of financial | statements for the financial year ended 30 June
position and profit and loss account on | 2022 and 31 December 2021 respectively, the
the basis of its latest financial | financial position of BPPL is as under;

statements 2022* | 2021
Rs. in Million
Total Equity 37.26 18.08
Total assets 190.34 122.36
Total liability 153.08 104.28
Gross profit 42.40 10.92
Profit/{Loss) before tax 24.06 {18.84)
Profit/{Loss) after tax 19.18 (16.64)

{vi) In case of Investment in relation to a

project of assoclated company or

associated undertaking that has not

commenced operations, following

further information, namely:

I. Description of the project and its | Not Applicable
history since conceptualization

Il. Starting date and expected date | Not Applicable
of completion of work

Ill. Time by which such project shall | Not Applicable
become commercially
operational

IV. Expected time by which the | Not Applicable
project shall start paying return
on investment
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V. Funds invested or to be invested
by the promoters, sponsors,
associated company or
associated undertaking
distinguishing between cash and
non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

{8) General Disclosure

M

Maximum amount of investment to be
made

PKR 100,000,000/- {(Rupees Hundred Million Only).

(ii)

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
the investing company and its
members from such investment and
period of investment

The investment amount will be utilized by the
associated company to meet the working capital
requirement of the Company as the business is
growing and they have entered into the business
of flavors and colors. For flavors business, they
entered into a distribution business with
multinational company which will surely increase
the top and bottom line of the Company.

Matco Foods Limited will be benefited ultimately
through share of profit/dividend and interest
Tncome from the assoclated company.

iii)

Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using
borrowed funds, -

Loan and/or advance will be given out of own
funds of the Company.

I. Justification for investment

through borrowings;

N/A

Il. Detail of collateral, guarantees
provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

N/A

lll. Cost benefit analysis

N/A

{v)

Sallent features of the agreement(s}), if
any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment

Loan/Advance
To earn mark-up/
profit on loan/advance
being provided to BPPL
which will augment
the Company's cash
flow.
Rate of Mark-up 3-month KIBOR + 2%
Repayment On demand

Nature
Purpose

(v}

Direct or Indirect Interest of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company or associated undertaking or
the transaction under consideration

Directors of the Company have no interest in the
investee Company except in their capacity as
Director of Investee Company.

{vi)

In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking

A similar nature of loan/advance facility of Rs. 500
million from time to time for working capital

has already been made, the | requirements has been granted by the valued
performance review of such | shareholders of the Company vide special
investment _including  complete | resolution passed in the Annual General Meeting |
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information/justification  for

Impalrment or write offs

any

held on October 24, 2020, There is no impairment
and/or write off against the above facility.

{vii)

Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction

None

{b) Additional disclosure regarding Loans and Advances

(i}

category-wise amount of investment

Previously, Matco Foods Limited has subscribed
the 2,450,000 shares of BPPL at Par Value Rs. 10
each. Then, loan/advance provided to the BPPL up
to Rs. 50 million. Now, the proposal to increase the
limit of loan/advance to Rs. 100 million is made to
shareholders.

(ii)

average horrowing cost of the
investing company, the Karachi Inter
Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR} for the
relevant period, for the relevant
period

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company
ranges from 1-month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1.0%- and
3-month KIBOR + 0.55% to 1.5% in 2021 - 2022,

(iii)

rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees
or commission etc. to be charged by
investing company

3-month KIBOR + 2%,

liv)

particulars of collateral or security to
be ocbtained in relation to the
proposed Investment

No collateral is considered necessary since BPPL is
an associated company of the Company.

v)

If the investment carries conversion
feature i.e., it is convertible into
securities, this fact along with terms
and conditions including conversion
formula, circumstances In which the
conversion may take place and the
time when the conversion may be
exercisable; and

Not Applicable

{vi)

repayment schedule and terms and
conditions of loans or advances to be
given to the associated company or
associated undertaking

The above facility will be repayable on demand.

* The financial year of the associated company have been linked with the Parent Company which is
December 31 ended. Therefore, the figures as of June 30, 2022 (six-months ended) reviewed by the
statutory auditors of the associated company have been presented here for the better understanding of
the Sharehelders.
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The Company Secretary

Matco Foods Limited
B-1/A, S.I.T.E., Phase 1
Super Highway Industrial Area
Karachi
PROXY FORM
I'we of
being a member of MATCO FOODS
LIMITED and holder of number of shares as per Share Register Folio No.
and/or CDC Participant ID No. and Account / Sub-Account No.
hereby appoint of
or failing him/her to act as

my/our proxy and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of the
Company to be held on the 24™ day of October 2022 via video-conferencing facility and at any adjournment thereof,

Signed this day of , 2022, Please affix
Revenue

Stamp of Rs. 5/-

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature Signature

Name Name

CNIC No. CNIC No.

Address Address

Notes:

e The proxy must be a member of the company.
¢ The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the Company.

s Ifaproxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited, the proxy must be accompanied with participant’s [D number and account/sub-account number
alongwith attested photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the beneficial
owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

e The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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